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I N T R O D U C T I O N

Letter from the President of the
Management Board

We are Poland’s largest chemical producer, our products finding applications across virtually all sectors of the economy. For the

past two years we have been named among the world’s top chemical companies in the ‘Value Creation in Chemicals’ ranking.

Being a leader does not mean, however, that we can afford to stop making progress – on the contrary, we are an organisation

that wants and knows how to align its plans with the prevailing market conditions. That ability of ours was amply demonstrated

in 2016 and 2017, as we  responded to  economic cycle changes, Industry 4.0 and big data solutions, new environmental

regulations, and newly emerging trends in the labour market with our updated business strategy until 2020. The four key

objectives to  springboard our future growth are to  complete the Group’s consolidation, strengthen our offering of agro-

solutions, expand our non-fertilizer business, as well as generate and deploy innovations to  accelerate advances in the

chemical sector. Having updated the strategy, we  also revised our corporate metrics, which provide an appropriate

Ladies and Gentlemen,

we are pleased to present another integrated report of the Grupa Azoty Group. We would like to show you how each of our key

companies has been creating value for themselves, the entire Group and the Polish economy. We believe in safe and useful

chemicals, developed through innovation, helping mankind to  confront the challenges of the 21st century. Never before has

science opened such an array of exciting opportunities before our industry – at the Grupa Azoty Group, we know how to ride

that wave, proving daily, with every our product, that modern chemicals can indeed make the world a better place to live in.
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benchmark, reflecting current market conditions, to  measure our performance against the strategic objectives and our

progress in their delivery. For a detailed description of our new strategic approach, see further parts of this report.

We  see investment as the main driver of the Group’s expansion. In recent years, we  have changed the structure of funding

sources to facilitate the delivery of key investment projects. I am confident that the measures we have taken will translate into

long-term financial security for each of the Group’s key companies. We  are consistently pursuing our investment plans, for

which we allocated a budget of over PLN 2bn in 2016–2017. Another noteworthy fact is our safe debt level: with a net debt

to EBITDA ratio of about 0.3 we can comfortably implement our growth plans while retaining high credit ratings from financial

institutions.

  Either directly or indirectly, our fertilizer and non-fertilizer products are present in the life of every Pole, as well as many

people from around Europe and the world. Meanwhile, the heavy chemicals sector – in addition to a wealth of opportunities it

certainly offers – must entail a special degree of responsibility, an aspect to which our Group attaches strategic importance.

Our activities and decisions prove that it is possible to  combine business and economic value growth objectives with

sustainable and safe production, operational and management excellence, development of a  coherent value-based

organisational culture and innovation, improving our social and economic impacts.

As demonstrated by the Responsible Companies Ranking 2018, we are the industrial sector’s leader in responsibility. We have

signed the declaration of partnership for the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals at the Ministry of

Entrepreneurship and Technology. We  regularly submit to  assessment for the purposes of both Polish and foreign ratings of

ESG (Environmental, Social and Governance) performance, confirming that we  qualify for a  range of prestigious indices,

including Respect Index, MSCI ESG and FTSE4Good Emerging Index. The four key Group companies have been certified for

conformity with the Product Stewardship Standard.

We are proud of the Group’s integrated approach to social, environmental and economic aspects, seeking to propagate it also

among our customers. A  case in point described in this report is our effort to  promote precision agriculture. We  share our

knowledge accumulated over the years with students, scientists and farmers, for example through the ‘Grounded in

Knowledge’ initiative. Every year we are encouraged thousands of farmers to produce safe, quality and profitable food, while

taking measures to protect the environment, tailored to the needs of Polish agriculture.

The Group’s sustainable development would not be possible without innovative products. We aim to be an industry leader in

implementing R&D projects. In this report, you will read about our new Research and Development Centre soon to  be

constructed in Tarnów, as a powerhouse of innovation delivering advanced materials, fertilizer products and environmentally-

friendly solutions. The Group’s commitment to  innovation is also manifest in its entry into Innovation Pitch competitions and

launch of Idea4Azoty –  our own acceleration project allowing innovative investors to  receive the Group’s all-round support,

from co-funding, through access to facilities, to advisory services.

Ladies and Gentlemen, the Grupa Azoty Group operates in a highly competitive global market. I am convinced we can maintain

a strong footing in each area of our business, while winning new markets and bringing new clients. The ongoing integration of

our Group with its synergic benefits is a source of major competitive advantage. At the same time, we are extending our value

chain, investing in new products and technologies. Our ambition is to provide a growth stimulus to the Polish chemical industry

and satellite sectors, while reducing Poland’s trade deficit in chemicals. You will find out from this report how we are working

towards these goals. Have a good read!

Best regards,

Wojciech Wardacki, President of the Management Board

‘Leader of Polish Export’ – Grupa Azoty S.A. received a Cup of the Leader of Polish Export, awarded by the Association of Polish

Exporters.

‘200 Largest Polish Companies’ and ‘Polish Ambassadors’ – Grupa Azoty S.A. ranked high in the Wprost weekly’s list of ‘200

Largest Polish Companies’ (17th place) and secured the 4th position among Poland’s largest exporters in the ‘Polish

Awards and distinctions 2016-2017

Good business
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Ambassadors’ ranking.

‘Business Powers 2016’ - Grupa Azoty S.A. was awarded the ‘Business Power 2016’ title in the 9th edition of the ‘Business Power’

awards organised by the European Business Institute.

‘Engine of the Polish Economy’ - Grupa Azoty S.A. was included among ‘Engines of the Polish Economy’ in a  ranking by  the

Home & Market magazine, covering ten leading sectors of the economy. Among the ten winners – one winning representative

from each sector – Grupa Azoty S.A. took the first place in the Chemical Industry category. The company was awarded “for its

constant efforts to change the face of the Polish chemical industry”.

Grupa Azoty S.A. named the ‘Champion of Change of Polish Industry’ 

On January 20th 2016, during the ‘We Change Polish Industry’ Forum, Grupa Azoty S.A. was named the ‘Champion of Change of

Polish Industry’. It was distinguished for its “unprecedented investment projects” and wide-ranging investment programme

currently under way.

‘For Merit in Quality Culture’ medal – Grupa Azoty S.A. received a medal awarded to commemorate the POLSKIE FORUM ISO

9000 Club’s 25th anniversary: ‘For Merit in Quality Culture’. It was presented during the ‘Through Quality’ jubilee conference

held at the Ministry of Development.

Companies of the Grupa Azoty Group listed among ‘Business Cheetahs’ of the chemical industry 

In August 2016, out of nearly 35,000 enterprises whose financial performance was reviewed by the European Business Institute

in July 2016, the title of the ‘Business Cheetah 2015’ was awarded to 265 companies of the chemical industry. Grupa Azoty S.A.

and Grupa Azoty Police were again included in the prestigious list (ranking 90th and 116th, respectively).

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn – ‘Quality Award’ 

The Polish Chamber of Commerce awarded a ‘Quality Award’ to Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn in the category of large manufacturing

organisations.

‘Investor Friendly Company’ certificate 

During a gala event marking the 20th anniversary of the WallStreet Conference in 2016, Grupa Azoty S.A. received an ‘Investor

Friendly Company’ certificate under the ‘10 out of 10’ programme, dedicated to  listed companies following best market

practices in communication with retail investors.

‘Transparent Company 2016’ - Grupa Azoty S.A. was awarded the prestigious title of Transparent Company 2016 in the first

edition of a ranking prepared by the Parkiet daily and the Institute of Accountancy and Taxes, with the support of the Warsaw

Stock Exchange, ranking among the twenty most transparent companies included in the WIG20, WIG40 and WIG80 indices that

agreed to have their transparency assessed.

Inclusion in 10 consecutive editions of the Respect Index 

Grupa Azoty S.A. is among the select group of companies with outstanding social responsibility records included in the WSE’s

RESPECT Index since its inception.

PLASTPOL 2017 - at the 21st International Fair of Plastics and Rubber Processing PLASTPOL in Kielce, Grupa Azoty S.A. received

a medal for the art of presentation and style of its appearance at the fair, and distinction for a new type of Tarnamid® designed

for application in the railway industry.

‘Golden Crane of Agriculture’ for Grupa Azoty S.A. - the award was granted in recognition of the ‘Grounded in Knowledge’

research project.

Grupa Azoty S.A. with ‘Diamonds of the Polish Chemistry’ - the award in the Business Executive category went to the President

of Grupa Azoty S.A. Management Board, and in the Investment of the Year category – to  Grupa Azoty Puławy for its project

to construct a new facility for production of granulated fertilizers based on ammonium nitrate.

Grupa Azoty S.A. ranked among the top ten names in the ‘2016 Environmentally-Minded Business’- ranking, published by the

Gazeta Finansowa weekly. The report was to  assess environmental strategies of Polish companies, highlighting the most

attractive solutions.

Innovation

Community involvement and contribution to the Group’s environment
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Grupa Azoty S.A. as a ‘Golden Sponsor’ - Grupa Azoty S.A.’s long-standing partnership with the city of Tarnów was appreciated

during the 10th edition of the Investment Forum. The company was honoured with a ‘Golden Sponsor’ statuette, as a token of

appreciation for its support to the initiative.

Distinction in ‘Best Practices – Business, Education and Science’ - Grupa Azoty S.A. received a distinction in the competition

promoting model examples of ties between industry and science.

Grupa Azoty Group companies as ‘Safe Work Leaders’ 

Grupa Azoty Group companies were recognised by the Safe Work Leaders’ Forum. Three strategic Group companies (Grupa

Azoty S.A., Grupa Azoty Puławy and Grupa Azoty Police) received the highest distinction – the ‘Gold Card of Safe Work Leaders’

for their achievements in improving work conditions, safety and protection of people in the workplace.

Grupa Azoty S.A. as an ‘Icebreaker’ 

Social awareness and promoting the activity of the disabled in various spheres of life were the merits that earned Grupa Azoty

S.A. the third place in this year’s ‘Icebreaker’ competition held by the Foundation for the Professional Inclusion of People with

Disabilities.

y p

Labour practices and decent work

We support the United Nations’ Global Sustainable Development Goals

Grupa Azoty S.A. has signed the declaration of partnership for the United Nations’ Sustainable Development
Goals, which cover a  wide range of challenges, their implementation being monitored worldwide through
appropriate indicators. Our activities support the following goals:

BEST PRACTICE

 Innovation, industry and infrastructure – with efforts to further this objective underpinned
by technological progress. Without technology and innovation, industrialisation would not
progress and we want to develop research and bring on technology advances in the
industrial sector.
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STRATEGIC PRIORITIES FOR CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The sustainable development strategy for 2018–2022 implemented by  the Group takes into account the
Sustainable Development Goals with the highest relevance for the fertilizer and chemical industry.

 Zero hunger – we are aware that the agriculture and food sector is essential to combatting
poverty. Our goal is to increase food production efficiency and volumes, sustain ecosystems,
adapt to climate change, and – with our products – gradually improve soil and land quality.

 Responsible consumption and production – balanced consumption and production require
a systematic approach and cooperation between various actors along the supply chain, from
manufacturers to consumers. Therefore, we run a number of training events at Grupa Azoty
S.A., e.g. for farmers.

 Quality education – we aim to increase the number of young people and adults who have
relevant skills (including technical and vocational skills) for employment, finding fair jobs,
and entrepreneurship.

 Climate change measures – climate change is felt across all continents. Excessive
greenhouse gas emissions require a coordinated effort and solutions developed at
international levels. We want to take joint action to combat these adverse changes, reducing
our environmental footprint.

 Clean water and sanitation – in our operations we seek to significantly increase water-use
efficiency to help solve the problem of insufficient water supply.
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O U R  B U S I N E S S  –  W H O  W E  A R E ,  H O W  W E  O P E R A T E

Overview of the Group

The two-time Nobel Prize winner Linus Pauling was quoted as saying that “Every aspect of the world today is affected

by chemistry”. At the Grupa Azoty Group we perfectly realise that. We are Poland’s leading chemical business, proud of our

chemical expertise and ability to harness chemistry to  improve the quality of everyday lives of millions of people the world

over. We  probe into the interior of matter to  find solutions to  everyday problems. We  make soil more fertile and we  help

people work. We are chemical engineers.

Grupa Azoty S.A. is a brand standing for superior standards. The wider the range of our products and services, the greater care

we  take of the surrounding world and quality of human life. Striving for excellence in every area of our activity, we  focus

equally on enhancing our corporate value and on satisfaction of all users of our products. We  have built a  modern, strong

corporate group. We pursue a set of ambitious goals.

[102-1] [102-4] [IR-Organisational overview and external environment]
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14
Over 14,100 employees in 2016

and close to 14,500 in 2017

38
Group companies

5
Segments

Agro Fertilizers

Plastics

Chemicals

Energy

Other, including laboratory and leasing services

4
Locations of main production

plants

Tarnów

Puławy

Police

Kędzierzyn-Koźle

9
Key raw materials procured

and processed to manufacture
products

Ammonia

Benzene

Phenol

Phosphate rock

Propylene

Sulfur

Potassium chloride

Coal
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Natural gas
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The Grupa Azoty Group is Poland’s largest producer of chemicals, with a  presence in the market segments of engineering

plastics, nitrogen fertilizers and compound fertilizers, as well as OXO alcohols and plasticizers.

17
Thousand road shipments per

month

5
Geographic areas where our

products are present

European Union

South America

Asia

Africa

North America

55
Organisations of which Grupa
Azoty S.A. is an active member

+960%

The increase in the share price
of the Grupa Azoty S.A. from

IPO

Leader at home
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* Compound fertilizers combined (AP, NKP, PK).

We are the first CEE company featured in the ICIS Top 40 Power Players 2015, which lists 40 most influential senior executives in

the chemical market We stand among the top European chemical producers

Top 1 in

nitrogen, nitrogen and sulfur, nitrogen and phosphorus, and compound fertilizers

polyamides

OXO alcohols and plasticizers

titanium white and melamine

Leader at home

 Top EU producer

TOP 2 in:

nitrogen fertilizers

TOP 3 in:

melamine

compound fertilizers

 

See our product portfolio

See what we produce

Contribution to the Grupa Azoty Group’s revenue in Q1 2018:

[102-2]
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Mineral fertilizers are the main source of our revenue – the Group is Poland’s largest and European Union’s second largest

manufacturer of mineral fertilizers. We offer nitrogen and compound fertilizers, as well as ammonia and other nitrogen-based

intermediate products. Fertilizers are manufactured by  the Group companies based in Tarnów, Puławy, Kędzierzyn, Police,

Gdańsk, and Chorzów. 

 

(For more information on our fertilizers, visit the customer zone at: https://nawozy.eu/ and  http://nawozy.grupaazoty.com/)

Plastics represent the second largest segment of the Group’s sales. Our offering includes Tarnamid , Alphalon  (the trade

names of polyamide 6), Tarnoform  (the trade name of polyacetal (POM)), and other modified plastics. Plastics are

manufactured by the Group companies based in Tarnów, Puławy, and Guben (Germany). We are the leading manufacturer of

polyamide 6 (PA6) in Poland and its third largest producer in the European Union.

The Chemicals segment comprises OXO products (OXO alcohols, plasticizers), technical grade urea, melamine, sulfur, titanium

white and other products.

Geographic structure in 2017:

Our principal business includes:

Agro Fertilizers

Plastics

® ®

®

Chemicals

[102-2]
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Our main production plants operate their own in-house units generating electricity and heat, transmitted over our own

distribution networks – mostly within the Group. We also supply electricity and hot domestic water to meet local demand.

In addition, the Group operates as a  service provider. Its key service lines include maintenance (automation, design, repair,

etc.), logistics (road transport, rail transport, port facilities), and catalyst manufacturing.

We  create state-of-the-art, top-of-the-range products, sold mainly in Poland. The target markets for our exports are

mainly EU countries, especially Germany, the United Kingdom, the Czech Republic, Italy, France and Belgium, as well as Asia

and South America

Energy

See the locations of our manufacturing plants

Grupa Azoty - core business

See the markets to which we sell our products

Geographic breakdown of the Grupa Azoty Group (by revenue)

[102-6]
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As at December 31st 2017, apart from the parent Grupa Azoty S.A., our Group includes fourty subsidiaries. Three companies –

Grupa Azoty S.A., Grupa Azoty Puławy and Grupa Azoty Police − are listed on the Warsaw Stock Exchange.

Despite our global reach, we remain a Polish organisation, with the bulk of our manufacturing operations located in Poland and

the parent headquartered in Tarnów. Over the past five years, we have brought together Poland’s largest chemical plants under

the single brand of Grupa Azoty, comprising a host of companies with different traditions and diverse, albeit complementary,

business profiles. This has led to  the creation of Poland’s largest chemical group and a  major industry player in Europe.

We actively contribute to  the progress of the industries in which we operate, sharing our expert knowledge as members of

several dozen associations and organisations.

Geographic breakdown of the parent’s sales (by revenue)

See the organisations of which we are members

[102-5]
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In 2016 and 2017, the Grupa Azoty Group held memberships in the following organisations and

associations: 
Link 

In 2016 and 2017, the Grupa Azoty Group held memberships in the following organisations and

associations: 
Link 

Centrum Zaawansowanych Technologii przy Instytucie Chemii Przemysłowej website

EPCA The European Petrochemical Association (Europejskie Stowarzyszenie Petrochemiczne) website

EPF – European Panel Federation website

Executive Club website

Fertilizers Europe (Europejskie Stowarzyszenie Producentów Nawozów) website

Forum ISO 14000 website

Forum Liderów Bezpiecznej Pracy website

GCU Bureau (General Contract of Use for Wagons) website

IFA – International Fertilizer Industry Association website

Instytut Audytorów Wewnętrznych IIa Polska website

ISSA – Organizacja ds. Bezpieczeństwa Systemów Informacyjnych website

Izba Energetyki Przemysłowej i Odbiorców Energii website

Izba Gospodarcza Transportu Lądowego website

Izba Przemysłowo-Handlowa w Tarnowie website

Izba Rzemieślnicza oraz Małej i Średniej Przedsiębiorczości w Tarnowie website

Klaster Chemii Specjalistycznej Chem-Ster website

Klub Polskich Laboratoriów Badawczych POLLAB website

Klub Sportowy Azoty-Puławy website

Komitet Chemii Polskiej Akademii Nauk website

Konsorcjum Info – Tech – Med. Krajowa Sieć Informatyczna Europejskiej Agencji Bezpieczeństwa

i Zdrowia w pracy 
website

Naczelna Organizacja Techniczna website

Narodowy Fundusz Ochrony Środowiska i Gospodarki Wodnej website

Opolska Izba Gospodarcza website

Fundacja Instytut Centrum Badań ADR „Prawo i Gospodarka” website

Polska Izba Gospodarcza „Ekorozwój” website

Polska Izba Odzysku i Recyklingu Opakowań website
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In 2016 and 2017, the Grupa Azoty Group held memberships in the following organisations and

associations: 
Link 

Polska Izba Przemysłu Chemicznego website

Polska Izba Rzeczników Patentowych website

Polska Platforma Technologiczna – Bezpieczeństwo Pracy w Przemyśle none

Polska Platforma Technologiczna Wodoru i Ogniw Paliwowych none 

Polska Platforma Technologiczna Zrównoważonej Chemii none 

Polski Komitet Normalizacyjny website

Polskie Forum ISO 9000 website

Polsko-Brazylijska Izba Gospodarcza website

Północna Izba Gospodarcza website

Fundacja Puławskie Centrum Przedsiębiorczości website

Staszowska Izba Gospodarcza website

Stowarzyszenie Doradców ds. Bezpieczeństwa Przewozu Towarów Niebezpiecznych Koleją website

Stowarzyszenie Eksporterów Polskich website

Stowarzyszenie Elektryków Polskich Oddział Tarnowski website

Stowarzyszenie Emitentów Giełdowych website

Stowarzyszenie Inżynierów i Techników Przemysłu Chemicznego web site

Stowarzyszenie Księgowych w Polsce Oddział Kraków, Oddział Lublin, Oddział Kielce 

Kraków website 

Lublin website 

Kielce website

Stowarzyszenie Polskich Skarbników Korporacyjnych website

Stowarzyszenie Zachodniopomorski Klaster Chemiczny website

System pomocy w transporcie materiałów niebezpiecznych SPOT website

Towarowa Giełda Energii S.A. website

Transparency Register website

 

In 2016, Grupa Azoty S.A. was additionally a member of: World Economic Forum; CEMS (The Global Alliance in Management

Education); Pracodawcy Rzeczypospolitej Polskiej  (Employers of Poland); Polski Związek Przetwórców Tworzyw Sztucznych

(Polish Association of Plastics Processing Companies); Chatham House; CEFIC (European Chemical Industry Council); Plastics

Europe; CEEP (Central European Energy Partners); ESA – the European Sulphuric Acid Association; Izba Przemysłowo-Handlowa

w Krakowie (Kraków Chamber of Commerce and Industry); Grupa Promocyjna NPG-6 (NPG-6 Promotional Group); Regionalna

Izba Gospodarcza (Regional Chamber of Commerce); British Polish Chamber of Commerce; Puławska Izba
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Gospodarcza (Puławy Chamber of Commerce); Polska Grupa Bezpieczeństwa Chemicznego (Polish Chemical Safety Group);

Forum Dużych Konsumentów Gazu (Large Gas Consumer Forum); Stowarzyszenie Lubelskie Drewno (Lublin Timber

Association); TDMA (Titanium Dioxide Manufacturers Association); INCOPA (the European Inorganic Coagulants Producers

Association); IPMA (International Project Management Association Poland); Business Club Szczecin; Stowarzyszenie

Konsumentów i  Importerów Soli Potasowej (Association of Consumers and Importers of Potassium Chloride); Partnership for

the Environment Foundation (Green Office).

In 2017, it joined the following organisations: Polskie Stowarzyszenie Jakości  (Polish Quality Management Association);

International Controller Verein; Izba Gospodarcza Energetyki i  Ochrony Środowiska (Economic Chamber of Energy and

Environmental Protection); HTRI (Heat Transfer Research Inc.); Staropolska Izba Przemysłowo-Handlowa (Staropolska Chamber

of Commerce and Industry); and Konsorcjum Bezpieczeństwo Gospodarcze Polski (Polish Economic Security Consortium)

Grupa Azoty is one of the leading chemical companies globally according to the ‘Value Creation in Chemicals
2016’ ranking compiled based on a  review of the 190 largest industry players rated in terms of their total
shareholder return. The review covered the value of shares and dividends paid. These in turn are driven
by  various factors, including fluctuations in revenue, profit margins, number of outstanding shares and debt
level.

A HANDFUL OF NOTEWORTHY FACTS:
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O U R  B U S I N E S S  –  W H O  W E  A R E ,  H O W  W E  O P E R A T E

Structure of the Grupa Azoty Group

Our Group builds its value operating as a single entity. This strategic objective is supported by our management model based

on centralisation of the functions which generate the greatest synergies and management of key business processes at the

Group level, while maintaining the separate legal identity of the Group companies.

Parent and subsidiaries of Grupa Azoty S.A. as at December 31st 2017

[IR - Corporate governance]
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Grupa Azoty S.A. – the parent of the

Grupa Azoty Group

Registered office: Tarnów 

 

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Registered office: Puławy 

 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Registered office: Kędzierzyn-Koźle

 

Grupa Azoty Police 

Registered office: Police

 

Grupa Azoty ATT Polymers

Registered office: Guben (Niemcy)

 

Grupa Azoty Polskie Konsorcjum

Chemiczne

Registered office: Tarnów

 

Grupa Azoty Koltar

Registered office: Tarnów

 

Grupa Azoty Kopalnie i Zakłady

Chemiczne Siarki Siarkopol

Registered office: Grzybów

 

Grupa Azoty Compounding 

Registered office: Tarnów

 

Key information about the Group companies:

Manufacture of, trade in and

services related to nitrogen 

fertilizers, engineering plastics and

intermediates

Manufacture of nitrogen fertilizers

Manufacture of melamine

Manufacture of caprolactam

Manufacture of nitrogen fertilizers

Manufacture of OXO alcohols and

plasticizers

Manufacture of nitrogen fertilizers

Manufacture of compound

fertilizers

Manufacture of titanium white

Manufacture of polyamide 6 (PA 6)
End-to-end design services for

investment projects in the

chemical industry

Railway transport services

Repair of rail car chassis and tanks

used in the transport of hazardous

materials

Production and processing of

sulfur

Production of liquid, prilled,

insoluble, milled, granulated and

flaked sulfur

The company’s business model is

based on a portfolio of specialised

engineering plastics manufactured

through the compounding of

plastics with the use of innovative

technological solutions

Structure of the group and shareholding structures of the listed group companies

Structure of the Grupa Azoty Group on December 31, 2017

[102-18] [102-5]
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Shareholding structure of Grupa Azoty S.A.
[102-5]
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Shareholding structure of Grupa Azoty Police
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Shareholding structure of Grupa Azoty Puławy
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The Management Board of Grupa Azoty S.A. operates as the Management Board of the Grupa Azoty Group. President

of the Management Board exercises overall supervision of the Group. Key areas of its activity include:

Corporate management is the responsibility of the Grupa Azoty S.A. corporate departments.

In 2016–2017, the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of Grupa Azoty S.A. were composed of persons holding

university degrees in law, economics, chemical engineering and technology, as well as environmental engineering. Most of

their members also completed post-graduate programmes in corporate management, polymer chemistry and technology,

management control, MBA programmes, as well as specialist courses or trainings, including in:

Shareholding structure of Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

See our governance structure

finance,

strategy and development,

investments,

production integration,

plastics and organic synthesis,

supply chain management,

social dialogue,

technical safety and environmental protection.

power engineering,

transport of hazardous materials,

project management,

disclosure requirements applicable to WSE-listed companies,

t t t t

[102-18]
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asset management strategy,

risk management,

corporate governance.

WojciechWardacki, 
President of the
Management Board

WitoldSzczypiński, 

Józef Rojek, 
Vice President of the
Management Board, 

investments

logistics

strategic energy commodities

Artur Kopeć, 

Management Board of Grupa Azoty Group for 31 Decemner 2017:
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Vice President of the
Management Board,
Director General

production integration at the Agro Fertilizers and

Plastics segments

Grzegorz Kądzielawski, 
Vice President of the
Management Board

infrastructure

R&D programmes

Paweł Łapiński, 
Vice President of the
Management Board

finance

IT

investor relations

M&A

tender procedures

procurement

member of the
Management Board

production assets

technical safety

environmental protection

critical infrastructure

social dialogue
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The current composition of the Management Board and the biographical notes and information on the professional experience

of its members are available on the Grupa Azoty Group’s corporate website.

The Management Board is advised by the Grupa Azoty Council, a permanent body whose main tasks include advising, issuing

opinions and initiating management improvement measures and changes in functional and business areas (in particular in the

strategic development and marketing plans). The Council issues opinions on proposed planning assumptions for the Group

companies’ budgets and assumptions for long-term plans. It also serves as a platform enhancing communication, cooperation

and information sharing at the Group.

The Grupa Azoty Council consists of the Presidents and members of the Management Boards of all of the Group consolidated

companies and the Managing Director of the parent.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for ongoing supervision of the Grupa Azoty S.A.’s operations. In 2017, the Supervisory

Board held 46 meetings and 16 voting procedures using means of remote communication.

The composition of the Supervisory Board and the biographical notes and information on the professional experience of its

members are available on the Grupa Azoty Group’s website.

The Supervisory Board is advised by the Strategy and Development Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,

and the Audit Committee. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

Grupa Azoty Council

Supervisory Board

monitoring of the financial reporting process,

monitoring of the effectiveness of internal controls,

monitoring of financial audit activities,

monitoring of the independence of the auditors and the audit firm responsible for auditing the company’s financial

statements.
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O U R  B U S I N E S S  –  W H O  W E  A R E ,  H O W  W E  O P E R A T E

Mission and business model

At the Grupa Azoty Group, we believe that our companies may contribute to the flourishing of the domestic chemical industry

and related sectors. We want to be a springboard for the development of the Polish chemical sector’s product chain and the

industry’s leader of progress in research and development. Our initiatives pave the way to reducing Poland’s trade deficit in

chemicals. We are a platform for cooperation with state-controlled companies

Business model

Generally, there is no loyalty on the customer market but with the Grupa
Azoty Group’s capital one can make people take pride in using a Polish
bran

Dialogue session

[IR – Business model]
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Deploy state-of-the-art, comprehensive chemical industry solutions that meet stakeholder expectations

Create value for Grupa Azoty and the national economy by delivering safe, useful and innovation-driven chemical products

Our vision:

Our mission:

We are building our brand based on:

Innovation

Expertise

Responsibility

Professionalism

Harmony
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Learn how our products are made

From raw materials to product Grupa Azoty S.A.
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Agriculture, automotive, textile, electrical engineering and electronics industries. Medicine and construction. Household

appliances and food industry. Even angling. Either directly or indirectly, our products are present in the life of every Pole, as

well as many people from Europe and around the world. We  consider this impact to  be our commitment to  maintain top

quality standards, we understand our responsibility and work hard to meet customer expectations.

 

See where our products are used
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 According to the most common law of agricultural science (Liebig’s law of

the minimum), the amount of crops depends on the nutrient that is the

scarcest in soil. The wide and diverse range of fertilizer products offered

by the Grupa Azoty Group helps farmers meet the requirements following

from this principle. Application of fertilizers manufactured by the Group

affects the way plants use mineral resources and water, leading to improved

environmental and economic efficiency of fertilisation. We are also

developing a segment of services for businesses, including the SatAgro

programme

Agriculture

SEE HOW WE SUPPORT FARMERS

Food industry 
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The polyamide granules produced by Grupa Azoty S.A. are applied in the manufacture of polyamide casings used to package

cold meats. Other important components supplied by the Group are bio-based non-phthalate plasticizers, which are also used

as products suitable for direct contact with food.

Our polyamide 6 and POM have a variety of applications in the automotive industry. Thanks to their exceptional properties,

including high durability and ability to  absorb vibrations, as well as thermal resistance, chemical resistance and resistance

to impact, they are suitable for the manufacturing of automotive parts located near motors, electrical systems and internal and

external equipment for motor vehicles.

The OXO alcohols produced by our plants are used as additives to plastics. Sulfur is used in the tyre industry.

Electrical insulation and self-extinguishing properties make our polyamide 6 an ideal material for electrical engineering

applications. It is used to manufacture switchgear cabinets, plugs, connectors, connector pins, circuit-breakers and sockets.

Części do mebli, płyty, wkręty, kołki, części krzeseł, rolki, klamki i uchwyty. We wszystkich tych elementach producenci mebli

korzystają z produkowanego przez Grupę Azoty mocznika technicznego, melaminy oraz poliamidu 6.

Plastics manufactured by the Grupa Azoty Group are used to produce components for fridges, freezers, centrifuges, washing

machines and kitchen appliances.

Automotive industry

Electrical engineering

Furniture industry

Household appliances
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Angling equipment, components for skis, snowboards, skateboards, roller skates, helmets and bicycles. All those things are

produced using our polyamide 6.

Manufacturers of paints and varnishes need solvents. Our OXO alcohols are an ideal product for this application.

People are our most valuable asset. We employ our resources to build competence and create a work environment conducive

to process innovation and new product development. Our business model is founded on the power to create. Our products

contribute to the quality of human life, food security and sustainable agriculture.

We  appreciate our shareholders. We  focus on delivering stable and predictable financial performance and managing risks,

including non-financial aspects (ESG). Our business scale allows us to make a positive contribution to the economic and social

environment.

We manage our Group conscienciously – our investments and expenditure translate into tangible benefits:

Safe chemicals 

Our efforts and expenditure: 
Our performance and benefits to the

environment: 

Sports

Paints and varnishes

Learn about our business/value creation model

growth of financial capital, 

 growth of manufacturing capital  in the form of products, services and high-quality delivery processes,

 growth of human capital quality,

growth of the organisation’s intellectual capital,

growth of natural capital,

growth of social and relationship capital.
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Safe chemicals 

 

*The information provided relates to Grupa Azoty Puławy.

Useful chemicals 

Our efforts and expenditure: 
Our performance and benefits to the

environment: 

 We ensure safe and high-quality products - 100% of material product

categories are assessed in terms of their impact on health and safety of

consumers and the natural environment

 We manage quality, environmental impacts and OHS based on

commonly accepted standards and ISO systems, including ISO 900, ISO

14001, PN-N-18001

 Our processes are compliant with the Product Stewardship

programme (Fertilizers Europe)

 We spend money on projects improving safety of our plants to the

environment – PLN 11.68m in 2016, and PLN 28.5m in 2017

 We also invest in improving safety at work − in 2016–2017, the total

number of training hours devoted to OHS issues was approximately

115,000

 We embark on projects reducing negative environmental impacts,

including through flue gas desulfurisation and industrial wastewater

treatment - PLN 47.3m in 2016 and PLN 17.64m in 2017

 No cases of non-compliance

with applicable regulations and

voluntarily adopted codes relating

to product labelling and information

 Our management systems

operate effectively – in 2017 there

was only one case of recalling

a batch of seed material, which was

quickly identified and disposed of

 No fatalities

 Reduction of N O emissions in

the manufacture of nitric acid

following upgrade of the catalytic

and catchment gauzes: from 0.97 kg

N O/t HNO  in 2016 to 0.68 kg

N O/t HNO *in 2017 after the

upgrade

2

2 3

2 3

 Drop in energy consumption

relative to 2015: by ca. 25% at Grupa

Azoty Kędzierzyn, ca. 6% at Grupa

Azoty Police, and ca. 17% at Grupa

Azoty S.A.1

 Reduction of electricity

consumption intensity at Grupa

Azoty S.A. (Tarnów)

by approximately 20%, and

by 0.29% at Grupa Azoty Puławy

 Revenue from sale of fertilizers in the Agro Fertilizers segment rose

1.2% year on year

 We run a unique

‘Grounded in Knowledge’

programme − we have gathered

28,000 soil samples at as many as 17

Regional Chemical and Agricultural

Stations so that farmers can find out

the nutrient requirements of their

soil and plan appropriate fertilizer

application strategies
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Useful chemicals 

 

Innovation-based growth 

Our efforts and expenditure: Our performance and benefits to the environment: 

 

Value of the Grupa Azoty Group and its influence on growth of Poland’s economy 

Our efforts and expenditure: 
Our performance and benefits to the

environment: 

The SatAgro technology 

enables farmers to use satellite tools

to remotely monitor their crops

 Partnering with science institutes in research on

the development of ‘smart fertilizers’ designed for

particular plants and soil conditions (high-margin, low-

tonnage specialty products customised for specific

crops and customers) – cooperation with the

Agricultural Market Agency and New Chemical

Syntheses Institute 

Since its establishment, the Grupa Azoty Group has

spent over PLN 80m on projects commissioned from

the New Chemical Syntheses Institute 

Projects and research conducted by two own

Research and Development Centres

 R&D&I spending will reach 1% of Grupa Azoty

Group’s revenue by 2020.

 We develop and market innovative products,

including materials used in 3D printing and graphene,

which is likely to cause a revolution in the electronic

industry

We run an innovative acceleration programme Idea4Azoty

 We are among the largest consumers of raw materials in Central and

Eastern Europe; in 2016–2017, we spent over 

PLN 7bn per year to purchase raw materials needed to support Group-wide

production

 We are one of the largest employers – we have created more than

14.5k jobs

 We invest in the development of our environment – the

funding we provided to various causes in the form of donations and

sponsorship  totalled over PLN 9m in 2016 and PLN 6.7m in 20172

 We build relationships with our neighbours, for instance by holding

open-door days and dialogue sessions, running an employee volunteering

programme, and providing grants for students

 Significant financial assistance received from the

government: grants to finance property, plant and equipment : 2016 – PLN

10,499,594; 2017 – PLN 6,604,913; grants to finance materials: 2017 – PLN

68,057; public aid related to operation in the special economic zone: 2016

– PLN 14,292,000; 2017 – PLN 9,292,000; other government grants: 2016 –

PLN 27,666,871; 2017 – PLN 36,278,589; tax credits for research and

development projects: 2016 – PLN 187,291; 2017 – PLN 327,488

3

 Improved operating

performance of the Grupa Azoty

Group 

· Consolidated revenue: PLN

9,617,495m (up 7.3% year on year) 

· EBITDA: PLN 1,186,886m (up 25.2%

year on year) 

· Consolidated net profit of the

Group: PLN 488.826m (up 55.1%

year on year) 

· Good debt ratio level, with net

debt/EBITDA at 0.3 

· Economic value retained: PLN

427.97 thousand

 Amounts paid to the

state budget, injected into the

economy thanks to the operations of

the Grupa Azoty Group’s key

companies*

  21 - number of the

dialogue session participants

[203-1] 

[201-4] 

[203-2] 
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1 Only at Grupa Azoty Puławy and Grupa Azoty Police energy consumption increased respectively, by approximately 2% and 3%. 

2 Excluding sports sponsorship 

3 Grants to finance property, plant and equipment received from the European Regional Development Fund and Energy Regulatory Office

(energy efficiency certificates).

* Amounts paid to the state budget, injected into the

economy thanks to the operations of the Grupa Azoty

Group’s key companies 

2016 [PLN] 2017 [PLN] 

Property tax 108,816,787 109,383,430 

Forestry tax 3,291 3,271 

Tax on means of transport 28,988 29,291 

Agricultural tax 4,426 4,318 
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O U R  B U S I N E S S  –  W H O  W E  A R E ,  H O W  W E  O P E R A T E

Our relations

We  are committed to  dialogue with our stakeholders. We  are aware that in a  highly volatile environment, regular and fair

exchange of information is a foundation of mutual understanding, which in turn translates into better business performance.

We adapt the form and frequency of stakeholder dialogue to  the characteristics of a given stakeholder group as well as the

expectations and problems relevant to  both parties. Responsibility for maintaining the dialogue lies with the heads of

individual functional areas of the Group companies, who are most familiar with the expectations of individual stakeholder

groups.
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Stakeholder

group 

Stakeholder group engagement 

 

Frequency of stakeholder

engagement by type 

Shareholders,

investors,

brokerage

houses 

In accordance with the

requirements resulting from

being listed on the WSE:

Capital market

institutions and

associations 

Stakeholder map

General Meetings

Earnings conferences

One-on-one meetings

Newsletter

Investor conferences

Regular site visits

Special-event meetings

WallStreet conference organised by the Polish Association of Retail

Investors

Investor chats

 Participation in the ‘10 out of 10’ programme, designed to foster high

standards of listed companies’ market communication with retail

investors and to promote companies that apply those standards

Quarterly financial

reporting

Ongoing

communication

General Meetings of

Shareholders at least

once a year

Dialogue and meetings

on an as-needed basis

Contact links on the website

Ongoing

communication in line

with disclosure

requirements

 Quarterly earnings

conferences

[102-40] [102-42] [102-43]

Stakeholder dialogue was also an important part of the process of preparing this report and updating the
priorities of the Group’s CSR strategy.

In February 2018, we invited representatives of key stakeholder groups to a meeting in Tarnów. The expectations
related to  the Grupa Azoty Group’s corporate social responsibility and this report were discussed with the
meeting participants representing local authorities, public cultural centres, social institutions, trading partners,
customers, and farmers. 

In late February and early March 2018, we  conducted an anonymous survey among 417 employees to  gauge
their opinions about key areas of the Grupa Azoty Group’s responsibility towards its environment. 

See the results of stakeholder research

BEST PRACTICE
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Stakeholder

group 

Stakeholder group engagement 

 

Frequency of stakeholder

engagement by type 

Capital market

media 

Local

communities 

 

Suppliers 

As needed – on an ongoing

basis and periodically 

 

Customers 

 

Ongoing activities,

opinion/satisfaction surveys

once a year 

 

Retail shareholders:

Investors and brokerage houses, credit rating agencies:

Capital market institutions:

Associations:

Media:

Cooperation with investor websites

Press conferences

Quarterly earnings

conferencesOngoing

communication

 Occasional press

breakfasts

Meetings with local community representatives (artists, teachers,

athletes, businessmen and others)

Direct meetings, involvement in local events

Integrated report

Participation of the Grupa Azoty Group employees in projects for the

benefit of local communities as part of the employee volunteering

programme

Dialogue session

Direct meetings on an

as-needed basis

Outdoor events

Direct communication with contact persons designated by the Group

companies

Website

Industry meetings, fairs

Integrated report

Website and social media

Grupa Azoty Group image surveys

Integrated report

What are the most frequent questions asked by our stakeholders?

Email queries about dividend and share price

Questions about procedures to be followed in the case of share ownership transfer and inheritance proceedings relating

to shares entered in the issue sponsor register

Questions about the Grupa Azoty Group’s operations and prospects

Questions about operational risks, investment and acquisition plans

Questions about environmental management performance and plans

Questions about project financing

Questions asked for the purpose of complying with disclosure requirements

Opinion polling questions asked when regulatory changes are planned

Questions about participation in conferences and events

Consultations in the event of regulatory changes

[102-44]
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Communities:

Suppliers:

Customers:

Requests for the Grupa Azoty Group’s comments on current events or its position on specific media or economic news

Expectations regarding the continuation and development of social engagement activities

Questions about engaging in new activities as part of partnerships targeted at farmers/rural areas

Requests for information on consolidation changes at the company and their consequences for the company’s trading

partners

Requests for the launch of loyalty schemes and adaptation of the range of offered products and services to the

expectations of a broad group of customers

Requests for implementation of new channels and methods of communication about the Group’s products

Questions concerning new innovative products and technologies
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O U R  B U S I N E S S  –  W H O  W E  A R E ,  H O W  W E  O P E R A T E

Financial performance

The Group’s financing structure is adjusted to  its needs and enables it to  implement key investment projects. The main

objective is to ensure long-term financial security and full internal compatibility of all financing sources used by the Group.

In 2017, the Grupa Azoty Group improved its operating performance

Consolidated revenue was PLN 9,617,495m (up 7.3% year on year)

EBITDA totalled PLN 1,186,886m (up 25.2% year on year)

Consolidated net profit came in at PLN 488.826m (up 55.1% year on year)

The Group also reported a good debt ratio level, with net debt/EBITDA at 0.3

Economic value retained was PLN 427.97 thousand

[IR - Presentation of results]

[102-7]
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* In 2013 adjusted for gain on bargin purchase of Grupa Azoty Puławy, Grupy Azoty Siarkopol, AIG and impairment loss on the

polyoxymethylene plant. 

In 2014 adjusted for impairment loss on the phthalic anhydride unit recognised. 

In 2015 adjusted for impairment loss on the benzene derived c-non production unit, fat processing plant, and carbon disulfide plant. 

In 2016 adjusted for estimated impairment loss recognised by AIG, impairment loss on the AIG field and fat processing plant. 

In 2017 - fat processing plant.

 Strategic target 2017 actual 2016 actual 

EBIT margin    8%  6.2%  4.8% 

EBITDA margin   14% 12.3% 10.6% 

ROCE margin    10% 6.1% 4.7% 

ROE margin    10% 6.6% 4.5% 

Grupa Azoty Group’s strategic financial targets and actual performance:

In 2017, the Group’s operating performance improved year on year, with consolidated revenue at PLN 9,617,495m, and EBITDA

at PLN 1,186.886m. In 2017, the Group reported net profit of PLN 488,826m.

With higher revenue and a 6.5% drop in cost of sales, the Grupa Azoty Group delivered a 10.1% year-on-year improvement in

gross profit. It was higher by PLN 197.44m relative to the previous year. Gross profit net of selling and distribution expenses and

administrative expenses came in at PLN 728,439m, or PLN 162,845m more than in 2016.

In 2017, the Group’s consolidated revenue was PLN 9,617,495m, having increased by 7.3% year on year.

EBIT by segment Agro Fertilizers Plastics Chemicals Energy Other 

External revenue 5,027,929 1,419,092 2,788,768 230,126 151,580 

Gross profit (loss) 338,435 170,639 282,450 (23,358) (39,727) 

See expert comment on the grupa azoty group’s financial position in 2017

Revenue 
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EBIT by segment Agro Fertilizers Plastics Chemicals Energy Other 

EBIT 287,805 171,265 243,020 (38,313) (66,563) 

 

Source: Company data

The Group’s gross profit on sales of products in 2017 was driven primarily by  the market situation in the Agro Fertilizers

segment, which reported revenue increase of 1.2% year on year. Revenue increase was also achieved in the Plastics and

Chemicals segments – of 26.9% and 14.3%, respectively. In other segments, revenues declined – by 4% in Energy and by 23.5%

in Other Activities.

Source: Company data 

* Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements

 

Source: Company data 

* Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements

Revenue by segment

Revenue by segment
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The shares of individual segments in total revenue changed slightly compared with 2016, with increased contributions from

Plastics (2.2pp) and Chemicals (1.8pp), and a  lower share of Agro Fertilizers (down 3.1pp), Energy (down 0.3pp) and Other

Activities (0.6pp).

The Group’s EBIT in 2017 came in at PLN 597,214m. In 2017, the balance of other income and other expenses was negative, at

PLN (131,225)m, which had an adverse effect on EBIT. EBIT margin in 2017 was 6.2%, compared with 4.8% in the previous

reporting period

In 2017, the Grupa Azoty Group earned a positive EBITDA of PLN 1,186,886m, compared with PLN 947,968m in 2016 (up 25.2%

year on year). As a result, EBITDA margin grew to 12.3% in 2017, compared with 10.6% in the previous year.

In line with the Grupa Azoty Group’s strategy for 2013–2020 revised in May 2017, the Group’s strategic objective is to achieve

EBITDA margin of 14%.

Item 
2017 

 

2016* 

 
change change % 

Revenue 

 
9,617,495 8,966,804 650,691 7.3

Cost of sales 

 
(7,457,734) (7,004,483) (453,251) 6.5

Gross profit 

 

2,159,761 

 

1,962,321 

 

197,440 

 

10.1 

 

Selling and distribution

expenses 

 

(673,555) (669,315) (4,240) 0.6

Administrative expenses 

 
(757,767) (727,412) (30,355) 4.2

Gross profit 728,439 565,594 162,845 28.8

Net other expenses (131,225) (137,990) 6,765 (4.9)

Zysk na działalności operacyjnej 597,214 427,604 169,610 39.7

       Net other expenses 
(131,225) 

 

(137,990) 

 

6,765 

 

 (4.9) 

 

Operating profit (36,824) (10,698) (26,126) 244.2

        Net finance income/(costs) 

 

(36,824) 

 

(10,698) 

 

(26,126) 

 

244.2 

 

Share of profit of equity-

accounted investees
16,015 15,170 845 5.6

Profit before tax 

 

576,405 

 

432,076 

 

144,329 

 

33.4 

 

Income tax 

 

(87,579) 

 

(116,833) 

 

29,254 

 

(2.0) 

 

Net profit 488,826 315,243 173,583 55.1 

EBIT 597,214 427,604 169,610 39.7 

EBIT

EBITDA

Consolidated financial information of the Grupa Azoty Group
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Item 
2017 

 

2016* 

 
change change % 

Depreciation and amortisation 589,627 520,364 69,308 13.3 

EBITDA 1,186,886 947,968 238,918 25.2 

 

Source: Company data. 

*  Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements.

In 2017, the Group’s assets rose to PLN 11,738.44m , that is by PLN 744,449m relative to the end of 2016. Year on year, the most

significant changes in assets included:

Assets Note as at  Dec 31 2017 
as at Dec 31 2016*

restated 

as at Jan

1 2016*

restated 

Non-current assets  

Property, plant and equipment 10 6,779,748 6,360,626 5,640,815 

Perpetual usufruct of land 11 476,616 487,717 496,871 

Investment property 13 49,649 66,054 58,496 

Intangible assets 12 395,755 47, 683 496,897 

Goodwill 12.1 32,468 30,748 33,241 

Shares 14.1 14,690 13,346 14,730 

Equity-accounted investees 14.1 111,059 110,411 107,603 

Other financial assets 14.3 2,226 1,953 , 827 

Other receivables 17 137,850 57,445 59,524 

Deferred tax assets 7.4 69,583 50,402 68,978 

Other assets 19 337 199 - 

Total non-current assets  8,069,981 7,655,038 6,975,982 

Current assets  

Inventories 15 1,003,214 858,043 958,769 

Property rights 16 18, 887 214,675 226,931 

Derivative financial instruments 28.5 2,284 8,435 4,174 

Other financial assets 14.3 253,684 580,849 492,587 

 Structure of assets 

69.2% increase in cash and cash equivalents,

6.6% increase in property, plant and equipment,

16.9% increase in inventories,

140% increase in other receivables,

6.5% increase in trade and other receivables,

56.3% decrease in other current financial assets,

17% decrease in intangible assets.

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
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Assets Note as at  Dec 31 2017 
as at Dec 31 2016*

restated 

as at Jan

1 2016*

restated 

Current tax assets  24,248 3,750 2,156 

Trade and other receivables 17 1,088,424 1,022,127 1,043,749 

Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,085,885 641,895 75,289 

Other assets 19 10,882 8,092 9,117 

Assets held for sale 10.1 10,555 691 3,123 

Total current assets  3,66, 063 3,338,557 3,494,895 

Total assets  11,738,044 10,993,595 10,47, 877 

 

*Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements

Year on year, the most significant changes in equity and liabilities included:

 Note 
as at Dec

31 2017 
as at  Dec 31 2016*restated as at Jan 1 2016* restated 

Equity and liabilities  

Equity  

Share capital 20.1 495,977 495,977 495,977 

Share premium 20.2 2,418,270 2,418,270 2,418,270 

Hedging reserve 20.3 15,407 (7,105) 65 

Exchange differences on

translating foreign operations 
 (233) 2,319 (39) 

Retained earnings, including:  3,926,338 3,553,237 3,341,794 

Net profit for the year  456,663 301,870 - 

Equity attributable to owners of the

parent 
 6,855,759 6,462,698 6,256,067 

Non-controlling interests 20.4 587,648 576,774 625,722 

Total equity  7,443,407 7,039,472 6,881,789 

Liabilities  

Borrowings 21 1,564,879 1,372,047 1,047,450 

Other financial liabilities 22 39,592 43,172 16,112 

Employee benefit obligations 24 336,781 321,209 326,968 

Structure of equity and liabilities 

5.7% increase in equity,

14.1% increase in non-current liabilities under borrowings,

10.9% increase in trade and other payables,

58.4% decrease in other current financial liabilities.

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)
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 Note 
as at Dec

31 2017 
as at  Dec 31 2016*restated as at Jan 1 2016* restated 

Trade and other payables 26 4,456 1,082 972 

Provisions 25 122 740 106,092 109,684 

Government grants received 27 90,585 68,431 47,036 

Deferred tax liabilities 7.4 177,588 191,291 181,998 

Total non-current liabilities  2,336,621 2,103,324 1,730,220 

 

* Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements.

 Note Dec 31 2017 Dec 31 2016* restated as at Jan 1 2016* restated 

Borrowings 21 70,209 52,034 118,880 

Derivative financial instruments 28.5 - 8,213 986 

Other financial liabilities 22 31,484 75,678 58,876 

Employee benefit obligations 24 42,316 39,917 33,167 

Current tax liabilities  8,916 30,553 18,986 

Trade and other payables 26 1,769,199 1,595,231 1,577,196 

Provisions 25 29,805 39,341 45,686 

Government grants received 27 6,087 9,832 5,091 

Total current liabilities  1 958 016 1,850,799 1,858,868 

Total liabilities  4,294,637 3,954,123 3,589 ,088 

Total equity and liabilities  11,738,044 10,993,595 10,470,877 

 

*Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements.

In 2017, the Group generated positive net cash from operating activities of PLN 1,114,225 thousand, relatively flat on the

previous year. The amount mainly included net profit before depreciation and amortisation, impairment losses, and an increase

in trade and other payables, as well as a decrease in inventories and trade and other receivables.

The consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the notes to  the full-year separate

financial statements, which form their integral part.

  Net cash from operating activities was partly used to  finance investment projects. The Grupa Azoty Group’s total capital

expenditure in 2017 reached PLN 1,023m and was financed with internally generated funds, the corporate set of credit facilities

(redistributable among the Group companies), loans granted by  the National Fund for Environmental Protection and Water

Management (NFOŚiGW) and the Provincial Fund for Environmental Protection and Water Management (WFOŚiGW), lease

contracts and grants.

 Note 
for the period Jan

1− Dec 31 2017 

for the period Jan 1− Dec

31 2016* restated

Operating cash flows

Consolidated statement of cash flows
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 Note 
for the period Jan

1− Dec 31 2017 

for the period Jan 1− Dec

31 2016* restated

Cash flows from operating activities  

Profit before tax  576,405 432,076 

Adjustments for:  703,765 596,498 

Depreciation and amortisation  589,672 520,364 

Impairment losses 4.10 77,981 60,368 

Loss on investing activities  10,860 13,438 

Loss on disposal of financial assets  - 11 

Share of profit of equity-accounted investees  (16,015) (15,170) 

Interest, foreign exchange gains or losses  41,802 16,244 

Dividends  (677) (1,266) 

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value  142 2,509 

 1,280,170 1,028,574 

(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables 33 (80,423) 19,255 

(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 33 (121,063) 112,587 

Decrease in trade and other payables 33 172,253 103,998 

Decrease/(Increase) in provisions, prepayments and

grants 
33 41,808 (72,771) 

Other adjustments  (7,119) (1,540) 

Cash generated from operating activities  
1,285,626 

 

1,190,103 

 

Income tax paid/(refunded)  (171,401) (74,723) 

Net cash from operating activities  1,114,225 1,115,380 

 

*Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements.

 Note 
for the period Jan

1−Dec 31 2017 

for the period Jan 1−Dec

31 2016* restated 

Cash flows from investing activities  

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment,

intangible assets and investment property 
 6,624 4,155 

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible

assets and investment property 
 (1,069,140) (1,241,667) 

Dividend received  13,720 13,716 

 Acquisition of other financial assets  (689,496) (1,528,329) 

Interest received  1,002,100 1,427,693 

Government grants received  22,218 17,486 

Dotacje  1,120 350 

Loans advanced  (1,225) (352) 
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 Note 
for the period Jan

1−Dec 31 2017 

for the period Jan 1−Dec

31 2016* restated 

Repayments of loans advanced  1,446 3,255 

Other proceeds  9,000 11,425 

Other disbursements  (5,589) (10,705) 

Net cash from investing activities  (709,222) (1,302,973) 

Cash flows from financing activities  

Dividends paid  (100,313) (96,522) 

Proceeds from borrowings  332,634 268,864 

Payment of borrowings  (90,133) (23,486) 

Acquisition of non-controlling interests  - (41,345) 

Interest paid  (52,369) (44,063) 

Payment of finance lease liabilities  (13,238) (15,469) 

Other proceeds/(disbursements)  (22,091) 25,664 

Net cash from financing activities  54,490 73,643 

Total net cash flows  459,493 (113,950) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  641,895 754,289 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held  (15,503) 1,556 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period, including:  1,085,885 641,895 

Restricted cash  1,115 4,024 

 

* Financial data restated in accordance with the information presented in Section 2.4 of the Supplementary information to the consolidated

financial statements.

In accordance with the parent’s dividend policy resulting from its updated strategy for 2013−2020, the parent decided not

to set the lower limit for the dividend payout ratio and to maintain the upper limit at 60%.

Download data in xls

See how we delivered on our dividend policy [201-1]
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In 2017, the parent distributed profit for 2016. The amount allocated for distribution as dividend was PLN 78,364m (i.e. PLN 0.79

per share), while the remaining part of profit was allocated for further implementation of the investment strategy. The dividend

payout ratio was 35% (dividend amount/net profit).

Dividend for: 
Dividend record

date 

Dividend

payment date 
Net profit 

Total dividend

amount 

Dividend per

share 

2008 26.06.2009 

1st part: Aug

31 2009 PLN 61,935

thousand 
PLN 39,898,749.42  PLN 1.02 

2nd part: Nov

6 2009 

2012 22.04.2013 24.05.2013 
PLN 250,692

thousand 

PLN

148,793,226.00 
PLN 1.50 

2013 18.06.2014 09.07.2014 
PLN 44,117

thousand 
PLN 1,983 ,096.80 PLN 0.20 

2015 20.06.2016 11.07.2016 
PLN 209,055

thousand 
PLN 83,324,206.56 PLN 0.84 

2016 04.08.2017 23.08.2017 
PLN 224,775

thousand 
PLN 78,364,432.36 PLN 0.79 

2017 25.07.2018 08.08.2018 
PLN 354,793

thousand 

PLN

123,994,355.00 
PLN 1.25 

 

Source: Company data

Direct economic value generated and distributed 2017 2016 

Direct value generated PLN 9,935,458 PLN 9,155,391 

Net revenue and equivalents, including from related entities PLN 9,885,258 PLN 9,107,253 

Other income PLN 50,200 PLN 48,138 

Direct value distributed PLN 9,545,621 PLN 8,954,760 

Costs of operations: PLN 7,708,090 PLN 7,235,054 

      - Operating expenses PLN 7,457,734 PLN 7,004,483 

      - Other expenses PLN 181,425 PLN 186,128 

      - Finance costs PLN 68,931 PLN 44,443 

Salaries, wages and employee benefits PLN 1,399,447 PLN 1,299,753 

Payments to providers of capital PLN 100,313 PLN 96,522 

Payments to government PLN 337,771 PLN 323,431 

Economic value retained PLN 389,837 PLN 200,631 

Direct economic value generated and distributed

See how our shares performed on the stock exchange

[201-1 ] 
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The Group parent, Grupa Azoty S.A., commenced 2017 with a surge of its share price on the stock exchange, from PLN 63.80

to PLN 73 in January. Until the end of April, its stock traded at around PLN 70. In the period from May to early June, the price

dropped to the year’s low of PLN 63.01, after which it rebounded to PLN 69. In late June and early July, after the European Bank

for Reconstruction and Development reduced its equity interest in the company, the price fell to  PLN 63.50. In July, the

company shares recovered to nearly PLN 72, after which the price dropped to around PLN 65 for a short period in September,

to grow again until early October, to the year’s high of close to PLN 79. From October to mid-November, it trended gradually

down to approximately PLN 70. Towards the end of 2017, the downward trend continued, with temporary spikes to PLN 77 and

PLN 74. At the close of the last trading session in 2017, the Grupa Azoty S.A. stock price was PLN 69.60.

Grupa Azoty Police started 2017 on the stock exchange with a trading price of PLN 22.80. At the beginning of the first quarter,

the stock price rose slightly to PLN 23.60, which was the year’s high. From the end of January to February, it fell rapidly, to PLN

20.10, and in the last month of the first quarter moved in the range of PLN 21.15 – PLN 20.02. Throughout the second quarter, the

price was relatively stable, within the range of PLN 19.99 – PLN 20.70. During the third quarter, it grew moderately to reach PLN

21.22, and in the fourth quarter stabilised at close to PLN 21. At the year end, the company’s stock traded at PLN 20.84.

As at December 29th 2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy’s stock traded at PLN 156.50, down 11.61% on the closing price from January

2nd 2017, which was PLN 177.05. Over the same period, the WIG index climbed 22.81%. The lowest price level, of PLN 151, was

recorded on June 21st 2017, and the highest on January 11th 2017, at PLN 206. As at the end of December 2017, the company’s

market capitalisation was PLN 2,991m.

Grupa Azoty S.A. share price in 2016–2017

Grupa Police S.A. share price in 2016–2017

Grupa Azoty Puławy S.A. share price in 2016–2017
50



The Grupa Azoty Group’s consolidated financial results are available to the public. As required by the applicable regulations,

we  make our accounts available to  all stakeholders. Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as endorsed by  the European Union, which are consistent with the interpretations

approved by the International Accounting Standards Board. The Group’s full consolidated financial statements are available on

our website.

p y y p

See our companies’ results
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Consolidated_financial_statements_2017.pdf

See notes to the financial statements
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T H E  F U T U R E

Business strategy

With the Group’s stable financial position, we  can afford a  realistic approach to  strategic matters, while constantly working

to improve our competitiveness in the coming years. Our goal is to build the fully-integrated Grupa Azoty Group, improving the

attractiveness of its product portfolio, relying on optimised processes, and implementing innovative solutions. We are flexible

and ready to  adapt to  the changing world. In response to  developments in the economy and in our business environment,

we have drawn up the updated ‘Growth Strategy of the Grupa Azoty Group for 2014–2020’. We have reviewed our strategic

objectives and adjusted them to the current market conditions.

The update of the strategic objectives was followed by  a  revision of our corporate performance indicators, which provide

a benchmark to measure progress in the implementation and delivery of our strategy.

Strategic financial targets of the Grupa Azoty Group

[IR - Strategy and resource allocation]
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Until 2020, the Grupa Azoty Group will pursue growth in four areas which represent key challenges to us:

8%

EBIT margin

14%

EBITDA margin

Up to:

60%

Dividend payout ratio

10%

ROCE margin

10%

ROE margin

The combination of the potentials of the Group companies based in Tarnów, Puławy, Police and Kędzierzyn not only has helped

to keep the key chemical plants in Polish hands, but also has generated numerous cost synergies. The consolidation process

initiated seven years ago has yielded savings estimated at no less than PLN 710m to date. It has resulted in lower finance costs,

significant EBITDA growth, increased business stability, and improved debt financing conditions.

 

Complete the Group consolidation process

How we consolidate our plants

One benefit of a single procurement platform is
lower prices of raw materials; the consolidation of
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* Data for the period from 2011 to Q3 2017.

We  believe that the consolidation of the Grupa Azoty Group, launched in 2013, offers a  potential for further efficiencies. In

order to manage the Group more effectively, we  intend to  implement a system of management by business segments. Until

2020, the Grupa Azoty Group will continue to integrate its processes and to further consolidate:

We are optimising non-current asset management, seeking to harmonise our planning and production processes, and aligning

our operational performance and cost efficiency reporting process across the Group. We are launching a platform to exchange

information on R&D projects, which is expected to  eliminate overlapping activities carried out by  different companies and

to support sharing of outcomes of individual initiatives, thus maximising synergies.

We want to further reinforce our already strong position on the domestic and regional fertilizer market. We are aware that this

requires us to adjust fertilizer formulations as much as possible to the needs of the contemporary agriculture. The efforts will

purchasing activities generated approximately PLN
465m in savings*

•Production and maintenance synergies led to PLN
170m in savings

The optimisation of logistics (including the railway
car fleet) produced savings of PLN 69m across the
Group

sales of fertilizers,

procurement processes,

logistics,

finance,

IT,

the power segment; and more.

Reinforce leadership in agricultural solutions in Europe
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mainly focus on tailoring our product portfolio to the needs of large-scale farms, while maintaining a strong position among

small farmers.

We  aim to  develop specialty products: granulated and liquid fertilizers dedicated to  specific crops and specific customers.

We plan to add customised fertilizer lines to our fertilizer portfolio in order to respond to the needs of a specific customer or

even a specific crop.

Additionally, we place a strong emphasis on innovative IT systems for farmers and rapid agricultural analysis, technologies that

promote precise fertilization. We develop services in the field of specialised agriculture based on satellite maps, drones and

state-of-the-art technologies. We look for solutions in start-up communities or in sectoral programmes, such as BIOSTRATEG and

its continuation INNOBIO. One of our key services is SatAgro.

In order to secure the distribution of our fertilizers, we intend to gain more control over the domestic and international sales

channels for agro-products. Fertilizer sale processes will be consolidated in order to simplify and streamline the relationships

between the Grupa Azoty Group and its key customers. We are also improving the effectiveness of our production activities

and the energy efficiency of our technologies.

We seek to diversify our revenues and become less dependent on business cycles in agriculture. To this end, we are increasing

our exposure to areas unrelated to fertilizer production. Petrochemicals and plastics are our key directions. We focus on the

production of higher-margin products.

We are integrating and extending the plastics product chain. The new unit in Tarnów will allow us to produce polyamides and

their derivatives which offer a higher market potential, instead of restricting ourselves to caprolactam - a direct, unprocessed

intermediate. We are also developing our product portfolio relying on advanced PA 6-based polymers.

  Our flagship diversification project is Police Polymers. The new plant being built in Police will produce propylene and

polypropylene – plastics used in a wide range of industries. The project will allow us to increase our production capacities for

the most promising substances in the plastics segment. The construction site is located in a  special economic zone, next

to Zakłady Chemiczne Police.

In the OXO segment, we are adding non-phthalate, organic and specialty plasticisers to our product portfolio.

  We are building a  coal gasification plant which will allow us to  use domestic hard coal resources for the production of

ammonia and methanol while reducing additional consumption of natural gas. The project will support the diversification of

ammonia sources and development of our product offering based on methanol.

With our unique proprietary expertise in agro-products, the Grupa Azoty Group will become an active participant in research,

development and innovation projects in Poland. We  have established two R&D and innovation centres, in Tarnów and

Kędzierzyn. We cooperate with start-ups and support their acceleration, with Idea4Azoty being our key project in this area.

MORE INFORMATION ABOUT THE SATAGRO PROGRAM AND HOW WE SUPPORT SPACE TECHNOLOGIES

SEE THE DEVELOPMENT CHAPTER FOR SMART AGRICULTURE

SEE THE CHAPTER MISSION AND BUSINESS MODEL

Strengthen the Group’s second operating pillar through expanding non-fertilizer business

READ MORE ABOUT POLICE POLYMERS

SEE THE CHAPTER ON DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION IN NON-FERTILIZATION ACTIVITIES

SEE THE CHAPTER MISSION AND BUSINESS MODEL

Develop and implement innovations to drive growth of the chemical industry
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We carry out our activities in six specific strategy workstreams: 

Product strategy, innovation strategy, operational excellence strategy, financial strategy, and corporate management strategy.

We aim for specific outcomes:

We develop cooperation with business and science communities. We want to actively participate in open innovation initiatives.

Our ideas and products will be in line with key economic trends based on sustainable development, including the circular

economy. We are preparing to implement a project involving the launch of commercial production of graphene and to engage

in 3D printing.

MEET OUR INITIATIVE

SEE THE CHAPTER ON DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION IN NON-FERTILIZATION ACTIVITIES

SEE THE CHAPTER MISSION AND BUSINESS MODEL

improvement of organisational and production efficiency and ensuring business agility,

security in terms of supply of strategic raw materials and finance,

increased share of higher-margin products, achieved by extending our product chains in the chemicals and plastics

segment,

adaptation of our fertilizer range to the needs of innovative agriculture by providing all-in-all solutions – services based on

state-of-the-art technologies and fertilizer products dedicated to specific crops and customers,

entry into new business areas.

Below is presented the structure of the Group’s capital expenditure (including expenditure on components, major repairs and

improvements):

See our investment programme

Structure of the Grupa Azoty Group’s capital expenditure in 2016

Growth capex PLN 701.171m

Maintenance capex PLN 314.199m

Mandatory investments PLN 103.213m

Purchase of finished goods PLN 51.117m

Other (components, major repairs, other) PLN 152.981m
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In 2017, there was a slight change in the structure of expenditures: the capital expenditure decreased in relation to 2016. The

following expenditure was incurred:

Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

Polyamide plant

II 80,000 tonnes

p.a. 

320,000 310,648 99,793 
To increase efficiency of utilisation of the

Group’s caprolactam output 

Project

completed 

Fertilizer

granulation plant

II 

141,000 133,172 19,516 

To optimise the mix of fertilizer products

and to improve value added in

ammonium sulfate 

Project

completed 

 

Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

Structure of the Grupa Azoty Group’s capital expenditure in 2017

Growth capex PLN 539.610m

Maintenance capex PLN 192.148m

Mandatory investments PLN 88.94m

Purchase of finished goods PLN 46.76m

Other (components, major repairs, other) PLN 157.393m

Key projects in 2017 (all figures in PLN ‘000):

Grupa Azoty

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

[203-1]
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Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

New CHP

plant at

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn −
Phase 1 

375,059 345,663 58,500 

To restore electricity and heat generation

capacities, to increase output to satisfy

demand for electricity and heat, and

to implement solutions that ensure

compliance with the increasingly stringent

environmental requirements 

Project

completed 

 

 

Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

Exhaust gas

treatment unit and

upgrade of the EC II

CHP plant

290,885 238,993 40,926

To bring the operation of the CHP

plant's units in line with the

requirements of Directive 2010/75/EU

2018

Upgrade of the

ammonia unit 
156 ,900 156, 504 82, 639 

To reduce energy intensity of the

ammonia production process and

to improve the operational reliability

of individual process nodes 

Project

completed 

 

Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

Police Polymers: propane

dehydrogenation (PDH) unit

with related infrastructure,

and polypropylene (PP)

production unit 

5,276,829 77,936 76,936 

To construct a propane

dehydrogenation (PDH)

unit to produce propylene;

in addition to the PDH unit,

a power generating unit

will be built and

a chemicals 

terminal will be added

to the Police seaport

facilities; the project will

also involve construction of

a polypropylene (PP)

production unit and

polypropylene logistics

facilities 

2023 

 

Grupa Azoty Police

Grupa Azoty PDH Polska

Grupa Azoty Puławy
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 Project name 
Project

budget 

Expenditure

incurred 

Expenditure

incurred in

2017 

 Project purpose 

Scheduled

completion

date 

Upgrade of the existing and

construction of new nitric acid

units, neutralisation facilities

and production units for new

nitric acid-based fertilizers 

695,000 74,237 73,693 

To raise the efficiency of

nitric acid production and

improve the cost efficiency

of nitric acid-based

fertilizers 

2021 

Facility for production of

granulated fertilizers based on

ammonium nitrate 

385,000 151,811 85,205 

To improve the quality of

fertilizers by applying

modern mechanical

granulation 

2020 

Replacement of the TG-2

turbine generator set 
99,000 60,181 45,152 

To increase the efficiency

of electricity and heat

cogeneration by replacing

the TG-2 30 MWe pass-out

and condensing turbine

with a new 37 MWe

turbine as part of the

power system upgrade 

2018 

Innovation is now one of the main growth drivers for our organisation at the level of the Group as a whole as well as individual

companies. We want to be not only a beneficiary but also an active participant of the initiatives being implemented in Poland.

Our ultimate goal is to lead the way and break new ground in innovation.

To maximise the potential benefits, the R&D&I activities of the Grupa Azoty Group will be operationalised in order to establish

appropriate structures, procedures, principles and best practices, which will be coordinated at the Group level.

This initiative will be supported through further development of the existing research and development centres, establishment

of new units, and building product specialisations. Our strategy will focus on driving innovation to extend the value chain with

high-margin, low-tonnage specialty products, adapting new technologies to our needs, and refining existing processes.

We want to actively participate in open innovation initiatives, also by working with promising start-ups (through commercial

contracts and/or equity participation), implementing corporate social responsibility projects, and engaging with local

communities.

With its own research facilities, Grupa Azoty S.A. can easily improve its technologies, thereby upgrading the quality of its

products. Recognising the need for constant search for the most advanced technological solutions, the company has become

a  valued and sought-after initiator and active participant of innovative research programmes conducted by  leading Polish

scientific institutions.

Grupa Azoty S.A. cooperates with such institutions as: 

See about projects implemented by our companies

SEE SECTION GROWTH THROUGH SMART AGRICULTURE

DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION IN NON-FERTILIZER BUSINESS

See about projects implemented by our companies

Grupa Azoty S.A.
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Grupa Azoty S.A. cooperates with such institutions as: 

Akademia Górniczo-Hutnicza (AGH University of Science and Technology) 

Centrum Badań Molekularnych i Makromolekularnych PAN w Łodzi  (Centre of Molecular and Macromolecular Studies,

Polish Academy of Sciences in Łódź) 

Instytut Chemii Organicznej PAN w Warszawie  (Institute of Organic Chemistry, Polish Academy of Sciences in Warsaw) 

Instytut Chemii Przemysłowej w Warszawie  (Industrial Chemistry Research Institute in Warsaw) 

Instytut Nawozów Sztucznych w Puławach  (New Chemical Syntheses Institute in Puławy) 

Naczelna Organizacja Techniczna  (Polish Federation of Engineering Associations NOT) 

Politechnika Krakowska  (Cracow University of Technology) 

Politechnika Warszawska   (Warsaw University of Technology) 

Politechnika Wrocławska  (Wrocław University of Technology) 

Stowarzyszenie Elektryków Polskich  (Association of Polish Electrical Engineers) 

Stowarzyszenie Inżynierów i Techników Przemysłu Chemicznego  (Polish Association of Chemical Engineers) 

Uniwersytet Rolniczy w Krakowie oraz ICSO Blachownia w Kędzierzynie Koźlu 

Wyższa Szkoła Biznesu – National Louis University   (University of Agriculture in Krakow) and ICSO Blachownia in Kędzierzyn-

Koźle 

 

Grupa Azoty S.A. is perceived as a trusted and experienced partner for technology projects carried out globally, and a reliable

European provider of established patents and licences that set new industry standards thanks to the company’s top-qualified

technical staff. Its efforts focus mainly on further product diversification

Experts from Grupa Azoty Puławy are always looking for new ways to improve technologies. They combine their expertise with

the experience of a number of scientific institutions, such as the New Chemical Syntheses Institute in Puławy.

MORE ABOUT THE R&D CENTRE PROJECT IN TARNÓW

Grupa Azoty Puławy

 

Grupa Azoty Puławy’s areas of innovation:
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Developing the fertilizer portfolio by adding advanced products and application methods

Biotechnology projects implemented with the support of the New Chemical Syntheses Institute in Puławy

– use of plant material and development of sustainable products

Advanced products for the chemical industry obtained from existing products and intermediates

(melamine, caprolactam)

Optimising the production process efficiency by means of systemic and technological solutions

Grupa Azoty Puławy joined the 13th edition of Innovation Pitch, an event organised by  the Industrial
Development Agency. Its objective is to identify innovative solutions and potential partners for the company.

BEST PRACTICE
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In 2016, Grupa Azoty Puławy obtained funding for two projects in the first INNOCHEM competition for innovative chemical

industry ventures, run by of the National Centre for Research and Development.

One of the projects involves a new e-caprolactone production process based on oxidation of cyclohexanone with hydrogen

peroxide. The other focuses on the development and implementation of advanced process controls (APC) for an ammonia unit.

In 2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy received a funding recommendation for its BIO-FERTIL project in the third edition
of the sectoral programme BIOSTRATEG. The project’s objective is to develop a technology for the production of
solid mineral fertilizers containing biocomponents such as humic acids and useful microorganisms, designed
to  improve biophysical and chemical properties of agricultural and degraded soils. The design activities are
carried out by  a  consortium of the Research Institute of Horticulture, Bohdan Dobrzański Institute of
Agrophysics – Polish Academy of Sciences, Institute of Soil Science and Plant Cultivation, and the New
Chemical Syntheses Institute in Puławy.

BEST PRACTICE

In 2016, around 120 managers from Grupa Azoty Puławy attended a  training session on innovation. The
purpose of the meeting was to:

BEST PRACTICE

demonstrate the potential of the innovation ecosystem within and beyond the company,

inspire the participants to support innovation and discuss the potential for innovation inside the company,

identify tools to support the company’s development in the area of R and D as well as prospective sources of
funding for R and D and innovation activities,

demonstrate how innovation is understood in our strategy and corporate culture.
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Grupa Azoty Police launches more and more advanced mineral fertilizers that help farmers obtain high yields. These include

Polifoska Krzem and Polifoska Tytan.

In 2016, Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn obtained funding for two projects in the first INNOCHEM competition for innovative chemical

industry ventures, run by the National Centre for Research and Development.

The objective of the first project is to  develop new physical forms of fertilizers or additives and slow-release fertilizer

formulations containing micronutrients such as zinc, copper, manganese, boron, molybdenum and iron. According to the plan,

the new generation of fertilizers will be launched in 2022.

To read more on this topic, click on the expanding element Learn more*

The goal of the second project is to  obtain an innovative fertilizer through a  new biodegradable agent technology and

a  micronutrient combination method. The new product will address the needs of agricultural producers related to  the

necessity to reduce nitrogen use, improvement of fertilizer performance through enhanced nutrient absorption, and reduction

of the cost and time of fertilizer applications

To read more on this topic, click on the expanding element Learn more**

The project envisages the development of a new group of dual-function additives, distinguished by slow release of fertilizer

components into soil and capable of complexing metals. Depending on the type of fertilizer, both organic and inorganic

additives will be developed. Organic additives will be based on polymer compounds, which are capable of chelating

micronutrients. As regards inorganic additives, we plan to introduce micronutrients by ion exchange or by depositing natural or

synthetic aluminosilicates in a porous structure.

The project will involve research on a  formulation of selected fertilizer groups on a  laboratory scale, as well as the

determination of performance parameters of the resulting products, including their stability in time. Additionally, an

assessment will be made of the possibility of using the newly developed range of organic additives in high-nitrogen fertilizers

with process safety and safety in storage maintained. A trial batch of a new fertilizer formulation will be produced in the course

of the project, where it will undergo field testing in order to determine the product’s effectiveness.

Grupa Azoty Police

SEE HOW ARE FERTILIZERS ARE DEVELOPED

 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

LEARN MORE *

The project ‘New slow-release fertilizer forms containing additional biologically
important micronutrients’

LEARN MORE **

The project ‘Development of an innovative high-nitrogen ammonium nitrate
fertilizer enhanced with micronutrients in the form of chelates of biologically
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The project focuses on the development of new chelating substances supporting effective bonding of metal ions. The

substances will be 100% biodegradable and will therefore not contribute to soil pollution. In addition, it is expected that ions

of biologically important metals, as growth promoters, will be more effective and will not interfere with the action of nitrogen

as a  primary nutrient. Micronutrient additions will perform the function of promoters for specific crops (dedicated to  rape,

maize etc.).

The project is expected to produce a new type of a biodegradable chelating ligand, its production technology and a method

to combine micronutrients in the fertilizer matrix, and to lead to obtaining an innovative fertilizer with the model properties of

important metals (zinc, copper, manganese, molybdenum and iron) based on
newly developed chelating ligands’
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T H E  F U T U R E

Strategic priorities for corporate social
responsibility

We  are perfectly aware of the enormous responsibility involved in the chemical business. Sustainable development and

corporate business responsibility are of strategic importance to  us. Oversight of the process of sustainable development

management rests with the President of the Management Board and with individual Management Board members within their

respective areas of responsibility. As the pursuit of sustainable development spans all areas of the Group’s activities,

representatives from various departments and levels of the organisation are also involved in the process.

We treat our strategic approach to sustainable development as a reflection of the integrated approach to measures taken in the

area of economic efficiency, responsibility towards employees and the environment, as well as community relationships. In

2017, we updated our strategic priorities in the areas of sustainable development and social responsibility.

State Treasury companies are viewed differently from private businesses.
They have to duly represent the national interests and to demonstrate
responsibility, as signature Polish brands.

Dialogue session

[103-2]
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Results of an employee survey

We  are perfectly aware of the enormous responsibility involved in the chemical business. Sustainable development and

corporate business responsibility are of strategic importance to  us. Oversight of the process of sustainable development

management rests with the President of the Management Board and with individual Management Board members within their

respective areas of responsibility. As the pursuit of sustainable development spans all areas of the Group’s activities,

representatives from various departments and levels of the organisation are also involved in the process.

We treat our strategic approach to sustainable development as a reflection of the integrated approach to measures taken in the

area of economic efficiency, responsibility towards employees and the environment, as well as community relationships. In

2017, we updated our strategic priorities in the areas of sustainable development and social responsibility.

93% of employees surveyed see the Grupa Azoty Group as a socially responsible
company.

PILLAR 1: Product and production

Our ambition: We guarantee efficient,
innovative and environmentally-
friendly production through:

Ensuring high product quality

Investing in research and looking for innovative technology

solutions, extending the product value chain (chemicals and

plastics)

Improving the environmental efficiency and cost efficiency

of processes (reduction of energy use, emissions, water

consumption)

Ensuring safe production, transport and storage

Protecting the safety of our employees

Development of closed-loop economy
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PILLAR 2: People and relations

Our ambition: We enhance our positive
impact on the social and economic
environment through:

Supporting the development of sustainable and precise

agriculture and education of farmers

Improving customer relations

Supporting the social and economic development of towns,

cities and regions in our main facility locations

Sponsorship, social involvement and community dialogue

Growing the intellectual capital of current and future

employees, who form our immediate social environment in

our main facility locations
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PILLAR 3: Good governance

Our ambition: We strive for operational
excellence and manage risks through:

Corporate governance and compliance

Building a uniform corporate culture based on values and

ethics

Promoting employee engagement and innovation

Managing supply chain responsibility

Ensuring cybersecurity

Participating in ESG (Environmental, Social, Governance)

initiatives and reviews

Monitoring of key indicators and integrated reporting in

accordance with the world’s most recognised standards and

guidelines
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Grupa Azoty Police pursues a  management policy which guarantees that strategic goals are achieved in reliance on an

integrated management system. The system conforms to  international standards and is structured around the principles of

giving priority to customers, minimising environmental losses and the risk of hazards, as well as continuous improvement. The

management policy in place at the company sets out plans and principles for the company’s overall business, providing

a framework for setting and reviewing of strategic goals pertaining to quality, environmental protection, workplace safety, and

food safety. A policy of sustainable development strategy management will also be implemented by other Grupa Azoty Police

Group companies.

Striving to  meet the growing requirements and expectations of its customers and other stakeholders, Grupa Azoty Puławy

implemented and obtained certification for its integrated quality, environment and safety management system in 2004. The

key document of the system is the ‘Quality, Environmental and Safety Policy’, defining the company’s goals and ways to achieve

them. The main objectives relating to  the implementation of the integrated quality, environment and safety management

system that are set in the policy are to address customer requirements and expectations as regards adjustment to changing

market needs by  ensuring compliance with legal provisions governing environmental protection, safety of employees and

visitors, and to reduce the environmental footprint.

Safety, product liability and environmental impacts are the areas of special interest for Grupa Azoty S.A. The company seeks

to  minimise its negative impact on the environment and improve its management systems, promotes an open information

policy and dialogue with local communities, and cares for the safety of its personnel and immediate surroundings. The

company has an AEO (Authorised Economic Operator) certificate and participates in the SPOT and REACH systems.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn is committed to meeting the challenges posed by new developments in its environment by improving

its operating methods and integrated management system.

In 1997, the company obtained a quality management system certificate of conformity to PN-EN ISO 9002, and in 2003 it was

awarded an integrated management system certificate in the areas of quality and safety (conforming to PN-EN ISO 9001 and PN-

N-18001). In 2005, it had its integrated management system Quality*, Health, Safety & Environment* certified for conformity

to PN-EN ISO 9001, PN-N-18001 and PN-EN ISO 14001.

The company’s integrated management system is complemented by  the Responsible Care framework management system

adopted as part of the ‘Odpowiedzialność i Troska’ ® (Responsible Care) programme, which relies on a voluntary commitment

of the chemical industry to improve in the areas of environmental protection, health care and process safety.

SEE SELECTED SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS OF OUR COMPANIES

Grupa Azoty Police

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Grupa Azoty S.A.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn
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In 2006, the Laboratory Services Unit (currently operating as the Research and Innovation Department) completed an

accreditation process and obtained the Test Laboratory Accreditation Certificate of conformity to PN-EN ISO/IEC 17025.

In 2014, Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn was certified for compliance with the requirements of the Product Stewardship standard

developed by Fertilizers Europe, and obtained the Product Stewardship Certificate.

Since 2016, the company has had a maintenance process management system in place based on Total Productive Maintenance

(TPM) and Preventive Maintenance (PM) programmes.

  

Grupa

Azoty

S.A. 

Grupa

Azoty

Puławy 

Grupa

Azoty

Police 

Grupa

Azoty

Kędzierzyn 

Quality management system conforming to the ISO 9001 standard     

Environmental management system conforming to the ISO 14001

standard 
    

Occupational health and safety management system conforming to the

PN-N-18001 standard 
    

Occupational health and safety management system conforming to the

BS OHSAS 18001 standard 
      

Food safety management system conforming to the ISO 22000

standard
      

PN-EN ISO/IEC 17025:2005 management system (general requirements

for the competence of testing and calibration laboratories) 
      

Management standard meeting the requirements of the Fertilizers

Europe Product Stewardship Standard 
      

Enterprise risk management system based on ISO 31000:2012 Risk

management and COSO II Risk management standards 
       

Energy management system conforming to the ISO 50001 standard       

Energy management system        

Food safety management system        

Responsible Care framework management system        

Maintenance process management system based on Total Productive

Maintenance (TPM) and Preventive Maintenance (PM) programmes 
       

Management systems at the Grupa Azoty Group
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T H E  F U T U R E

Future challenges and scenarios

Technological advances and digitalisation are accompanied by  the growing importance of cybersecurity and the need

to explore new sales and customer interaction channels. The market is becoming more demanding with respect to customer

service methods. Growing in prominence are precision agriculture and smart specialty fertilizers. The progress in agro-sector

technologies is changing farmers’ preferences, entailing the need to  tailor products to  specific crops. Demand for resource

efficiency and environmental protection is on the rise.

We constantly monitor the environment and trends to update our strategic focus. The chemical industry’s market environment

is in the transition phase towards Chemistry 4.0. Factors that have so far been its main growth drivers, such as globalisation,

specialisation and focus on core business, have already seen their peak.

With Chemistry 4.0, it is digitalisation and circular economy that will play a  key role in the industry’s transformation. Future

opportunities will stem from the uptake of electric mobility, drive towards material-efficient construction, growing

expectations for the properties of plastics, as well as development of bioplastics and greener polysaccharide-based polymers

to replace traditional plastics and other environmentally harmful materials.

Responding to diverse customer needs

[IR - Future orientation]
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Rapid, politically induced changes in foreign exchange rates are a factor behind increased uncertainty. Fluctuating costs of raw

materials (such as crude oil and natural gas) have an impact on derivative products used by the Group as production inputs

(propylene, benzene, phenol), as do changes in coal and electricity prices.

In each area of our business, we  intend to  produce more specialty substances, customised for specific groups of users. Our

expertise and experience in the agricultural sector allow us to  consider offering crop-specific fertilizers, and even ones

formulated specifically for individual farm fields.

We  will be developing our specialisation in plastics as well. We  have been ramping up production of high-margin specialty

plastics used in the manufacture of food packaging. Polish engineers are at the forefront of Europe’s innovation in such

technologies.

At the same time, we do not forget about the traditional production profiles of our chemical plants, seeking to accommodate

the country’s continued strong demand for such products as nitrogen and compound fertilizers. It is our responsibility

to ensure the uninterrupted availability of commodity chemicals to agriculture and other industries.

We  aim to  forge and develop lasting, regular cooperative links between the chemical industry and scientific or academic

institutions specialising in related fields. We believe such links would allow the entire chemical industry in Poland to quickly

and effectively respond to the needs of customers. We support areas where such cooperation is already a fact, for example the

plastics segment.

In order to diversify its revenue sources and become less dependent on business cycles in agriculture,

the Grupa Azoty Group will step up its efforts to expand non-fertilizer business lines. The key directions of business expansion

will be in petrochemicals and plastics.

 In Police, we have launched one of contemporary Poland’s largest chemical projects to produce polypropylene, called by many

experts the most forward-looking chemical. Apart from the production unit itself, the ‘Police Polymers’ project will involve the

development of a port with a base of feedstock tanks, as well as auxiliary and logistic infrastructure. More information on the

project can be accessed here.

"Crop-specific fertilizers could be introduced, e.g. for maize or wheat."
 
"Some farmers fertilize their crops by heart. Soil samples could be tested
to apply best suited fertilizers."
 
"The company could survey farmers to determine their fertilizer needs,
and then market such products and provide relevant advice"

Tailor-made products

Developing cooperation and innovation potential

Developing business potential

DEVELOPMENT AND INNOVATION IN NON-FERTILIZER BUSINESS

GROWTH THROUGH SMART AGRICULTURE

Secure access to raw materials
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We  strive to  ensure security of supplies of our strategic raw materials. We  want to  be sure that the continuity of our

manufacturing processes is maintained, and that our capacities are fully utilised. We  diversify our sources of raw materials,

looking for new and alternative suppliers. Forming equity links with some of them is also an option.

By integrating our procurement function, we have minimised the cost of procuring supplies.

We are among the largest consumers of raw materials in Central and Eastern Europe. In 2016–2017, we spent
over PLN 7bn per year to  purchase raw materials needed to  support Group-wide production. Accounting for
about 30% of the cost of all raw materials purchased was natural gas, used to produce nitrogen fertilizers and
ammonia.

A HANDFUL OF NOTEWORTHY FACTS
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Changes in the regulatory framework require us to  bring production in line with international regulations, especially those

enacted at the EU level, including environmental standards, REACH, standards for the permissible contents of heavy metals in

fertilizers (notably the content of cadmium in phosphates), as well as production and usage of glyphosate.

Raw material Country

Potassium chloride European countries 

Coal European countries 

Natural gas European countries 

Phosphate rock North Africa 

Phenol European countries 

Propylene 

European countries 

Notrh America

Where our raw materials are sourced:

With climate change recognised as a global phenomenon, the Grupa Azoty Group has to remain in compliance with changing

regulations, related mainly to CO  emission allowances.

In order to  reduce the impact of greenhouse gas emissions at Grupa Azoty S.A.,  the energy intensity of processes was

consistently reduced in 2016–2017, resulting in lower emissions of greenhouse gases into the atmosphere. In addition, the

company has deployed a system for monitoring and reporting CO  emissions.

At Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, demand for emission allowances exceeded free allocations in 2016 and 2017. However, given the

company’s environmental protection projects (construction of a  new CHP plant), it additionally received another tranche of

free allowances in each of the two years. 4.5% of the company’s actual, verified emissions for 2016–2017 were settled with

cheaper CER units. The balance of allowances were purchased on the market in spot and forward transactions in accordance

with the Group’s common ‘CO  Emission Allowance Trading Policy’ followed by its main companies. The main objective of the

policy is to spread the price risk over time, with plans to purchase emission allowances made yearly for the next three years.

Climate change risks and opportunities

2

2

2

[201-2]

In 2017, Grupa Azoty Police imported PLN 135m worth of phosphate rock from Morocco under a contract which,
after several months of negotiations, was signed with Office Chérifien des Phosphates (OCP), the company
controlling the world’s largest phosphate resources.

BEST PRACTICE
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The ongoing transformation of the global plastics market has sparked mounting price pressures. A competitive advantage is

increasingly a matter of possessing capacities to manufacture specialty plastic and chemical products. Producers in developing

and resource-rich countries are expanding their product ranges to  include specialty categories. The world’s fertilizer

production capacities are growing, as is a  global overhang in the supply of caprolactam and polyamide. The competitive

struggle between PA6 manufacturers is intensifying.

In Poland, challenges are posed by the grey market – illegal imports and sales of counterfeit products – coupled with a growing

pressure from imported fertilizers.

Against this background, both investors and analysts are paying increasingly more attention to  environmental, social and

governance (ESG) aspects.

For Grupa Azoty Puławy, climate change is a factor driving demand for fertilizers that can be applied in a fertigation process,

combining fertilization and irrigation. The company is working to  improve the availability of this type of fertilizers. In order

to  minimise its greenhouse gas emissions, Grupa Azoty Puławy uses highly efficient catalysts to  reduce nitrous oxide (N O)

emissions and increase energy efficiency. Work is also under way to reduce the consumption of natural gas and energy utilities,

particularly high-pressure heating and process steam.

Grupa Azoty Police’s  situation with regard to  greenhouse gas emissions has largely stabilised. In the second trading period

(2013–2020), the European Emissions Trading Scheme covers five of the company’s installations. Every year, the missing

allowances are purchased by the company on the secondary market.

From 2013, the company was engaged in an energy efficiency project under the name of Azoty Pro, which was completed in

2017. As a result of these activities, it was able to obtain white certificates, which were then redeemed in connection with its

electricity sales and gas purchases as required by law.

2

To begin with, what is the role of the Corporate Procurement Department?

Andrzej Skóra, Head of the Corporate Procurement Department at Grupa Azoty S.A.: The key task of the Corporate

Procurement Department is to manage the purchases of key production inputs, or in other words – strategic raw materials. Our

overall Group-wide purchases are in excess of PLN 2.5bn (excluding gas, coal and electricity, which are purchased by  other

organisational units). Moreover, we make so-called technical purchases, mainly in Tarnów and Kędzierzyn-Koźle, which account

for a lower share of total costs, but are also extremely important to support manufacturing processes. From the point of view of

the procurement process and strategies, the thing of key importance is to ensure the optimum availability of raw materials for

the Group companies on the most favourable commercial terms. We  are a  service provider to  the internal customer, i.e.

Business Units/Production Units.

Let us recall what raw materials are needed to make the plastics and fertilizers manufactured by the Grupa Azoty Group? 

AS: Key raw materials for the production of plastics include phenol, benzene and methanol, making up the category of oil

derivatives, which also includes propylene, a major item in cost terms, which is consumed in Kędzierzyn-Koźle for the needs of

the OXO Business Unit. For the fertilizer area, ammonia and nitric acid are of key importance, as are phosphorites and

potassium chloride in the case of compound fertilizers (procured for the Police and Gdańsk plants). Liquid sulfur (consumed

by four Group companies) and sulfuric acid are also a crucial category. The Group’s great asset is that we ourselves produce

several of the key raw materials, including liquid sulfur, which is used in the production of both plastics and fertilizers. In line

with the adopted strategy, we have identified the most strategically important raw materials for the Group companies, drawing

up the so-called priority list of raw materials, representing more than 90% of all purchases made by  our department, with

a dominant share of feedstocks for the production of plastics and fertilizers.

TA: What are the main sources of raw materials for this production? Are they Polish producers or rather suppliers based

abroad? 

AS: For purely logistic reasons, the most natural sources of supplies are the domestic market and neighbouring EU countries, in

several cases also countries of the former Soviet Union. Thanks to its location, Police is also able to receive a major part of its

supplies by sea, some of them imported from Africa. Overall, two-thirds of all our supplies come from Poland and EU countries,

Read an interview on how the Grupa Azoty group has ensured security in its raw material supplies
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but Africa also accounts for a fair share (about 15–20%). Supplies are mainly delivered by rail (some of them handled by the

Group company Grupa Azoty KOLTAR), or by sea in the case of Police and Gdańsk. The majority of markets where we source

our raw materials are highly or very highly concentrated, as is typical of the B2B sector. An added constraint may come

generally from logistics, which must be adequate to  the (logistic) capabilities of the recipient companies. This is why

developing an optimal, long-term procurement strategy for this area is a considerable challenge for our procurement teams.

TA: Have you managed to diversify your sources of raw materials needed by the Grupa Azoty Group to manufacture plastics

and fertilizers?

AS: Diversification is of course among the priorities of our procurement strategy, vital from the point of view of both the

security of supplies and cost reduction. As I mentioned earlier, we purchase raw materials in highly concentrated markets, but

we make every effort to achieve the highest possible degree of diversification, optimal in terms of the Group’s requirements,

but only if there is economic rationale for doing so. As we know, competition, or in this case diversification of supplies, is the

best market regulator, its absence hampering growth. We purchase raw materials from all available domestic sources, being

Poland’s largest consumer in most cases, and we  additionally work with major foreign suppliers, predominantly producers,

many of them Europe’s or the world’s leaders in their respective market segments.

Is there a threat to the continuity of supplies of these raw materials? Or a risk that these materials might simply fall short of

demand one day? 

AS: Continuous production entails a specific context, and it is in a way a normal thing in our industry to adjust or re-schedule

production. Therefore, one of the main tasks of the Corporate Procurement Department is to develop a supply strategy that

would meet the Group’s production needs to  the fullest extent possible. There are a  number of mechanisms we  employ

to minimise attendant risks. Close cooperation and coordination of deliveries with our internal customer, i.e. Business Units, are

vitally important, as is optimal logistics. Supplies of key raw materials are guaranteed under long-term trade contracts based on

our well-established business relationships with some of the leading European and global producers. At the same time, in

some cases we  try to  partially meet demand with spot purchases to  bring down costs and take advantage of periodically

occurring oversupply. It also needs to be noted that the Group is self-sufficient with respect to many raw materials, a  factor

significantly contributing to the optimum security of supplies to meet its production needs and reducing the risk of unpunctual

deliveries, while ensuring ‘market flexibility’.

Do we hold any reserve stocks of raw materials to provide a safety net in case of any supply shortages? Is it necessary to hold

such reserve stocks at all? 

Maintaining optimal stock levels in our industry is a  complicated process, especially in the context of logistic constraints.

However, the Group’s procurement teams – drawing on their expert knowledge and extensive experience – are able

to perfectly cope with that challenge. Of course, there are certain standards in place to ensure that adequate stock levels are

held, but in practice the competence of our staff, their ability to anticipate future needs and proper organisation of supplies

are all important. This is particularly true in those areas where our storage capacities are limited, such as ammonia and phenol,

where we are often forced to accept just-in-time deliveries, as well as in areas involving significant punctuality risks (e.g. in the

case of imports from across Poland’s eastern border). Internal synergies, related to the fact that the same raw materials need

to  be supplied to  several Group companies or that the Group has its own feedstock resources, may certainly facilitate the

process, ensuring a relatively high degree of flexibility in several strategic areas. Coordination of such synergies at the Group

level is one of the key roles of the Corporate Procurement Department.

This means that some raw materials for the production of plastics and fertilizers are ordered within the Group.  What does

such intra-Group cooperation look like? 

One of the main intended outcomes (as well as benefits) of building the Grupa Azoty Group was to achieve and fully leverage

Group-wide synergies in raw material supplies. The most important of them for the Corporate Procurement Department are

seen in ammonia, liquid sulfur, nitric acid and PE packaging, as well as intra-Group supplies of caprolactam and ammonium

sulfate. Among the Group’s companies are sulfur mine operators, which gives it a major competitive advantage and security in

sulfur supplies. The Grupa Azoty Group is one of the region’s leaders in ammonia production. Apart from being internally

consumed, significant volumes of that raw material are sold on the external market, some of them in reliance on our own

terminal (the only one in Poland) to handle shipments by sea. In addition, a large group of raw materials are consumed by more

than one Group company. For these materials, we carry out a joint procurement process with a view to accumulating volumes,

achieving economies of scale and per-source synergies (the latter where various raw materials are purchased from the same

supplier for several Group companies). All these synergies are a  significant factor in strengthening the Group’s competitive

edge, materially improving the security of supplies, while being a source of meaningful cost savings.
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Can we thus conclusively state that the Group is able to sustainably source all raw materials it needs to produce plastics and

fertilizers? 

Yes, we can generally confirm that we have secured sustainable access to raw materials, especially on the supply side. The real

challenge however, in addition to strategies defined for the key areas, has to do with the ability to properly read the market,

and to forecast and analyse the macro environment. After the crisis in 2008, raw material markets have changed significantly,

with more risks emerging, associated with turbulence in the oil market, increased speculative trading, rapid short-term changes

in supply and demand, strong volatility of major currencies and many other aspects that we need to take into account when

implementing our procurement strategies. But this is exactly what makes our work so exciting!
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S T R E N G T H E N I N G  O F  T H E  M A R K E T  P O S I T I O N

Growth through smart agriculture

Without agriculture, there would be no need for our fertilizers. On the other hand, without them, modern agriculture would

not exist as it is. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we  are well aware of this interdependence. We  do not perceive farmers and

agricultural businesses as customers only – we see them as partners in a joint effort to ensure the highest possible crop yields,

healthy food, and clean environment. We  supply artificial fertilizers, supporting efficient and environmentally-friendly crop

production to make agriculture profitable and guarantee the supply of affordable food. Particular emphasis in our research and

development projects is placed on the development of new specialty fertilizers, including products that offer increased

nutrient use efficiency, which is achieved by slowing down their undesirable transformation in soil.

We appreciate the innovative nature of the Grupa Azoty Group’s products.

Currently, the Group is being referred to as an innovative company, for instance
because of its introduction of organic-mineral fertilizers containing humic acids.

Dialogue session

[IR – Presentation of results]
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We  believe in smart agriculture of the 21st century and we  want to  be part of the developments that are taking place.

We  carefully monitor market needs, and our experts also follow trends in foreign markets. We  take into account the

requirements of new plant varieties, changes in soil wealth, the amount and quality of the crops, and their intended use. In our

laboratories and R&D facilities, we are constantly working on cutting-edge solutions that help farmers achieve high yields.

See what fertilizers we offer

We  are building a  new Research and Development Centre in Tarnów. After the project is completed, it will
significantly increase the scale of the Group’s own research and development activities and will make it possible
to  verify research results at pilot-plant scale. The Centre will employ 20 specialists, including five with
a  doctoral degree. This nearly PLN 88m project will also allow us to  establish and expand cooperation with
start-up companies, research institutions, and non-governmental organisations. The new facility will be created
based on the Chemical Technology and Development Centre, an existing unit within the structure of Grupa
Azoty S.A.

A NEW R&D CENTRE
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In the nitrogen-sulfur fertilizers segment, the Group

offers products in the form of large, durable and

similarly shaped granules – Saletrosan , Polifoska

21 and Salmag z  siarką , as well as Tarnów-

produced ammonium sulfate AS 21, present on the

market for many years, and Pulsar  manufactured

at Puławy.

The chemical structure of the nitrogen-sulfur and

nitrogen fertilizer granules prevents too quick

release of nitrogen, and thus its losses in soil, while

their uniquely similar shape, mechanical resistance

and hardness protect them against caking,

crumbling, and abrasion during transport and

storage. Also, they can be quite evenly distributed

at large distances (as much as 42 metres).

Nitrogen-sulfur fertilizers

® ®

®

®

In the nitrogen fertilizer group, nitrogen comes in

three forms: the quick-release nitrite form, and the

ammoniacal and amide forms, less readily available

to  the plants. The Grupa Azoty Group offers all-

purpose ammonium nitrate fertilizers suitable for

a wide range of applications: quick-release ZAKsan

(ammonum nitrate produced in Kędzierzyn Koźle)

and Pulan , as well as the slightly slower acting

Saletrzak 27 Standard and Salmag , additionally

enriched with other necessary nutrients.

Nitrogen fertilizers

®

®

®

These include Polidap  and Polidap  Light, which

can be used for all cultivated crops: winter and

spring grains, industrial and root plants, on

grassland, as well as in the cultivation of vegetables

and fruit. Polidap  and Polidap  Light are primarily

recommended for phosphorus deficient soil. This

group of fertilizers also includes the all-purpose

concentrated phosphate fertilizer Super FOS DAR

40™, designed for plants that require good supply

of phosphorus, calcium and sulfur.

Nitrogen-phosphorous
fertilizers

® ®

® ®

The compound fertilizers group includes the

POLIFOSKA , POLIMAG  and Amofoska  brands.

The Police-produced fertilizers stand for

homogeneous composition and high concentration

of pure ingredients, while their wide range of

applications is owed to  exceptionally good

assimilability. These fertilizers are very effective

when applied in spring and autumn, as well as for

pre-sowing and top-dressing applications. Gdańsk-

produced Amofoska fertilizers are more effective

when mixed with soil. To  facilitate balanced

Compound fertilizers

® ® ®
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(For more information on our fertilizers, visit the customer zone at: https://nawozy.eu/ and

http://nawozy.grupaazoty.com/pl/main.html)

applications, the Group offers various fertilizer

formulations, with potassium content ranging from

1 to 3 kg per 1 kg of phosphorus.

Our companies from Police and Puławy are working jointly on a  technology for the production of liquid
fertilizers based on phosphorous bearing materials of sedimentary origin (phosphate rock). First, they are going
to  develop the method for obtaining ammonium polyphosphate (APP) and then the technology for preparing
mixtures of ammonium polyphosphate (APP) with UAN and other additives. As part of the project, a  pilot
production unit will be built, and the development work results will be used to  design the final production
facility. The project’s integral part, implemented in parallel with industrial research and development work, will
be field and application research, including preparation of fertilizer formulations and a  fertilizer application
technology manual for key commodity plants, obtaining final prototypes of new liquid fertilizers, drafting of the
technology documentation, logistics recommendations and directions for use of the final products.

The solution will stand out from other APP manufacturing technologies used globally. Our production will be
based on phosphoric acid obtained through extraction from phosphorous bearing materials of sedimentary
origin characterised by highly varying amounts of impurities.

BEST PRACTICE
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We  source information on what fertilizers are needed directly from farmers,

distributors, and field sales representatives as well as by  tracking foreign trends in

agriculture.

 

All test batches are carefully checked at our laboratories for quality of the granules.

See how our new fertilizers are developed

Market needs

Test production of a fertilizer

Grupa Azoty Puławy and Gdańskie Zakłady Nawozów Fosforowych Fosfory joined forces in a project to develop
a technology for the production of potassium thiosulfate using exhaust gases from the sulfuric acid plant and
production of potassium thiosulfate-based compound liquid fertilizers. In the second quarter of 2017, a grant
application was submitted with the National Centre for Research and Development under the INNOCHEM II
programme. The project received a positive assessment and was selected as eligible for funding. It is expected
to lead to the development of an innovative technology for producing liquid fertilizers using exhaust gases under
optimum operating conditions. Its implementation will make it possible to  manufacture innovative liquid
fertilizers on the basis of potassium thiosulfate solution as new products on the Polish market. In addition, it
will reduce atmospheric emissions of sulfur and nitrogen compounds.

BEST PRACTICE
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After successful completion of all the tests and

analyses, the fertilizer is introduced into the Grupa

Azoty Group’s offering.

Our scientists develop the optimum composition of a  new fertilizer taking into

account gathered information on farmers’ expectations.

 

We distribute the new fertilizer over fields and analyse the effects. Agrotechnological

tests take at least three years.

Launch of production

Development of concepts for new fertilizer formulas

Field tests
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The modern agricultural industry relies on knowledge. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we  want to  support farmers in effective

management of their farms.

Together with our trading partners, we organise free training courses for farmers. Our experts share their knowledge of crop

plants and the use and application of fertilizers. We  explain specific soil and crop requirements. We  always remain open

to questions and we are happy to see the high attendance at our meetings.

Our training projects are supplemented with the Fertilizer Encyclopeadia, providing a  wealth of knowledge, including

understandably presented practical information not only about fertilizer characteristics, but also about nutrients and soil. The

website also contains current information on agricultural product prices and farm work schedules prepared by  the Grupa

Azoty Group’s experts.

Since 2015, we have been running a unique ‘Grounded in Knowledge’ programme. (https://nawozy.eu/grunt-to-wiedza.html). Its

objective is to develop fertilization technologies and fertilizer products adapted to the needs of the Polish agriculture. Benefits

available to each farmer that qualifies for the programme include free examination of 15 soil samples (sufficient for about 50 ha

of land) in terms of the content of nutrients. As part of a  three-year campaign, we set ourselves the goal of reaching almost

2,000 farms across Poland and collecting 28,000 soil samples at as many as 17 regional chemical and agricultural stations.

Thanks to our recommendations, the farm owners can, or will be able to, learn the actual nutrient requirements of their soil and

plan the right fertilization strategy.

See how we support farmers

We provide training

We engage in research

Business and operational participants of the project

An example of our philosophy for modern fertilizers is Polifoska Krzem. The product supplies plants with
nutrients, reduces their susceptibility to  diseases and pests, and makes them more resistant to  drought. In
addition, it contains silicon, which has a positive impact on plants, and thus – through the crops – on human
body.

BEST PRACTICE
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We continue on a path of development. In 2016, we started construction of a facility for the production of granulated fertilizers

based on ammonium nitrate on our site in Puławy. Valued at PLN 385m, the project will consist of two production lines, one

to be placed in service by the end of 2018, and the other in 2020. The plant, with a projected headcount of 130, will enable the

production, packaging and shipments of CAN and granulated ammonium nitrate. The project will also include storage facilities

and a logistics centre. According to the assumptions, the plant’s daily production capacity will be 1,400 tonnes of CAN or 1,200

tonnes of mechanically granulated nitrate.

‘Grounded in Knowledge’ is very popular among farmers, but it is also appreciated by independent industry experts. During

the International Agricultural Fair CTR 2016 the project received a prestigious ‘Golden Crane of Agriculture’ award.

Although our products are active in the ground, we  are reaching for space technologies, hoping to  make

advances in developing the so-called smart farming in Poland, which is a  technological response to  the

expectations of increased productivity of agriculture as a whole. To further improve our offering in the area

of precision agriculture, we extended our agreement with the Polish start-up company SatAgro. SatAgro is

a web application that enables automatic processing of satellite data for monitoring of individual farm fields

and creation of electronic directions for the application of fertilizers (mainly nitrogen fertilizers), compatible

with precision fertilizer spreaders and sprayers of most manufacturers. With correct use of information on

the growth phase of the crops and the suggested fertilizer doses, it is possible to save from a few to more

than 10% of the fertilizer per hectare. This translates into measurable economic and environmental effects,

and the interest enjoyed by  the SatAgro service among the Grupa Azoty S.A.’s customers shows the great

potential of Polish farms for embracing innovative technologies for effective fertilization.

The technology allows direct access to  satellite observations made by  NASA, the European Space Agency,

the European Commission (Copernicus programme), and private operators. As a  result, farmers gain crop

data processing tools which can be used for individual farm fields to aid in effective farm management. With

the application offered by Grupa Azoty S.A., users can remotely monitor crop growth, assess the impact of

weather conditions and agronomic treatments, and analyse historical data.

A pilot project carried out in 2017 covered eight large-sized farms. Based on the information collected, the

SatAgro application was adapted to  the farmers’ preferences: the improvements included simplified map

 

We embrace space technologies

86



S T R E N G T H E N I N G  O F  T H E  M A R K E T  P O S I T I O N

Development and innovation in non-
fertilizer business

However, the 21st century poses new challenges to  the chemical industry. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we  acknowledge our

responsibility for developing innovations and investing resources in the most promising substances. That is why we  have

embarked on the largest investment project in the contemporary Polish chemical sector: a new propylene and polypropylene

plant in Police.

For more than 20 years, we have been extending the product chain of polyamide 6 (PA6), a structural plastic with a wide range

of applications. The Grupa Azoty Group is consistently reinforcing its position, and following the launch of our new PA6 plant

we  have become the third largest polyamide producer in the EU. Our new product mix guarantees strong diversification of

sales to different market segments:

engineering applications: automotive sector, household appliances, construction sector, etc.,

film applications: packaging materials for the food industry, pharmaceuticals,

textile applications: BCF carpet fibres, monofilaments, technical fibres.

More about the Police project
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In the chemical industry, innovation and looking for ways to meet customer expectations are inextricably linked to scientific

efforts. We believe that the competitive edge of the Grupa Azoty Group can be successfully built on knowledge, and therefore

we are expanding our research facilities with a new Research and Development Centre at Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, a project

valued at approximately PLN 13m. The Centre is expected to focus on developing new solutions involving OXO alcohols, work

on polymer modifiers to  obtain innovative plasticizers, and perform related application testing. Plans also include

development of plastics mixtures with those additives and tests of their properties.

‘Police Polymers’ is the Polish chemical sector’s largest investment project in this century. It will be a  complex comprising

propylene and polypropylene units, a port with raw material storage facilities, auxiliary facilities and logistics infrastructure. It

is seen as a strategic venture not just for Grupa Azoty Police, but for the Polish economy as a whole. Poland is one of the largest

consumers of polypropylene in the region and its imports are constantly growing. Polypropylene is a  basic plastic for

immediate use in the manufacture of end products in a number of industries.

The project will enable production of 440,000 tonnes of polypropylene annually, considerably reducing Poland’s raw material

dependence in this area. The estimated capital expenditure is EUR 1.27bn.

  The decision to  give green light to  ‘Police Polymers’ was made in reliance on positive opinions from reputable business,

technical and market advisors. Polypropylene production is of strategic importance from the perspective of the Grupa Azoty

Group. The project will make it possible to:

The complex will include a propane dehydrogenation unit (PDH) and a polypropylene unit (PP), infrastructure comprising port

facilities to unload and store propane and ethylene carried by ships, as well as auxiliary facilities, inter-unit connections and

logistics infrastructure for polypropylene. 

The construction works are scheduled to begin in late 2019. According to the project schedule, the works and commissioning

are to be completed by the end of 2022. 

The project is being implemented by PDH Polska, a special purpose vehicle of Grupa Azoty S.A. 

For more information about ‘Police Polymers’, visit the PDH website.

Polypropylene from Police – a strategic investment for the Polish economy

grow and diversify revenue across the Group,

broaden the Group’s product portfolio and flatten the business cycles,

extend the product chain in line with the Grupa Azoty Group’s strategy,

generate strong margins on a promising market of products for a broad range of applications,

leverage synergies between the ‘Police Polymers’ project and other Group plants.

There are many companies in Poland that are only seemingly engaged in R&D activities, pretending to be active in that area.

And what about Grupa Azoty S.A.?

Vice President Grzegorz Kądzielawski: The R&D&I area (Research + Development + Innovation) is one of our strategic pillars.

We are aware that growth through innovation is essential to  the development of the chemical industry. Also, we operate on

increasingly demanding markets, especially in the fertilizer segment. To keep pace with global trends, we need to work hard

to diversify our product portfolio, in particular to meet the requirements of precision agriculture. This, in turn, encourages even

more activity on our part in R&D&I and looking for new products and technologies that offer development potential to  the

Group.

Can we say then that the intensification of R&D efforts is a response to the challenges faced by the market? If so, which areas

are of particular interest to you? For instance, can you imagine having a role in the development of electromobility?

Read an interview about the R&D centre

Interview with Grzegorz Kądzielawski, Vice President of Grupa Azoty S.A.
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At Grupa Azoty S.A. we are well aware that “if you don’t move forward, you move backward.” Therefore, we look for ways not

only to  strengthen our existing product portfolio, but also to  gain a  foothold in areas in which we  have not been present

to date, such as electromobility. We could position ourselves as a future supplier of specialty chemicals for cell manufacturers,

such as cathode and anode materials, catalysts, or membranes. We  expect to  have 3-4 technologies developed in this field

within two years. We are also working on 3D-printing technology as well as the application of hydrogen in the transport sector.

Of course, there is also the entire system of precision agriculture, which we are developing in cooperation with a few start-up

companies.

How much are you spending on R&D today, and how much do you plan to allocate to that area within, let’s say, 5 to 10 years?

In accordance with the Group’s updated strategy until 2020, we  intend to  allocate 1% of our revenues to  research and

development activities. We understand the need to  increase R&D&I spending and to grow the scale of proprietary projects,

hence, for example, the construction of the Research and Development Centre in Tarnów. Last year, we  also signed an

agreement with the National Contact Point for Horizon 2020, which I hope will help us obtain funds from the EU Framework

Programme Horizon 2020 for interesting research and development projects.

What precisely is the Grupa Azoty Group going to achieve through the new Chemical Technology and Development Centre?

.The Group’s ambition is to not only benefit from national development and education efforts, but to actively participate in, or

even lead such initiatives. Our new Research and Development Centre will mainly focus on state-of-the-art materials, modern

fertilizer products and technologies, as well as pro-environmental solutions. The main outcomes of the efforts to develop the

R&D infrastructure in Tarnów will be expansion of the Group’s own research activities and a new environment to verify research

results on a pilot-plant scale. A part of the activities that are now outsourced can be carried out in-house. We will be more self-

sufficient. The Centre will include a pilot-plant hall to test solutions on a bench - or pilot-plant scale before we think about going

full scale. Our humic acid pilot plant is a good example. More than 70% of Polish soils are deprived of the humus layer. We have

taken up the challenge to address this issue. Until now, we have imported humus from abroad. Today we are about to launch

a pilot plant for its production. We have high hopes – it is going to be one of the first plants to be launched within the R&D

centre. Still, there are more in the pipeline. Other expected benefits of the project will include establishing and expanding

cooperation with start-ups, research institutions and non-governmental organisations.

Do your R&D activities fit into any broader institutional context? Like, for example, cooperation with state institutions.

Both the R&D centre in Tarnów and other activities undertaken by the Group in the area of innovation are perfectly aligned

with the national programme for sustainable development and the Strategy for Responsible Development prepared by Prime

Minister Mateusz Morawiecki. Obviously, we would not be able to carry out such far-reaching projects without the support of

state institutions and a number of legislative measures taken, for instance, by the Ministry of Science and Higher Education,

which provide for stepping up activities aimed at the commercialisation of research and partnerships between science and

business.

Let’s talk about Idea4Azoty. In what way is it different from other acceleration programmes?

What makes it unique is that it is the only programme of this type on the market that goes beyond financial support. We offer

a  mix of support measures for potential beneficiaries. These might include legal assistance, mentoring, commercialisation

support, or the possibility of testing a  product or solution using our facilities or laboratories before we  even talk about

industrial implementation. In other words, the Idea4Azoty  programme comprehensively bridges the gap that exists on the

Polish market between ideas and industry.

How popular is the programme?

It attracts a  lot of interest. We  have already completed the first evaluation of applications and we  are receiving new ones

because, as you might remember, applications are accepted on an ongoing basis. Once a month, our team reviews the projects

and decides which should be proceeded with at the Grupa Azoty Group.

Can Idea4Azoty serve as a driving force in the development of new areas of activity for the Group?

It can and I  hope it will. I  also count on good projects for new chemical technologies emerging as part of the programme,

because chemistry is the core industry of our Group. Personally, I  feel we  could do  more as regards good new chemical

projects.
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With financial support from the National Centre for Research and Development, in the coming years our experts from the

Kędzierzyn-based facilities will be able to engage in creating technologies for the production of specialty esters. The project

involves development work on a pilot line, where a new technology will be applied on a pilot-plant scale to obtain batches of

product prototypes. As a  result, industrial-scale production will be launched. One advantage of the new plasticizers is their

good performance characteristics, such as improved durability. Moreover, the planned production will have a  reduced

environmental footprint. 

We invest in our own R&D facilities but we remain open to collaboration with others. In 2017, we signed a letter of intent with

KGHM Polska Miedź on joint development of technologies for physical, chemical and thermal processing of mineral resources.

The cooperation will cover, among other areas, the manufacture of catalysts using rhenium, which will enhance the catalyst

performance and thus improve process parameters, the application of lithium in cathode materials, and testing of physical and

chemical methods for beneficiation of minerals. The joint activities will also involve investigation of the potential for the

development of magnesite deposits and testing of highly biodegradable anti-dust and anti-caking agents at KGHM’s Żelazny

Most Tailings Storage Facility.

We are also interested in cooperation with promising start-ups.

Grupa Azoty S.A. is running a modern accelerator programme

Idea4Azoty, which provides a  platform for sharing highly

innovative ideas and combines crowdsourcing, networking and

the start-up community. The project brings together the

potentials of academic and research institutions and business.

Idea4Azoty  is the first initiative of this type on the Polish

market. Its beneficiaries will include not only the chemical

industry, but also providers of new technologies and services in

such areas as environmental protection, agriculture,

engineering and biotechnology. Applications may be sent via

the website www.idea4azoty.pl.

 

Since the project’s launch in late 2017, 19 applications have

been submitted, eight of which have qualified for the second

phase. 

Types of beneficiaries
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Next year, Grupa Azoty S.A. is going to  start construction of an R&D Centre. How would you comment on the decision

to engage in this project?

I am very happy about the decision to build the Centre, and that our company has obtained EU funding for this project. When

I started my job at the company in 1995, it was in a similar unit, with similar objectives. While the scale of the Central Research

Laboratory was not as large as the scale that will be hopefully achieved by  the new Centre, it was established to  pursue

research topics, too. Its closure was a disadvantage to our plant.

Why?

For years now, we have outsourced research and development activities to scientific institutions and universities. The studies

we receive are usually incomplete. They are often deficient, for various reasons, such as lack of understanding of our media,

matrices, technology solutions in place, or simply the infrastructure we have. What is also important is that in such situations

we have to divulge the knowledge we have acquired to third parties. Therefore, the Centre is a long-needed 

Read an interview about the R&D sector

Interview with Ewa Pankalla, Director of the Research and Innovation
Department

3D printing is one of the fastest-growing new technology industries. This is largely due to the availability of more
and more durable but less expensive materials. With 3D printers, plastics can be used to make components not
only for toys, but also for articles with much more serious applications. 3D-printed components are now used in
the automotive, aerospace and clothing industries, and many more. In 2017, Grupa Azoty S.A. commenced work
to expand its product range with polyamide 6-based materials for 3D printing. 

BEST PRACTICE
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improvement to our plants. We have many clever people here who can contribute to  its creation with their experience and

professional expertise.

Our employees have a  whole lot of ideas that we  could develop in-house, without outsourcing, but we  do lack research

facilities, apparatus and equipment. The test and evaluation facilities of the Laboratory Services Unit are heavily used to meet

our production requirements, so we  have been able to  carry out research there to  a  limited extent only. Until now, if any

business unit had a  research problem and the apparatus was available, we  could use it. But only occasionally. To  support

continuous work, we need new equipment dedicated specifically to that purpose. That is why we need to have our own R&D

centre. I believe that no company will grow without research.

Will you have to hire staff from the outside, or do you already have the right people on board?

We have experienced chemists, both analysts and technologists, who could support the new unit. Our people are experts in

their respective fields, they know every inch of the technologies we  use, they have developed our solutions and some

modifications. I believe that our employees are our greatest asset. Twelve new jobs is a lot and still not enough. Many educated

young people knock on our door because we are still an attractive place to work. However, aside from them, the Centre will

need those who have acquired their experience for decades. It is important that they share their expertise with younger

colleagues. This way the project will drive the continuity of human resources in laboratories.
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E N S U R I N G  S A F E  P R O D U C T I O N  F O R  P E O P L E  A N D  T H E  E N V I R O N M E N T

Ensuring product quality and safety in
the value chain

The operating priorities: high quality and care for technical safety and the environment, are effectively monitored. The

integrated management system is structured around the principles of giving priority to  customers, reducing environmental

losses and mitigating the risk of hazards, and continuous improvement.

One of the basic principles underlying our operations is responsibility for all activities related to the manufacture of products

across the entire supply chain. Therefore, as part of our membership in Fertilizers Europe, we  run the Group-wide Product

Stewardship programme, based on international regulations and quality standards. Under the programme, all the leading

companies of the Grupa Azoty Group are obliged to  ensure that their fertilizer products, as well as all raw materials and

intermediates used in their production, are processed, transported, stored, distributed and used in a  responsible manner,

We are proud of our products. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we are all committed to building the strength of our brand, realising

that the quality of our product and service portfolio is the hallmark of the entire Group and each of its members. We believe

that a way to ensure that production continuously satisfies the highest-quality standards is highly-qualified personnel, who can

rely on well-proven management systems to discharge their responsibilities. The Group pursues a management policy which

guarantees that strategic goals are achieved in reliance on an integrated management system conforming to  international

standards.

[103-2]

[416-1]
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causing no harm to human health and safety or to the natural environment. Both in 2016 and 2017, 100% of our key product

categories were assessed for their potential impact on consumer health and safety and on the natural environment.

 

In 2017, Grupa Azoty Group companies were awarded certificates in Product Stewardship for best practices in
the management of the fertilizer life cycle. Product management audits are performed every three years
by  a  certification body. The certificates cover the production and sale of nitrogen fertilizers, plastics, plastic
products, catalysts, organic and inorganic chemicals, and heat and electricity, as well as R&D and laboratory
services, design and development of chemical products and plastics, and oversight of joint operations of the
Grupa Azoty Group companies.

BEST PRACTICE
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The products and materials produced by the Grupa Azoty Group are sold, inter alia, to food producers and farmers. Ensuring

their highest quality and safety is therefore of utmost importance as it has a  direct impact on the safety and health of the

consumers of food products made of crops grown by our customers.

SEE SELECTED SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS OF OUR COMPANIES

Neither in 2016 nor in 2017 were there any incidents of non-compliance with regulations and/or voluntary codes concerning

the health and safety impacts of products and services on customers.

Food security at the Grupa Azoty Group:

[413-2]

[416-2]
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The key document in that area is the Group-wide ‘Grupa Azoty Food Safety Policy’. Implementation of this policy is ensured

through:

Offering fertilizers supporting
efficient and environmentally-

friendly crop production
to make agriculture profitable
and guarantee the supply of

affordable food

Contributing to the security of
food supply, thereby

supporting human
development and reducing

poverty

Preventing degradation of soil
and restoring it to original

condition with a view
to achieving wider

environmental goals, such as
prevention of desertification

Eliminating (wherever
possible) or mitigating the

negative environmental
impacts of fertilizers and
agricultural production

ongoing monitoring of the parameters affecting the quality and safety of products,

compliance with high standards of hygiene at the stages of production, storage and distribution,

consistent upgrades and improvement of production infrastructure and technology,

improving health and safety awareness among the staff,

managing internal and external communication so as to exchange information about hazards to product safety in the food

chain.
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Neither in 2016 nor in 2017 were any penalties imposed on any of the Grupa Azoty Group companies for non-compliance with

the laws or regulations regarding the supply and use of products at any stage of their life cycle.

Our mission is to  ‘create value for Grupa Azoty and the national economy by  delivering safe, useful and innovation-driven

chemical products’. ‘Safe’ is the very first adjective we  use to  describe our products, as safety does indeed come first in all

aspects of our business.

The key document governing production safety across the Grupa Azoty Group is the EU REACH (Registration, Evaluation and

Authorisation of Chemicals) Regulation. We fully comply with its requirement to register manufactured or imported chemical

substances and assess their safety for humans and the environment. Under the Regulation the Group companies are required

to provide information on the safe use of substances on their own or in mixtures (as part of other products); such information is

communicated down the supply chain to  downstream users by  means of a  mandatory document form (material safety data

sheet).

All Grupa Azoty Group companies comply with the duty to  register manufactured substances, and prepared and published

appropriate material safety data sheets (or equivalent documents) in accordance with the REACH Regulation for all products

placed on the market. In 2017, we updated those documents on an ongoing basis and continued the process of consolidation of

all REACH measures and closer cooperation across Grupa Azoty Group companies.

We also pay particular attention to ensuring safe transport of manufactured intermediates and products. When transporting

particularly hazardous materials, we apply the European Agreement concerning the International Carriage of Dangerous Goods

by Road (ADR, L’Accord européen relatif au transport international des marchandises dangereuses par route). With the safety of

local communities and the environment in mind, our companies provide support for their trading partners in the event of

accidents in transport of hazardous materials. Grupa Azoty S.A., Grupa Azoty Police and Grupa Azoty Puławy are part of the

SPOT System of Assistance in Transport of Hazardous Materials, which was established to  improve the safety of hazardous

materials transport in Poland, and in case of any incidents – to facilitate effective elimination of accident consequences by joint

efforts and measures of the national rescue and fire services and the SPOT members.

All companies of the Grupa Azoty Group have the necessary monitoring systems, safeguards and procedures in place

to  prevent accidents and to  contain their consequences. These include preventive plans, production process controls,

particularly hazardous work procedures, emergency/accident response, monitoring of health and safety at work, operational

controls, assessment of compliance of the adopted safety objectives with applicable standards, and storage procedures.

We  uniformly mark and provide complete descriptions of products made across all segments of our business. All our

packagings bear information about the products they contain (product trade name), manufacturer (name and address) and

product weight. In the case of fertilizers, product information provided includes designation of fertilizer type, the ‘EC Fertilizer’

marking (if applicable), content and form of nutrients, as well as directions for use and basic safety precautions. If a fertilizer is

sold in bulk, an accompanying document is made, containing all the required label elements.

The packaging of feed additives also bears a  label compliant with the requirements applicable to  feeds and feed additives,

containing information on dosage and storage life.

For chemical substances and mixtures classified as hazardous and falling within the scope of the Classification, Labelling and

Packaging (CLP) Regulation, the disclosure requirements are broader. Their labels must include a  product identifier, hazard

pictograms and a signal word, as well as hazard and precautionary statements and storage and transport information.

Neither in 2016 nor in 2017 did the Grupa Azoty Group report any cases of non-compliance with the applicable regulations and

voluntary codes concerning product information and labelling.

Ensuring safety of our products

[419-1]

[413-2] [A300-2] [304-2]
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The systems implemented by the Grupa Azoty Group companies include:

Industrial accident prevention and high risk establishment notification programme

PN-EN ISO/IEC 17025:2005 management system (general requirements for the competence of testing  

 and calibration laboratories)

Automotive industry quality management standard implemented in accordance with the ISO/TS

16949:2009 standard

Management standard compliant with the Fertilizers Europe Product Stewardship programme

The systems implemented by the Grupa
Azoty Group companies include:
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E N S U R I N G  S A F E  P R O D U C T I O N  F O R  P E O P L E  A N D  T H E  E N V I R O N M E N T

Process efficiency and environmental
impact

Five key companies of the Grupa Azoty Group 
Capex on environmental projects in 2017 

 [PLN ‘000] 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 10,349

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 70,065

Grupa Azoty Police 65,250

The chemical industry is one of the sectors with the strongest impact on the natural environment. This area represents

a particular challenge for the Grupa Azoty Group as a whole, and also imposes special responsibility on us. All our companies

operate in compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations, and on the basis of appropriate permits.

However, given the scale and scope of our activities as well as the potential we have, in our environmental protection efforts

we want to go beyond what is strictly required by law. Every year, we spend millions on installations that reduce our negative

impact on nature.

[103-2] [A300-1]
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Five key companies of the Grupa Azoty Group 
Capex on environmental projects in 2017 

 [PLN ‘000] 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 52,500

Grupa Azoty Siarkopol 550,000

Total for five key companies of the Grupa Azoty Group 748,164 

Grupa Azoty S.A. collaborates with Reliability Solutions, a  company established by  graduates of the AGH
University of Science and Technology. Our joint effort led to  a  test implementation of a  modern PdM class
RSIMS system at the V KGZ unit. Using modern artificial intelligence algorithms (e.g. Deep Learning), the
system analyses vast amounts of data (e.g. sensor data, maintenance data, environmental data) to identify any
indicators of deteriorating technical condition of the monitored machinery. The system monitors in real time
about 300 process parameters of a unit and detects complex multi-level interdependencies which may indicate
an imminent failure. The algorithms can also be used to identify probable causes of failures, allowing us to find
the optimum way to operate the installations.

By applying PdM (Predictive Maintenance) techniques we can not only improve technical safety, but also reduce
the number of unplanned stoppages, improve availability and, consequently, production efficiency, which is of
paramount importance, especially in the case of critical equipment.

BEST PRACTICE
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See what investments have been made by our Group companies to increase
environmental efficiency:

Our investment projects:

Grupa Azoty Police spent more than ten million złoty on environmental projects at the Pigments Business

Unit, Poland’s only plant producing titanium white. The lion’s share of this expenditure related

to installations used for the removal of sulfur oxides from production gases: two modern desulfurisation

reactors equipped with a new, more efficient catalyst, were added to the existing set of two. In order

to reduce the pollutant emissions, the filters were modernised by modifying their technology, the way

they are mounted, and the type of fabrics used. As a result, sulfur oxide emissions were reduced by at

least five times, and are now about three times lower than the limit imposed under the Industrial

Emissions Directive (IED).

In 2017, modernisation of the ammonia unit was completed. The work had been undertaken to reduce

the energy intensity of the ammonia production process.

Upgrade of the urea granulation tower.

The company is in the process of upgrading its phosphoric acid production technology by implementing

the dihydrate hemihydrate DA-HF process to replace the DH dihydrate production method. This

technology change will improve the efficiency of phosphoric acid production while reducing

consumption of thermal energy and lowering the volumes of waste phosphogypsum generated in the

process and phosphorous consumed as a process input.

Grupa Azoty Police has been gradually replacing all compressors used in its operations – in 2017, work

was commenced on replacement of compressor no. 1 in zone 266. The new devices consume more than

35% less electricity than the ones used so far, which translates into annual electricity savings of 3.4

thousand MWh.

In 2016, modernisation of the condensate management system at the sulfuric acid unit was completed,

resulting in a 38% drop in steam heat consumption.

In 2017, construction of a flue gas desulfurisation system at the power centre was completed and start-up

of the EC II CHP plant commenced. The desulfurisation process is based on the wet ammonia scrubbing

method, a by-product of which is ammonium sulfate used as a component of mineral fertilizers. (See

diagram ‘Flue gas desulfurisation using the wet ammonia scrubbing method’). Given the form of sulfur

present in this compound (directly available to plants), ammonium sulfate is one of the most valuable

sources of sulfur in the manufacture of fertilizers.

Grupa Azoty Police
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The method of flue gas scrubbing with the use of ammonia water is based on conversion of sulfur dioxide

into ammonium sulfate (IV) in a reaction with ammonia and subsequent oxidation of the resultant ammonium

sulfate (IV) to  ammonium sulfate (VI). With this method, a  mineral fertilizer, i.e. ammonium sulfate, can be

obtained without producing sulfuric acid (VI). In the process, gases are scrubbed of SO , SO , HCl, HF, and

similar components.
2 3

In 2017, two cameras were installed in the falcon nest 80 meters up one of the flue stacks at the Police-based
company. Thanks to the online broadcast, everyone can watch the life of the bird family – the birth of the chicks,

BEST PRACTICE
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their first attempts at flying, or learning how to hunt. Observation of the falcon nest is conducted as part of
a project implemented by the Council of the Peregrine Falcon Restitution Programme in Poland. The observation
is documented, and the chicks are ringed.

Bird lovers can also watch dozens of species in the vicinity of large phosphogypsum heaps in the Grupa Azoty
Police’s wastewater treatment plant zone. Artificially created water reservoirs and the surrounding meadows
became home to nearly 180 bird species, including almost 80 wetland bird species, such as bitterns, common
goldeneyes, grebes, red kites, cormorants, corncrakes and aquatic warblers. However, the most precious jewel
among the winged inhabitants of the wastewater treatment plant zone is the common shelduck, one of the few
birds nesting underground. Common shelducks live in deserted fox, badger or rabbit burrows or other holes.

The production and use of nitrogen fertilizers results in greenhouse gas emissions, but with technological
advancements and rational management of energy and other resources their volumes, and thus the carbon
footprint, can be reduced. Examples of efforts aimed at limiting the carbon footprint of our products include the
project ‘Support for Low-Carbon Agriculture Capable of Adapting to Climate Change Now and Within the 2030
and 2050 Timeframes (LCAgri)’, co-financed by the National Centre for Research and Development. Its purpose
is to improve efficiency of resource utilisation by implementing innovative low-carbon agricultural solutions and
promoting sustainable application of mineral fertilizers by Polish farmers.

The project is carried out by  a  consortium of Grupa Azoty Puławy, the Institute of Soil Science and Plant
Cultivation, the Institute of Agrophysics at the Polish Academy of Sciences, and the Environmental Protection
Institute.

BEST PRACTICE
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Our investments:

Modification of the power generating unit concept – instead of the previously planned combined cycle

gas turbine (CCGT) unit, the company decided to build a coal-fired unit, which will produce lower CO

emissions.
2

Modernisation of catalytic and catchment gauzes helped reduce N O emissions from nitric acid

production. In 2016, the emission rate was 0.97 kg N O per tonne of HNO ; after the modernisation in

2017 it was reduced to 0.68 kg per tonne of HNO .

2

2 3

3

Air emissions were also reduced in 2016 by replacing the ammonium carbamate condenser in the

synthesis section of the urea II unit and heat exchangers in the ammonia 1 unit, installing new nitric acid

circulation pumps in the K02 absorption column, new boiler feed water pumps in the nitric acid unit, and

a 1,900 Nm /h hydrogen compressor. In 2017, the structural filling of the cyclohexanone rectification

column was replaced, the unit for CO  absorption in potassium carbonate solutions on line 1 of the

ammonia 1 unit was upgraded, and the burners in the reforming furnace of the ammonia 2 unit were

replaced.

3

2

The project ‘Wastewater Collection and Recirculation at Urea I Unit’.

Modernisation of boiler no. 2 at the CHP plant, which is expected to support its efficient operation for the

next 15 to 20 years with reduced nitrogen oxide emissions. The modernised boiler no. 2 and the

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Grupa Azoty Puławy monitors the volumes of gaseous pollutants and particulate matter emissions. The
emissions are monitored on a  24/7 basis at three locations, allowing the company to  assess the impact of
pollutants generated during everyday operation of its units.
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previously upgraded boilers no. 4 and no. 5 will be the principal generating units of the CHP plant, with

boiler no. 6 to be constructed at a later stage. Work on modernisation of boiler no. 2 is planned

to continue until the end of 2018.

Replacement of the TG-02 turbine generator set at the CHP plant.

Reduction of the use of ground water and water from the Kurówka river thanks to the construction of

a new, more efficient water demineralisation plant and closing of the 50-year-old, energy-intensive one.

Modernisation of pumping station no. 3 that feeds surface water from the Vistula river to Grupa Azoty

ZAP, consisting in replacement of old pumps with inverter pumps, which will contribute to reduced

consumption of surface water from the Vistula river.

Construction of a system for drainage of the decarbonisation sludge and recirculation of the drained

water into the decarbonisation plant to reduce the consumption of water abstracted from the Kurówka

river.

[307-1]

Tree for a Bottle’ is the company’s most popular project, initiated under the ‘Responsible Care’ programme and
continued for 13 years now. The campaign combines environmental education with social activity and care for
the natural environment and for people’s neighbourhoods. It is addressed to  primary school and preschool
children, who play in groups trying to collect as many empty plastic bottles as possible. The bottles are recycled,
and trees received in return for the bottles are planted on the premises of the participating schools as reminders
of the campaign. The winning groups receive financial and non-financial prizes. The project partners include
the Municipal Services Company of Puławy and the Puławy County Governor Office. By 2016, in 12 editions of
the ‘Tree for a Bottle’ campaign, the participants collected a total of 5,676,650 bottles and planted 3,354 trees
in their local neighbourhoods. The 2017 edition attracted more than two thousand students of 26 educational
institutions from all over the county (17 primary schools and 13 kindergartens). The participants collected
a record number of more than one million plastic bottles.
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Our investment projects:

In 2017, work related to the launch of a new treatment plant for flue gas from the EC II CHP plant was

nearing completion. This investment project, worth about PLN 90m, will have a positive effect on air

quality in Tarnów and the Tarnów region. Concentrations of nitrogen dioxide and sulfur dioxide in exhaust

gases will be reduced to less than 200 mg/Nm , and particulate matter concentrations will drop to less

than 20 mg/Nm . Flue gas denitrification will be a two-stage process: the first stage will involve

optimisation of the combustion process, and the second stage will consist in reducing nitric oxides

content in flue gases using the NOx selective catalytic reduction (SCR) technology. The company has

opted for the wet magnesium scrubbing method in the desulfuriation process because it produces

3

3

Grupa Azoty S.A.

In 2016–2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy faced sanctions for non-compliance of its operations with environmental
laws and regulations, except for Grupa Azoty Puławy. In 2016, the company had to carry out necessary repairs
that required shutting down the desulfurisation unit. As a result, the permitted level of sulfur dioxide emissions
from the CHP plant was exceeded and a fine of PLN 227 thousand was imposed (decision of March 30th 2017).
Similarly, in 2017 Grupa Azoty Puławy decided to stop its flue gas desulfurisation unit to remove defects inside
the absorber and carry out an inspection of the booster fans. In order to minimise emission limit exceedance,
only low-sulfur fuel was fed to the operating boilers. The unavoidable exceedance of the limits of sulfur dioxide
and particulate matter emissions from the CHP plant resulted in the imposition of a fine of PLN 408 thousand
on the company (decision of March 19th 2018).

MODERNISATION CHALLENGES – MAJOR ISSUES
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magnesium sulfate, which is a valuable fertilizer. The project is co-financed under the Norwegian Financial

Mechanism 2009–2014.

In 2017, Grupa Azoty S.A. initiated a new project – ‘Collection of Slag from the EC II CHP Plant Boilers’; the

slag may be then used to manufacture building materials, helping to reduce the amount of stored furnace

waste.

Projects to reduce consumption of energy carriers in production processes and ensuring more efficient

use of available resources, including ‘Heat Recovery from the Beckmann Rearrangement Process – Phase

2’ and ‘Reduction of Steam Consumption in the Caprolactam Production Process’.

Construction of a sanitary wastewater treatment system at the Dobrów chemical production plant.

Grupa Azoty S.A. monitors air quality at five sites across Tarnów on a continuous basis. The locations of the
measurement sites have been selected so as to cover the wide area that may be affected by particulate matter
and gas emissions from the plant.

BEST PRACTICE
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In 2017, work continued on the second stage of upgrade of the central mechanical and biological

wastewater treatment plant.

The company reduced emissions from its TKV nitric acid production plant – the catalyst basket was

repaired twice, a fresh catalyst for nitrous oxide reduction was provided, and gauzes were added. Also,

the entire set of catalytic gauzes was replaced.

The activities conducted by the Grupa Azoty Group inherently involve consumption of natural resources, both for the purpose

of generating energy for the organisation’s internal needs and for the core business purposes, that is production of fertilisers

and chemical products.

See what raw materials we use

Materials used by weight or volume

[301-1]

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn
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At Grupa Azoty S.A., the main source of heat and electricity for the production units is a coal-fired EC II CHP plant, which is

planned to  be gradually modernised. The scale and scope of any upgrade work will be adapted to  the changing legal

framework, including in particular regulations on environmental impacts, as well as changes in demand for energy carriers from

the production units.

The plants of Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn use energy carried by process steam with a pressure of 7 MPa, 1.5 MPa, 0.6 MPa and 0.15

MPa, generated in six fine coal-fired boilers. Part of the energy is generated in four turbine generator sets, while the balance is

purchased from external sources.

The energy requirements of Grupa Azoty Police are partly satisfied with internal production: electricity from power generators

at two CHP plants, and steam generated at the EC II CHP plant and in sulfur boilers at the sulfuric acid division. Energy is also

purchased from external sources. The company’s fuel consumption reduction policy is based on an ISO 50001-compliant energy

management system implemented in 2013.

Grupa Azoty Puławy consumes approximately 1.28 TWh of electricity and 14.1 PJ of heat per year. The company has its own CHP

plant, which covers 100% of its heat needs and 46% of its electricity needs. The CHP plant is hard coal-fired. It generates the

process utilities for the company’s production units, including process steam, electricity, demineralised water, decarbonised

water, process heat and heat for heating purposes, which is also supplied to the town of Puławy.

Energy

[103-2]

A new CHP plant is planned to be built at Puławy. It is expected to produce lower emissions of carbon dioxide,
while NOx emissions will be reduced by  the use of a  flue gas desulfurisation system. The entire energy
generation system is to be better aligned with the company’s actual needs. It is anticipated that the project, with
a budget of PLN 99m, will raise the efficiency of electricity and heat cogeneration through replacement of the 30
MWe TG-2 pass-out and condensing turbine with a new 37 MWe turbine as part of the power system upgrade.
In addition, steam boiler no. 2 at the company’s CHP plant is to  be modernised in order to  reduce NOx
emissions (project with a budget of PLN 70m). Once modernised, this boiler and boilers no. 4 and no. 5 will be
the principal generating units for the company’s CHP plant.
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All Group companies take various measures to reduce their energy consumption. In 2016-2017, the four largest companies of

the Group implemented a number of projects for that purpose, including:

 

  Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

Year 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Total 639,557.0 580,769.0 476,056.6 493,788.6 1,456,403.0 1,479,652.0 3,023,033.0 3,060,954.0

 

Category

of

energy

carrier 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Steam

heat* 
374,800.00 1,322,900.00 458,584.00 443,996.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Process

gas 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,400.00 

Natural

gas 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,102.00 1,700.00 1,309.00 

Total electricity consumption at the Grupa Azoty Group:

heat recovery from the Beckmann rearrangement process – Phase 2 – annual savings estimated at PLN 2.55m,

replacement of transformers in 6/0.4kV transformer stations (‘Młynownia’ and ‘Pompownia T’) – annual savings estimated at

PLN 322 thousand,

installation of a low-pressure turbine generator set at the EC II CHP plant – annual savings on lower purchases of electricity

from external grid estimated at PLN 1.6m,

upgrade of cold insulation – annual savings estimated at PLN 60 thousand,

acquisition of white certificates – annual savings estimated at PLN 100 thousand.

Energy consumption within the organisation, including information on the type
of raw materials used

Fuels used to generate electricity by category of energy carrier (GJ)

[302-4]

[302-1]
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Category

of

energy

carrier 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

 MEAK 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 99,469.00 74,521.00 0.00 

 Fuel-

grade MEK 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 16,645.00 

 Fine coal

and

thermal

coal 

405,007.00 1,321,524.00 1,498,778.00 1,470,495.00 3,815,604.00 2,041,315.00 2,827,896.00 4,1

 Fuel oil 484.00 1,556.00 1,818.00 2,643.00 0.00 0.00 14,197.00 2

Total  780,291.00   2,645,980.00   1,959,180.00   1,917,134.00   3,920,175.00   2,117,536.00   2,864,447.00   4,1

 

  

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azo

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

ELECTRICITY,

HEAT, COOLING

AND STEAM

PURCHASED

FOR

CONSUMPTION

(GJ) 

1,271,909.17 1,032,142.47 1,473,830.30 1,552,182.19 3,680,128.00 4,325,221.00 667,197.00 5

ELECTRICITY,

HEAT, COOLING

AND STEAM

GENERATED

BY THE

ORGANISATION

(GJ) 

6,237,130.60 6,892,410.52 9,332,085.75 9,483,949.20 17,513,086.00 17,120 249.00 2,942,725.00 3,

ELECTRICITY,

HEAT, COOLING

AND STEAM

SOLD BY THE

ORGANISATION

(GJ) 

520,556.00 554,271.00 432,364.10 468,786.86 1,339,112.00 1,384,653.00 268,944.00 3

TOTAL ENERGY

CONSUMPTION

WITHIN THE

ORGANISATION

(GJ) 

6,988,483.77 7,370,281.99 10,373,551.95 10,567,344.53 19,854,102.00 20,060 817.00 3,340,978.00 3,

    

up

by approx.

1% on 2015

 

  

down

by approx.

6% on 2015 

  
up by approx.

2% on 2015 
  b

17

Total savings from reduced energy consumption and improved energy efficiency (PLN)
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  Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azo

Year 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Total 
12,451

,000.00 
3,095,000.00 5,279,000.00 6,885,000.00 10,742,834.00 8,546,218.00 352,000.00 3

 

Total energy savings for the Grupa Azoty Group were as follows: PLN 28,824,834,00 in 2016 and PLN 22,503,218.00 in 2017.

 

  
Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 

Grupa Azoty

Police 
Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

Year 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Total 27.99 39.27 28.59 50.82 41.22 42.00 57.61 44.44 

Relative

to 2015 
  up by 6%   

up

by 21% 
  

down

by 0.29% 
  

down by approx.

20% 

 

Water is used by our plants primarily for production purposes. Throughout the Group, we seek to reduce its consumption as far

as practicable, and where possible we implement water recycling solutions.

At Grupa Azoty S.A., water taken from the industrial water system and used at the Luwy unit is then recirculated into three

cooling circulation systems to  compensate losses. Unused excess water is fed back to  the industrial water system. Steam

condensates are returned from the production units to  the condensate processing facility, where they undergo the

demineralisation process and then are fed back into the system for further use in the form of pre-processed water

(demineralised water). This water is used in waste heat boilers. In addition, it is also used in the tarnoform unit start-up process

and to compensate losses in the heating water network. Any excess is returned into the demineralised water system.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn has a  system in place whereby industrial water is produced from a  mixture of treated industrial

wastewater, storm water and spent cooling water.

At Puławy, a  solution has been implemented which enables the company to  reuse some of the spent cooling water – it is

returned to the system that supplies the plant with surface water abstracted from the Vistula river.

At Police, process water is used to prepare water which is then used, for example, for cooling purposes.

Water

source 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grup

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Energy intensity ratio (EIR) 

Water

Water withdrawal by source (m )3

[302-3]
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Water

source 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grup

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

Municipal

water supply

system 

0.00 0.00 267,190.00 268,370.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Groundwater 1,785,700.00 1,673,700.00 67.00 10.00 4,629,068.00 4,988,978.00 470,000.0

Other 1,882,700.00 1,839,600.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Surface

water 
4,883,893.00 4,134,331.00 170,796,025.00 167,961,447.00 92,999,549.00 88,286,936.00 11,273,000.0

Total 8,552,293.00 7,647,631.00 171,063,282.00 168,229,827.00 97,628,617.00 93,275,914.00 11,743,000.0

 

  2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 20.1 34.38 

Grupa Azoty Police 9.67 10.44 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 9.08 2.55 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 16.52 14.76 

The activities of any chemical company in the world involve environmental emissions. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we follow the

latest emission reduction technologies developed globally. We implement such solutions at our plants, consistently lowering

our emission ratios.

At Grupa Azoty S.A., in 2016 nitrous oxide emissions from the technical-grade nitric acid unit amounted to 363,476 Mg N O, and

the efficiency ratio was 1.2 (benchmark efficiency ratio: 1). In 2017, nitrous oxide emissions were 358,671 Mg N O, and the

efficiency ratio was 1.05 (benchmark efficiency ratio: 1).

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn operates modern nitric acid production units which meet BAT requirements and emit N2O volumes at

benchmark level (2016). In 2017, emissions from the Kędzierzyn-based plant were 374.522 Mg N2O, while the plant produced

494.69 Mg of nitric acid – the emission ratio was therefore 0.76 kg N2O/t HNO3. A  year earlier, the Kędzierzyn-based plant

emitted 580.692 Mg N20, while the nitric acid production volume amounted to 504 Mg – therefore the emission ratio in 2016

was 1.15 kg N2O/t HNO3.

In recent years, also Grupa Azoty Puławy reduced its N2O emission ratios. In 2016, the company recorded an emission ratio of

0.97 kg N2O/t HNO3, while in 2017 the ratio was 0.68 kg N2O/t HNO3. The reduction was achieved by replacement of catalytic

and catchment gauze sets. The ratios achieved in 2016 and 2017 were significantly lower than the BAT recommendations for

existing medium pressure units (1.85 kg N2O/t HNO3) and close to  the benchmark ratio (about 1 kg N O/t HNO ) used

to calculate free allocation of emission allowances under the ETS.

Percentage (%) of water reused or recycled

Our emissions

2

2

2 3

[303-3]
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Grupa Azoty Police emits only negligible amounts of N O.

 Greenhouse gas category  2016 2017

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Carbon dioxide 1,111,065.0 1,172,569.0

Nitrous oxide 173,046.0 111,608.0

Grupa Azoty Police

Carbon dioxide 1,537,341 1,653,948

Nitrous oxide 0 0 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 

Carbon dioxide 1,946,484.0 3,273,991.0 

Nitrous oxide 257,631.0 171,882.0 

Grupa Azoty S.A. Carbon dioxide 888,582.0 1,053,743.0 

2

Direct greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions

Volume expressed as CO  equivalent, by GHG category (t)2

[305-1]

Nitrogen oxide is much more toxic than carbon dioxide. For several years, Grupa Azoty Police and Grupa Azoty
Kędzierzyn have been producing a water solution of urea, which is injected before the catalyst in the exhaust
system in engines. Thanks to  the reactions provoked by  the substance, the engine emits nitrogen and water
vapour, which are neutral to the environment. In the case of heavy vehicles running on diesel, the product – sold
in Poland under the brand name NOXy® – is the only effective means allowing a  vehicle to  meet European
emission standards.

BEST PRACTICE
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 Greenhouse gas category  2016 2017

Nitrous oxide 108,316.0 106,884.0 

 

 
Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 
Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

CO  EMISSIONS

INTENSITY RATIO [t

CO /t NH ] 

2.54 3.04 1.87 1.82 1.705 1.67 1.12 1.52 

N O EMISSIONS

INTENSITY RATIO [kg

N O/t HNO ] 

1.15 0.76 Nd Nd 1.00 0.64 1.20 1.05 

 

 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 49 029,00 58 110,00 

Grupa Azoty Police 0,00 26 300,00 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 0,00 0,00 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 10 103,00 11 535,00 

Total 59 132,00 95 945,00 

 

 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Ammonia (NH ) 511.00 352.00 456.18 428.42 1,389.39 1,132.92 

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity

CO  emissions volume (t)2

2

2 3

2

2 3

Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Mg CO e)2

Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx), and other significant air emissions,
by type of substance (Mg)

3
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Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Benzo(alpha)pyrene  (C OH ) 0.0020 0.0025 0.0001 0.0001 0.0000 0.0100 

Sulfur dioxide  (SO ) 1836.00 1,272.00 3,152.97 2,795,.33 993.54 942.56 

Carbon dioxide  (SO ) 949,658.00 1,007,830.00 1,358,723.96 1,438,908.23 1,910,090.41 1,718,853.23

Sulfuric acid  (H SO ) 0.00 0.00 35.34 53.59 0.00 0.00 

Organic acids 0.10 0.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Volatile organic

compounds  (LZO) 
30.00 34.00 4.58 4.56 40.74 37.60 

Methane  (CH ) 6.00 119.00 0.00 0.00 4.78 11.25 

Nitrogen oxides  (NO ) 1,081.00 890.00 1,121.34 1,09.53 2,635,22 2,420.22 

Nitrous oxide  (N O) 581.00 374.00 0.00 0.00 848.79 620.28 

Melamine dust 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.54 11.13 

Urea dust 59.00 35.00 58.43 117.75 26.81 28.92 

Ammonium nitrate dust 91.00 76.00 0.00 0.00 391.46 387.58 

Ammonium sulfate dust 0.00 0.00 3.74 3.75 224.29 198.23 

Particulate matter 126.00 101.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Dust from fuel combustion 61.00 54.00 94.77 83.85 79.02 111.99 

Carbon monoxide  (CO) 295.00 304.00 105.42 118.74 216.75 133.63 

Aliphatic hydrocarbons 13.0000 14.0000 0.0188 0.0200 19.7400 10.6100 

Fluorine compounds 0.01 25.00 5.20 4.41 0.44 13.75 

Other 0.56 399 0.00 0.00 21.192 88.070 

Grupa Azoty S.A.’s operations generate three types of wastewater – process wastewater, sanitary sewage, and spent cooling

water and stormwater. Depending on the type, the wastewater is transported using the industrial wastewater system for

treatment at the central wastewater treatment plant or the biological wastewater treatment plant.

2 12

2

2

2 4

4

x

2

Read about our water, wastewater and waste management

Effluents
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 Wastewater discharge point 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Rivers (Odra River) 5,379,796.00 5,563,175.00 

Grupa Azoty Police Rivers (Odra River) 36,626,436.00 34,462,323.00 

Grupa Azoty Puławy Rivers (Wisła River) 88,506,896.00 83,772,426.00 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 

Municipal wastewater

treatment facilities 
1,399,000.00 1,422,000.00 

Rivers (Biała, Dunajec River) 3,837,000.00 4,208,000.00 

Total 135,749,128.00 129,427,924.00 

 

 Wastewater treatment method 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 

Biological treatment 2,154,070.00 2,402,297.00 

Central wastewater treatment plant (mechanical and

chemical treatment) 
2,154,070.00 2,402,297.00 

Piskorzowiec 5,379,796.00 5,563,175.00 

Wastewater treatment system 0.00 0.00 

Grupa Azoty Police Mechanical and chemical wastewater treatment plant 36,626,436.00 34,462,323.0 

 Biological industrial wastewater treatment plant 1,655,940.00 1,728,030.00 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 
Central industrial wastewater treatment plant

(mechanical and chemical treatment) 
1,430,320.00 1,770,145.00 

 Dawidagi 254,736.00 254,040.00 

Industrial wastewater and sanitary sewage undergo mechanical and chemical treatment at the central wastewater

treatment plant, and the treated water is then discharged into the Biała Tarnowska river.

Industrial wastewater containing biodegradable substances is directed via drains and trestle-supported sewer lines for

treatment at the biological wastewater treatment plant; from there, it is streamed for additional treatment to the

wastewater treatment facility operated by the Tarnów Water and Sewage Utility.

Stormwater and spent cooling water from Grupa Azoty S.A.’s premises are transported by means of separate collectors via

the retention pond, and then discharged through the Sutro weir into the Dunajec river. If a failure occurs and the

wastewater contaminates the EF drain, the drain may be cut off completely and all of the wastewater may be pumped

to the central wastewater treatment plant. It is also possible to direct the entire volume of wastewater generated by Grupa

Azoty S.A. to the wastewater treatment facility operated by the Tarnów Water and Sewage Utility.

Wastewater by discharge point (m )3

Wastewater by treatment method (m )3

[306-1]
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 Wastewater treatment method 2016 2017 
 

Blackwater industrial wastewater treatment plant

(biological treatment) 
114,530.00 136,680.00 

Grupa Azoty S.A. Biological treatment (3rd degree) 88,506,896.00 83,772,426.00 

 Biological treatment 1,399,000.00 1,422,000.00 

 
Central wastewater treatment plant (mechanical and

chemical treatment) 
3,370,045.00 3,790,525.00 

Total 142,745,839.00 137,703,938.00 

 

Most of the waste is recycled by  the Group companies internally or by  external service providers. We  follow closed-loop

economy trends, analyse the life cycles of our products, and investigate what further steps can potentially be taken in this area.

 Disposal method 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 

Storage 16,998.00 16,985.00 

Recovery by external service

provider 
12,984.00 115,287.00 

On-site recovery 80,810.00 0.00 

Transfer to third-party service

providers 
13,274.00 115,471.00 

Storage 2,465.00 0.00 

Neutralisation other than

through storage by a third-

party service provide 

146.00 0.10 

Grupa Azoty Police Storage 1,113.76 1,205.39 

Recovery by external service

provider. 
81,173.05 152,678.22 

On-site recovery 329,300.82 419,988.76 

Transfer to third-party service

providers 
81,325.47 152,936.09

Storage 2,022,110.28 2,197,467.79 

Neutralisation other than

through storage by a third-

party service provide 

152,41 257.87 

Neutralisation other than

through on-site storage
1,524,185.26 1,357,811.68 

Waste

Waste by disposal method (Mg)

[103-2]
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 Disposal method 2016 2017 

through on site storage 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 

Storage 308.30 265.31 

Recovery by external service

provider 
97,867.56 81,597.02 

On-site recovery 425.50 25.50 

Transfer to third-party service

providers 
97,867.56 81,610.07 

Storage 14,541.59 17,501.21 

Neutralisation other than

through storage by a third-

party service provider 

0.00 13.05 

Neutralisation other than

through on-site storage 
0.00 0.05 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 

Recovery by external service

provider 
55,378.20 49,682.96 

On-site recovery 74.80 140.00 

Transfer to third-party service

providers 
55,907.60 62,477.20 

Storage 0.00 0.00 

Neutralisation other than

through storage by a third-

party service provider 

529,40 464.00 

Total  4,488,938.57 4,866,157.38 

 

 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 
Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Wood 16.00 16.00 16 16 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 

Paper and

cardboard 
61.14 61.14 61 61 60.99 61.01 60.98 61.01 

Packaging that

held hazardous

substances 

  20 30 20.17 30.09 20.55 29.93 

Steel and sheet

steel 
51.01 50.90 51 51  51.02 51.28 51.11 

Percentage of reclaimed products and their packaging materials (by type of
material)

[301-3]
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Of the four largest companies of the Grupa Azoty Group, Grupa Azoty Police is the only one whose operations could have

a potential impact on biodiversity, due to its emissions. Grupa Azoty Police conducts its operations on the basis of

 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 
Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Plastic 23.50 23.50 23.5 23.5 23.50 23.50 23.00 23.49 

Multi-material

packaging 
      25.08 20.00 

 

Because of the scale of their operations and the size of their plants, some of the Group entities are located adjacent

to  protected areas, or have such areas under their management. We  want to  minimise the effect of our activities on the

neighbouring wildlife areas. Over the years, we have demonstrated our ability to conduct industrial operations in a responsible

and environmentally friendly manner.

Grupa Azoty S.A. leases, from the Regional Water Management Authority in Kraków, an area of 7,849 m2 entirely covered

by flowing water, which is necessary for the industrial infrastructure of a weir on the Dunajec River. The operations conducted

in this area, which contains surface and underground water intake facilities, as well as reservoirs feeding water to  an

underground municipal water intake point, pose no threat to biodiversity. Abstraction of water is subject to relevant permits

which set the maximum quantities of water that may be drawn.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn and Grupa Azoty Puławy are not located in or adjacent to any areas created or established under the

Nature Conservation Act of April 16th 2004.

Biodiversity

[103-2]
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E N S U R I N G  S A F E  P R O D U C T I O N  F O R  P E O P L E  A N D  T H E  E N V I R O N M E N T

Occupational health and safety

 

There were also no occupational diseases.

 

We  are committed to  ensuring that each and every day all our employees return home from work safe and sound. The

complete safety of our staff is our topmost priority – the prohibition against working without adequate protective equipment is

strictly observed across the Grupa Azoty Group.

Everyday workplace safety is based on procedures and enforcement of full compliance with their provisions. At the Grupa

Azoty Group, we follow the highest OHS standards, requiring our employees to undergo mandatory training and take regular

exams to check their knowledge of OHS-related issues. Apart from Group-wide solutions, each of our companies implements

industry-specific policies to ensure the highest standard of safety.

No work-related fatal accidents at the Grupa Azoty Group in 2016–2017

[103-2] [403-2]
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 Gender 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn
F 1 2

M 10 7

Grupa Azoty Police
F 1 4

M 24 30

Grupa Azoty Puławy
F 6 8

M 18 22

Grupa Azoty S.A.
F 3 7

M 9 8

 Year Gender Total 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 

2016 
F 0 

M 717 

2017 
F 168 

M 694 

Grupa Azoty Police 

2016 
F 71 

M 1 482 

2017 
F 80 

M 1 388 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 

2016 
F 591 

M 1 100 

2017 
F 278 

M 938 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 2016 F 224 

See our OHS performance

Workplace accidents by gender

 

Days lost by gender

[403-1] [403-2]

[403-2]
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 Year Gender Total 

M 526 

2017 
F 322 

M 517 

 Gender 

Year 

2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 
F 2,1 4,2 

M 9,2 6,4 

Grupa Azoty Police 
F 0,54 4,2 

M 12,6 6,4 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 
F 2,1 4,2 

M 9,2 6,4 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 
F 4,7 10,9 

M 6,2 5,3 

 Year Gender Total 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 

2016 
F 0,00 

M 71,71 

2017 
F 84,00 

M 99,14 

Grupa Azoty Police 

2016 
F 71 

M 61,75 

2017 
F 20,00 

M 46,26 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 

2016 
F 98,50 

M 61,10 

2017 
F 34,75 

M 42,63 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 
2016 

F 74,66 

M 58,44 

2017 F 46,00 

 

Accident frequency by gender

 

Accident severity by gender
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Our commitment to OHS has been recognised by independent experts. The Grupa Azoty Group companies were distinguished

with the ‘Gold Card of Safe Work Leader’, which is awarded to businesses that operate effective OHS management systems and

have effective OHS prevention programmes in place.

 Year Gender Total 

M 64,63 

 

Employees at all of our largest companies are represented by  OHS committees. The compositions and remits of individual

committees are similar. They include representatives of the employer (delegates from HR and OHS units and occupational

physicians providing preventive care to employees) and of the employees (trade union delegates and social labour inspectors).

OHS-related issues are comprehensively provided for in the Group’s formal agreements with trade unions. At Grupa Azoty S.A.,

safety-at-work issues are regulated in the ‘Work Rules’, and are regularly consulted with the Company’s social labour inspector

and, once a quarter, discussed at meetings of the OHS committee. In the case of Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, relevant provisions

are incorporated into the integrated management system. The Management Board holds regular monthly consultations with

trade unions, while its individual members consult specific matters with labour organisations. At Grupa Azoty Puławy, OHS

matters are addressed by the OHS committee and discussed at monthly meetings between trade unions and the management

board. At Grupa Azoty Police, general OHS rules are covered by its collective bargaining agreement, while specific provisions

are contained in internal regulations. Consultations are held during the OHS committees’ meetings at least once a quarter.

 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 100% 100% 

Grupa Azoty Police 100% 100% 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 100% 100% 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 100% 100% 

 

All of the largest Grupa Azoty Group companies have in place CCTV, safeguards and procedures dedicated to  preventing

accidents which could put staff at risk of death or serious injury. They also maintain well-trained fire services capable of

effective rescue operations, with additional support from supernumerary chemical rescue and technical rescue teams working

in a continuous system.

In 2017, the Group companies updated their safety reports, given the execution of new investment projects, upper-tier

establishment notifications and implementation of the SEVESO III Directive, Internal Rescue Operation Plans and Industrial

Accident Prevention Programmes. The above documents have been submitted for approval by  the relevant provincial

commanders-in-chief of the State Fire Service. In addition, in 2017 joint inspections were carried out at the Grupa Azoty Group

by three national supervision and inspection bodies: State Fire Service, Provincial Inspectorate for Environmental Protection,

and National Labour Inspectorate.

Percentage of workforce represented in formal OHS committees

[403-1]
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Grupa Azoty S.A. holds annual Safety Days. In 2016, the event was primarily dedicated to transport safety – the
company’s in-house experts and specialists invited from other organisations, including the police, Central
Institute for Labour Protection, and the Polish Office of Technical Inspection, discussed accident causes and
ways to improve safety of internal transport. In 2017, the main theme of the Safety Days was industrial process
safety, with guest speakers including academics from the Łódź University of Technology.

BEST PRACTICE

Grupa Azoty Police implemented the ‘Report a  Safety Hazard’ and ‘Zero Accidents’ preventive programmes,
engaging the entire workforce in a  safety improvement effort. As part of its health protection initiatives, it
offered an additional medical package to all interested employees and their families.

In 2017, the company began to cooperate more closely with the State Fire Service in Police in a project to expand
their knowledge about rescue operations in the context of the technical and technological aspects of the
company’s production units. Also, an annual plan of training programmes was prepared, involving the exchange
of knowledge and experience between the Company Fire Brigade and the State Fire Service in Police.

BEST PRACTICE
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Although you have only recently taken over as Head of the Plant Safety Department at Grupa Azoty Police, you have already

had to take at least one prompt and weighty decision. The Gorzów Wielkopolski cathedral was on fire, and the firefighters on

the scene needed help...

Jarosław Konopacki, acting Head of the Plant Safety Department at Grupa Azoty Police: Responsible decision-making is part of

my job and the duties I have taken on. I started out my career as a firefighter, and so I know well what it takes to do this job.

When I  was notified by  the shift commander that the State Fire Service was asking us to  dispatch our fire engine with a  50-

metre-long aerial ladder to help fight the fire of the Gorzów Wielkopolski cathedral, approximately 130 km south of our Police

fire station, I only checked whether we had a back-up engine in our area, i.e. the Police County, and within 10 seconds I ordered

our unit to go to Gorzów Wielkopolski to aid our colleagues on the scene. Nine minutes later, the fully manned fire engine left

our station for Gorzów. The assignment surprised the crew a bit as it was the first time they were going so far away from our

usual area of operations. Serving the Police County is one thing, but going across provincial borders to rush to an emergency is

quite another. Frankly, our engine is past its prime and weighs a  lot, so it cannot exactly reach a flying speed. Anyway, some

drivers in Szczecin proved really effective at slowing us down on our way across the city. We were not able to speed up until

we reached the S3 road, which links the Province of Szczecin with the Province of Gorzów Wielkopolski.

What are the day-to-day responsibilities of the Company Fire Brigade?

Jarosław Konopacki: We  do two types of work: prevention, which entails inspections by  fire and process failure prevention

specialists, issuing opinions, maintaining records, and delivering training, e.g. to new hires (we trained close to 2,500 staff last

year only), and emergency response. Our rescuers work in four 24h-long shifts. After each shift, they have 72 hours off. Each

shift is 12 strong and comprises: the shift commander; an on-duty dispatcher, who watches the entire plant through a  CCTV

monitoring system and has a radiophone to receive emergency reports; drivers, section leaders, team leaders, and rescuers. In

total, the Company Fire Brigade is composed of 56 people. On the top level, its operations are overseen by the commander-in-

chief, his deputy, fire and process failure prevention specialists, chief engineer, and chemical and technical rescue coordinator.

And what about the equipment?

Jarosław Konopacki: A decision has already been made to purchase a new hydraulic platform, which, when fully extended, will

be 62 metres high. As far as I can remember, the company has always taken care to equip the fire brigade well. Following the

company’s integration with Grupa Azoty S.A., all our company fire brigades joined the so-called fire protection working party

and exchange their experience using that platform. We  also attend training sessions at the Grupa Azoty Rescue Education

Centre (CERGA), which has its own firefighter proving grounds, among other facilities. Firefighters from across the Grupa Azoty

Group also select a single joint team which takes part in the Firefighter Combat Challenge. The Police fire brigade have been

very successful in this area. They have competed across Europe and even as far as in Dubai, always honourably representing the

company.

Firefighters are the most trusted profession in Poland. Who can become a firefighter?

Jarosław Konopacki: Anyone who meets formal requirements, i.e. has completed the required level of education, is physically

fully fit, and possesses mental traits which allow him or her to  cope with tough working conditions, including stress, high

temperatures, heights, etc. You must also be able to think on your feet. Empathy in your attitude to others is another important

trait expected of candidates. A firefighter may feel afraid, but only to the extent that it stimulates him and helps him or her

choose the most reasonable course of action. Know-how is also important – when on the scene, you need to be able to quickly

assess the condition of the structure that is on fire, its strength, etc., relying on your knowledge of mathematics, physics, and

chemistry. Last but not least, you need to be able to work as part of a team. Rescuers must trust each other, and they must also

trust their commander, who often has to promptly take difficult and binding decisions, often deviating from generally accepted

safety principles. We  observe a  great deal of interest among the general public in joining the fire service – whenever

recruitment is announced, there is never a shortage of candidates.

Do your units often have to rush to the plant, with their emergency lights flashing?

Jarosław Konopacki: When you see them speeding towards the chemical plant with the beacons on, they are most likely going

there to take part in a drill on the plant premises to improve their skills. They may, however, be going there to attend an actual

hazard, fire, or accident, which do sometimes happen. In short, firefighters must be regularly drilled – practice makes perfect,

and, besides, the more you sweat in training, the less you bleed in combat.

Read an interview with a firefighter from Grupa Azoty
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O U R  C O N T R I B U T I O N  T O  T H E  S O C I A L  A N D  E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  O F

L O C A L  C O M M U N I T I E S

We share knowledge

Our key partner remains the prestigious New Chemical Syntheses Institute, which has for years been the first choice research

facility for many Group companies. Our partnership involves a range of R&D and implementation projects pursued in Poland

and abroad, as well as joint development and pilot launch of new products and manufacturing technologies. Examples include

an upgrade and capacity increase at two production lines of Grupa Azoty Police’s ammonia plant, upgrade of nitric acid units in

Tarnów and Kędzierzyn-Koźle, and construction of a flue gas desulfurisation system at Grupa Azoty Puławy. Together with our

partner, we are also working to develop smart fertilizers, that is new formulas tailored to the specific needs of various crops as

well as the nutrient content in soils. Since it first began to work with the New Chemical Syntheses Institute, the Group has spent

a total of over PLN 80m on joint research projects.

Prime quality specialisation in various fields of chemical technology is among our biggest assets. Many of our employees are

top-of-the-line experts in their respective fields both at home and in Europe. We  share our knowledge and experience with

chemists from Poland’s leading institutions of research and science.

Competitors do not even do a half of what Grupa Azoty does.

The company should continue to invest in its local community, enabling people to
develop, gain an education, have broader ambitions, and live with dignity.

[103-2]
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We  accept our share of responsibility for the future of our industry and for the quality of life and living conditions in the

communities which host our operations. We  develop new products, set new trends and influence the market and its

environment, which is why we engage in the activities of numerous organisations with a global, national or local reach. Our

representatives are invited to sit at the most important decision-making tables, for example at the World Economic Forum in

Davos and thematic regional forums, while also being the first voice from Central Europe at the Royal Institute of International

Affairs Chatham House in London, Europe’s leading think tank.

For years, we have been a strategic partner of the Polish Chemical Industry Congress – one of the highest-profile industry events

in Poland and the key forum for discussion and sharing of expertise in technological solutions, innovative concepts and

strategies, implementation of capex projects, process safety, innovation, and the impact of the legal and economic

environment on the industry. For example, in 2017 we  participated in the strategic debate ‘Polish Chemical Industry in the

Globalisation Era – Position, Prospects and Challenges’.

Dialogue session

The New Chemical Syntheses Institute is among Poland’s top research institutions in industrial chemistry. It was rated A in the

most recent parametric evaluation, which confirms the very high quality of its scientific research. Its key source of revenue is

applied research and implementation projects for the broad fertilizer industry. In recent years, it has spent in excess of PLN

120m to expand its innovative research and production facilities.

The Institute conducts applied research in the area of large-scale chemical synthesis related to  synthesis gas production,

ammonia synthesis, catalysts, nitrogen compounds and nitrogen, phosphorus and compound fertilizers. It also works on the

development of new bioeconomy and green chemistry technologies, including innovative biomaterials such as biodegradable

polymers, which are made from renewable raw materials and are applied across many industries. The Institute is also

a European leader of research into supercritical CO  extraction of phytochemicals.

More about the new chemical syntheses institute

2

In February 2017, Wojciech Wardacki, President of the Management Board of Grupa Azoty S.A., was elected

BEST PRACTICE
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We  understand the importance of knowledge transfer between the Grupa Azoty Group and various actors involved in food

production, sharing our knowledge with both farmers and agricultural consultants. At many levels we  educate them on

sustainable agriculture – relying on traditional, proven training channels, but also making use of the latest knowledge transfer

technologies.

Driven by  technological progress, the present-day economy needs comprehensive service. Taking good advantage of

agricultural progress requires increasing levels of expertise which takes account of economic growth in yields and ensures

proper quality of agricultural products and safety of the environment. At the Grupa Azoty Group, we want to help farmers and

agricultural consultants to efficiently manage agricultural operations.

 

Together with our trading partners, we organise free training courses for farmers. Our experts share their knowledge of crop

plants and the use and application of fertilizers. We  explain specific soil and crop requirements. We  always remain open

to questions and we are happy to see the high attendance at our meetings.

See how we support farmers

It is necessary to build the public’s awareness of why fertilizers are needed to produce
food

Dialogue session

We provide training

[203-1]
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Chairman of the Council of the Polish Chamber of Chemical Industry, while Jacek Janiszek, President of the
Management Board of Grupa Azoty Puławy, became the body’s Deputy Chairman. The Council, which
supervises the work of the Polish Chamber of Chemical Industry in between meetings of its General Assembly,
has currently 25 members and a six-member Presiding Committee.
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Our training projects are supplemented with the Fertilizer Encyclopeadia, providing a  wealth of knowledge, including

understandably presented practical information not only about fertilizer characteristics but also about nutrients and soil. The

website also contains current information on agricultural product prices and farm work schedules prepared by  the Grupa

Azoty Group’s experts.

We also train our regional representatives through the Agroacademy project, run as regular meetings in various Polish cities

and towns to educate them, both in theory and practical aspects, about fertilizers and their application. The meetings are also

an opportunity to exchange experiences from various regions of the country and to pass on farmer feedback, gathered by our

sales representatives, on the products and promotional activities we have carried out.

In order to  improve cooperative links between agricultural entrepreneurs, agricultural consultants, science and business in

general, back in 2011 we established the Puławy Competence Centre – an institution serving as a platform for the exchange of

agriculture-related information. The Centre’s activities focus on:

The Puławy Competence Centre pursues its goals by  various means, such as recommending directions for research and

development work, sharing experience with industry partners and institutions of science, providing training, agricultural

advice and knowledge expanding opportunities for customers.

The company provides plenty of training events, meetings and information materials on
fertilizer application management. Farmers, especially those running large agricultural
operations, are well trained.

Dialogue session

We initiate cooperation

developing and promoting the concept of a modern agricultural entrepreneur,

improving farmers’ skills in efficient management,

popularising soil fertilization research,

forging new links between the worlds of business and science.

In January 2017, together with the Top Agrar Polska magazine, we  organised four meetings with farmers: in
Lublin, Opole, Poznań and Ostróda. Presentations to  the seminar participants included agrotechnical
recommendations for the spring season regarding winter rape and winter cereals.

BEST PRACTICE
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In November 2016, the Puławy Competence Centre organised the sixth ‘Science - Business - Agriculture’ conference, during

which experts gather to discuss the most pressing topics relevant to the agricultural sector. The meeting in 2016, held under the

auspices of the President of the Republic of Poland, focused on water management and drought prevention in agriculture, the

role of chemistry in global food security, as well as agricultural research and innovation.

From 2012 to 2017, the Puławy Competence Centre in association with the Warsaw University of Life Sciences (SGGW) ran post-

graduate studies for agricultural consultants, with the aim of training specialists in the most advanced technologies and

integrated production. Having completed the studies, their participants receive a  post-graduate diploma from the Warsaw

University of Life Sciences and become certified consultants on plant protection products and their use with ground

equipment. In 2012–2017, the programme was completed by 128 persons.

Low-cost and environmentally-friendly maize fertilizing and seeding system

Determination of the agricultural and economic effects of spring fertilization of winter rape, winter

wheat and maize with an urea and nitrate solution enhanced with macroelements (P, Mg, S)

Selected projects implemented by the Puławy Competence Centre
in 2016–2017:

In June 2017, we  arranged – already for the second time – a  meeting between representatives of the Polish
fertilizer industry, scientists and farmers on the experimental plots of Grupa Azoty Puławy. It was an excellent
opportunity for more than 80 invited guests to  discuss and ask questions about the use of different fertilizer
combinations for particular crops. The main purpose of the workshop was to familiarise agricultural producers
and consultants with the results obtained to date from the field research.

BEST PRACTICE
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We want to remain an open business organisation, regularly holding open-door days for those interested in the inner workings

of our plants. We support education by offering internship and traineeship opportunities for students, granting scholarships,

and – to  develop talents that could later become part of our own human resources – working with schools and academic

institutions to organise specialist classes and faculties with a chemistry-focused syllabus.

Since 2015, we have been running a unique research project under the name ‘Grounded in Knowledge’ to test soil for nutrient

content free of charge. As part of a  three-year campaign, we  set ourselves the goal of reaching almost 2,000 farms across

Poland and collecting 28,000 soil samples at as many as 17 regional chemical and agricultural stations. As a  result the farm

owners can, or will be able to, learn the actual nutrient requirements of their soil and plan the right fertilization strategy.

‘Grounded in Knowledge’ is very popular among farmers, but it is also appreciated by independent industry experts. In 2016,

during the International Agricultural Fair CTR 2016, it received the prestigious ‘Golden Crane of Agriculture’ award.

Although our products are active in the ground, we are reaching for space technologies. We launched a pilot project to inform

farmers about changes in the condition of their crops based on satellite observations. The application will also enable direct

communication with a seed spreader, management of soil water resources, and even crop yield forecasting. Its launch has been

made possible by an agreement signed with SatAgro, a Polish start-up company.

The technology, soon to be made available to Polish farmers by Grupa Azoty S.A. and SatAgro, allows direct access to satellite

observations made by  NASA, the European Space Agency, the European Commission (Copernicus programme), and private

operators. As a result, farmers gain crop data processing tools which can be used for individual farm fields to aid in effective

farm management. With the application offered by  Grupa Azoty S.A., users will be able to  remotely monitor crop growth,

assess the impact of weather conditions and agronomic treatments, and analyse historical data.

As a  small company that has only recently entered the market, SatAgro had limited possibilities of promoting its solution

among farmers. But having partnered with Grupa Azoty S.A., it has been able to reach farmers operating over many thousand

hectares of land.

For SatAgro users, the solution offers two important benefits. Firstly, the SatAgro-generated application maps for precise

fertilisation allow farmers to rightsize the amount of fertilizers used, which results in efficiency gains. Moreover, while many

users already had equipment for precision treatments, creating an application map required a considerable amount of time

and know-how. In the application it is a matter of minutes, which means that SatAgro enables farmers to take full advantage of

their equipment.

We engage in research

We embrace space technologies

[203-1]
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See how we support education

Grupa Azoty Police

Since 2013, Grupa Azoty Police has been running ‘Green Forge’, a talent attraction programme targeted at students and

graduates standing out for high academic achievement, extraordinary potential and strong motivation, to whom the

company offers a range of internship or placement opportunities, where they can develop and gain their first professional

experience under the supervision of best-in-class professionals.

In 2017, the company signed another agreement with the West Pomeranian University of Technology in Szczecin for

educating future professionals in the field of chemical and process engineering, specialising in olefin manufacturing. The

programme of studies is being continued as a result of the investment project carried out jointly by Grupa Azoty Police and

PDH Polska to produce propylene (with the PDH method) and the need to develop highly qualified professionals to staff

that area. Benefits for students include scholarships funded by PDH Polska, opportunities to gain hands-on experience

during four- to six-week trainee placements at production units, or internships.

[203-1] [103-2]

In 2016, we  held the ‘Chemistry around Us’ competition for children and youth of primary and junior high
schools in the regions where our strategic companies are located. Its purpose was to enhance the participants’
knowledge of the chemical sector, the role chemistry plays in everyday life, and to raise their awareness of the
relationship between products manufactured by  chemical plants and the surrounding environment. The
submitted projects concerned Grupa Azoty S.A.’s activities, the products we manufacture, and their presence in
everyday life.
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Grupa Azoty S.A.

In 2013, Grupa Azoty S.A. concluded an agreement with the Technical School Complex in Mościce whereby it agreed to hire

ten graduates of each year, fund scholarships and prizes for successful students, provide trainee placements at its plant,

deliver specialist classes through its experts, and co-fund the purchase of teaching aids.

The Company supports education of children and youth working with the SIEMACHA Association, KANA Catholic Youth

Education Centre, Comprehensive School Complex No. 1 in Tarnów-Mościce, and Sports School Complex.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn signed a patronage agreement with the Inland Navigation School Complex whereby the latter’s

students learning to be ‘inland navigation technicians’ may use Grupa Azoty ZAK’s water infrastructure and port as well as

take part in open-door classes. The agreement also provides for expert support in joint initiatives, e.g. conferences or

scientific sessions on inland waterway transport, and a scholarship programme for students.

In 2017, the company became involved in Collegium Nobilium Opoliense – a unique educational programme for ambitious

people who want to improve their social competence and skills, and also to develop their attitudes of responsibility for the

local community and the state, striving for continuous self-improvement and development. Collegium Nobilium is a hotbed

of ideals and moral strength in the spirit of modern patriotism manifested in respect for the state, its tradition and history.

As many as thirty master’s theses commissioned by Grupa Azoty Police have been written to date at the Faculty
of Chemical Technology and Engineering of the West Pomeranian University of Technology in Szczecin. As
admitted by the university’s faculty and Grupa Azoty Police staff, the scientific effort of students benefits both
the company and graduates themselves, giving them a  chance to  get an internship or even a  job. For the
company on the other hand, it delivers concrete knowledge to  inform its production and other processes. The
topics of the theses had been agreed upon in advance between the university and Grupa Azoty Police. They are
written by  students of chemical and process engineering whose principal field of studies is in olefin
manufacturing process engineering.

BEST PRACTICE

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn became a  patron of the chemistry classes of Nicholas Rej School Complex No. 3 in
Kędzierzyn-Koźle. A Technology Workshop is run for the students at Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, forming part of
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Grupa Azoty Puławy

In 2014, under a cooperation agreement between the Maria Curie-Skłodowska University of Lublin, Grupa Azoty Puławy and

the New Chemical Syntheses Institute, the University’s local branch in Puławy was opened. Its establishment was prompted

by high demand on the labour market for specialists in chemistry and chemical processes. The Puławy branch of the Maria

Curie-Skłodowska University offers engineering studies in technical chemistry taught in well-equipped classrooms by highly

qualified staff of the Maria Curie-Skłodowska University, Warsaw University of Technology, experts employed at Grupa

Azoty Puławy and specialists from various scientific institutions based in Puławy. In addition to other opportunities,

technical chemistry students may attend classes held on the company’s premises, and complete internships at Grupa Azoty

Puławy. Under that cooperative arrangement, topics of academic theses are also commissioned by the company and co-

promoted by its employees.

What do you think of the educational offering of the University’s local branch in Puławy? Do you think it is well aligned with

current demand on the labour market?

Although the branch was established a short time ago, it can already boast a uniquely wide and competitive offering compared

with other universities. Potential candidates are attracted by  a  wide variety of courses – they may choose between public

administration, physiotherapy, technical chemistry, public relations and media consulting. In short, everyone can find

something for themselves! I believe the programmes of studies offered by the Maria Curie-Skłodowska University have been

fully aligned with current demand on the labour market, not only in the region, but in the country as a whole. Also unique is its

training profile, full of practice, giving students a chance to test the theoretical knowledge gained during lectures, which are

very engaging as well.

Are you satisfied with the studies you enrolled for? What is your opinion of technical chemistry? Do you think its curriculum

will be directly relevant to your future professional career?

I have always been interested in chemistry, the field of study I chose, and my studies here at the local branch of the Maria Curie-

Skłodowska University have met all my expectations. The classes are delivered by  people for whom both teaching and

chemistry are more of a passion than a profession. We are free to use the well-equipped laboratories and a range of teaching

aids at the University’s Faculty of Chemistry in Lublin. In addition, the University provides free transport from Puławy to Lublin,

so we can take part in all classes at no additional cost. Our programme of studies was designed together with employees of

Grupa Azoty Puławy and the New Chemical Syntheses Institute, which is a guarantee we will be well prepared for our future

work.

What made you choose technical chemistry and the University’s local branch in Puławy?

As I  already said, I  have always been interested in chemistry, and so it was clear that my future career would be strongly

connected with this field of science. When the branch in Puławy was opened, I knew it was here that I wanted to study. Another

factor contributing to my decision was the desire to stay close to where I lived. It should also be remembered that the Grupa

Azoty Group’s nitrogen processing plant and other large enterprises are located in Puławy, which certainly means greater

employment opportunities.

What do you think of the town where you live and study? Do you find it an attractive place for young people?

Read an interview with a student of the Maria Curie-Skłodowska university’s Puławy branch

Interview with Katarzyna Cieniuszek, a technical chemistry student at the Maria Curie-
Skłodowska University in Puławy.

their practical vocational training. The classes are held on a full-day basis, once a week, in designated places on
the company’s premises in order to implement the school curriculum, i.e. at the laboratory of nitrate fertilizers,
laboratory of organic analysis, and laboratory of ammonia and nitric acid, as well as the calcium ammonium
nitrate department, nitric acid department and alcohol department. Divided into semester groups, they last until
the end of a school year, ending with a grade for the subject on the school report.
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Puławy is an exceptionally charming town with a rich history and vibrant industry. Offering interesting job opportunities, it is

also noteworthy for its multitude of historical attractions: the Czartoryski Palace for one, or generally the entire palace and park

complex near the Vistula slope, full of beautiful historical buildings and sculptures. In my opinion, everyone can find something

for themselves in Puławy, its added benefit being the attractive location – near Kazimierz Dolny and Nałęczów.

How would you rate the partnership between the University’s local branch and Grupa Azoty Puławy?

Grupa Azoty Puławy is involved in the promotional activities and ceremonies organised by the branch, while being an advisory

voice on its collegiate bodies. Some of the classes in technical chemistry are run by employees of Grupa Azoty Puławy and the

New Chemical Syntheses Institute, who place a strong emphasis on their practical side. We can also do our internships at Grupa

Azoty Puławy.

How, purely objectively, would you evaluate your knowledge and practical skills? Once you graduate, do you think you will be

able to  take up a  job in the profession for which you are being prepared without any concerns? Do  you think your

qualifications will be sufficient?

It is difficult to  objectively evaluate myself. But I  can see how much my studies here at the local branch of the Maria Curie-

Skłodowska University in Puławy have given me – I  have gained a  lot of knowledge and practical skills necessary as the

groundwork for further improvement. Of course, I  am in my second year of studies and I  realise how much learning is still

ahead of me. Nevertheless, judging by  the level of education I  have benefited from so far, I  believe I  will be genuinely well

prepared for my future career. There are also trainee placements before us, which will further enhance our knowledge and

allow us to test our skills in practice.
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O U R  C O N T R I B U T I O N  T O  T H E  S O C I A L  A N D  E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  O F

L O C A L  C O M M U N I T I E S

We engage in outreach and sponsorship
activities that benefit local communities

Our products cross many borders and are used by consumers all over the world, but we never forget where they come from

and how our manufacturing facilities impact the local communities. We strive to maximise the positive impacts and we care

to  be seen by  local residents and authorities as a  good neighbour that contributes to  economic, cultural and social

development.

We expect continued sponsorship of local events and lasting cooperation with local
communities and institutions.

Dialogue Session

[103-2]
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Every year we host the exceptional New Year Charity Concert in Lusławice near Tarnów. In 2016, the programme included works

by  Johann Strauss Jr., Johann Strauss Sr., Dmitri Shostakovich, Pyotr Tchaikovsky and Sergei Prokofiev, performed by  soloists

Iwona Hossa and Marcel Markowski with Sinfonia Varsovia under the baton of Krzysztof Penderecki and Jerzy Maksymiuk. The

special guest invited to  the event in 2017 was Zen Hu. She played the Chinese violin and was accompanied by  Sinfonietta

Cracovia under the baton of Jerzy Dybał. All money raised from the event is donated to charitable causes.

See what community outreach initiatives we ran in 2016 and 2017:

Grupa Azoty Puławy

[203-1] [413-1]

In 2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy commissioned a survey to assess the awareness of its outreach and sponsorship
activities among the local communities.

 Almost 58% of respondents from across the region believed the company’s commitment to sport sponsorship
was strong or quite strong. Among respondents from the county of Puławy, the proportion was above 61%.
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Group companies continue the long-standing tradition of supporting initiatives that promote sports and physical activity on the

local and national level. We believe that physical activity enhances positive attitudes and values, building up the social capital

and improving the fitness of all generations of Poles.

Has established partnerships with the Dom Chemika Puławy Cultural Centre, the largest such centre in the region, the

Zamoyski Museum in Kozłówka, and the Vistula Museum in Kazimierz Dolny. The company was a sponsor of events held as

part of the ‘All Directions of the World’ classical music festival as well as ‘The Cursed – the Unconquered of the Lublin

Region’ series broadcast by the Polish Television.

Helped to organise a patriotic concert to honour Edward Taraszkiewicz, codename ‘Żelazny’, and his brother Leon

Taraszkiewicz, codename ‘Jastrząb’, heroes of Poland’s independence underground, and to stage a re-enactment of the

Battle of Komarów to celebrate the 97th anniversary of the event.

In 2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy assumed one-year patronage over the Henryk Sienkiewicz Museum in Wola Okrzejska and co-

financed the purchase of a part of the manuscript of Sienkiewicz’s novel ‘The Deluge’.

Grupa Azoty S.A.

Supports the Mościce Arts Centre, ArtContest Artistic Association of Tarnów (Grupa Azoty International Jazz Contest

Group), Puellae Orantes Cathedral Girls Choir, BWA Tarnów City Gallery, Leliwa Traditional Jazz Association of Tarnów, Klasa

Dance Association (National Ballroom Dance Tournament) and Paderewski Centre in Kąśna Dolna.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Sponsors the protection of local cultural heritage, in particular by supporting the activities of the Koźle Region Association,

which protects the history and monuments of the Koźle Region and the City of Kędzierzyn-Koźle.

Is a long-standing patron of the Inland Navigation Youth Brass Orchestra, which has won national and international acclaim

and recognition. The orchestra plays at major European concert halls, with its performances covered by local and national

media. Highlights and photos from the concerts are published by foreign press as well.

Also sponsors minor events, such as the second edition of the Concert of Cultures, organised by the Association of Friends

of the Echo Kresów Choir.

Grupa Azoty Puławy

In 2017, the ‘Grupa Azoty Puławy Sports Academy’ was established as a social and sports initiative for children practising

football. The idea behind it is to partner with sports clubs and teams present in the area of our Company’s operations, who

play under the common logo of the Sports Academy and Grupa Azoty Zakłady Azotowe Puławy.
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In 2016, the Azoty-Puławy men’s handball team, sponsored by the company, fought for top positions in the best league at

the national level and represented Poland in European cups

Grupa Azoty Puławy-sponsored sports club Wisła Puławy triumphed on the football pitch. The club secured a top position

in the 2015/2016 season games and advanced to the first league for the first time in its history. The team also competed at

the national level of the Polish Cup tournament.

•In 2016, Grupa Azoty Puławy forged a partnership with the sports club Górnik Łęczna, which remained in the Polish

football premier league for the 2016/2017 season as the best football team of the Lublin region.

In 2016, the company teamed up with the Aeoroklub of Lublin in the organisation of Poland’s balooning championships in

Nałęczów, cooperated with the Azoty Yacht Club of Puławy, which organises sailing courses and training camps in the

Masurian Lake District and on the Vistula river, with the Kyokushin Karate Club of Lublin, and with a number of local football

clubs

In 2017, the company sponsored the talented wrestler and national representative from the Lublin region Jakub Szymula.

Grupa Azoty Police

The company provides support to the Wodnik Inclusive Students Swimming Club, which brings together children and youth,

including people with disabilities, and creates an inclusive environment for students from childcare centres, providing

opportunities to interact with their peers from state schools.

The company also sponsors the Dzik Running Club Association, which is the host of the annual ‘Wild Weekend’ event,

a series of cross-country races, ranging in distance and difficulty. The event is regularly accompanied by the National Fire

Fighters Championship and the National Uniformed Services Championship in cross-country racing.

The company co-hosts the Nationwide Neptune Run, held around the Szczecin Lake near Trzebież over a distance of five

kilometers and bringing together healthy lifestyle enthusiasts.

The company is a partner of the regularly held Szczecin Firefighter Combat Challenge, a captivating event that attracts

massive audiences.

The company sponsors the ‘I Run Because I Like It’ Association and its Santa Clause Run held in Police. The event is the

largest winter running event in the Szczecin Province and one of the most attended races in the calendar year.

In March 2017, Grupa Azoty Police signed an agreement with the Szczecin Province Football Association under which the

company provides football clubs in the region with pitch care products at low prices in exchange for brand presence at

stadiums and football grounds.

Grupa Azoty S.A.
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In 2016, Grupa Azoty S.A. designed and implemented a  unique multi-year social outreach project named ‘START’, designed

to discover young sports talent. Its purpose is to support young people dreaming of excellent performance in various sports.

The project comprises:

In 2017, Grupa Azoty S.A. also provided organisational and financial support to:

Basketball Development Programme,

Speedway Development Programme,

Handball Development Programme, and

Cross-Country Skiing Development Programme.

AZS (University Sports Association) Club at the State Higher Vocational School in Tarnów (field and track section) PWSZ,

Miejsko-Ludowy Klub Sportowy (sports club) Dąbrovia (archery),

Football Academy at the Jutrzenka Popular Sports Club.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn has been a long-standing Main Sponsor of ZAKSA Kędzierzyn-Koźle, a premier league volleyball

team, promoting not only the company, but also the town, region and province.

In 2017, based on an agreement with Grupa Azoty S.A., Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn became responsible for the support of

Odra Opole, a first-league football club.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn supports the sporting career of paralympic badminton player Bartłomiej Mróz, multiple World and

European Championships medalist, whose primary goal for the next couple of years will be to qualify for the Tokyo 2020

Paralympic Games. On his road to Japan, he has to win a series of tournaments played around the world.

As far as amateur sports are concerned, Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn provides support to a number of regional initiatives,

including the ‘Chemik’ Sporting Society (football academy and boxing sections) and ‘Lewada’ Equestrian Club, as well as

various projects undertaken by the ‘Koziołek’ Sports Club (e.g. the Sixth Charitable Santa Claus Run), the Municipal

Interschool Sports Club (e.g. the ‘Koziołki Pływackie’ swimming championships) and the Santa Claus Basket Tournament in

Prudnik.

Grupa Azoty S.A. also hosted a sports panel ‘Business and Sports or How to Be in Shape for Success’, attended
by Apoloniusz Tajner, President of the Polish Ski Association, Adam Małysz, Coordinating Director of the Polish
Ski Jumping and Nordic Combined National Team at the Polish Ski Association, Dawid Kubacki, a  world
champion in team ski jumping, and Maciej Kot, a World Championship gold and bronze medallist in team ski
jumping events.

BEST PRACTICE

142



Is running the ‘It’s Good to  Be a  Pole’ programme promoting national pride and traditions and commemorating important

events and famous figures in Poland’s history. The programme was inaugurated on the National Remembrance Day of the

Cursed Soldiers, which was celebrated with a patriotic concert ‘It’s Good to Be a Pole’ held at the music studio of the Polish

Radio in Lublin. Grupa Azoty Puławy is also the main partner of the project ‘The Underground Army Returns’, under which

a  website devoted to  the Cursed Soldiers was set up. The company is the patron of various publications, including themed

supplements to local newspapers that promote and popularise the knowledge of Poland’s post-war heroes.

Some initiatives undertaken under the ‘It’s Good to Be a Pole’ programme include:

Is a long-standing supporter of the ‘Safety is Our Common Goal’ campaign for children and youth from the county of Puławy

that is partnered by  the town’s police and firefighters. The initiative involves meetings at educational institutions across the

county (primary schools, junior high schools and kindergartens). Each participant receives an educational brochure and small

gifts (including reflective bands).

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Partnering the project ‘The Underground Army Returns’,

Series of educational programmes ‘The Cursed – the Unconquered of the Lublin Region’, honouring heroes of Poland’s

struggle for independence, and a series called ‘Independent’, commemorating the 100th anniversary of Poland’s regaining

independence, broadcast on Channel 3 of the Polish Television in Lublin,

Support of the Cursed Soldiers Rally, Cursed Soldiers Memorial Race, Wolf’s Trail and other patriotic runs and marches,

Support in organising a patriotic concert to honour Edward Taraszkiewicz, codename ‘Żelazny’, and his brother Leon

Taraszkiewicz, codename ‘Jastrząb’, heroes of Poland’s independence underground,

Support in staging a re-enactment of the Battle of Komarów, the biggest battle of cavalry fought during the Polish-Soviet

War, to celebrate the 97th anniversary of the event.

Assistance offered to Poles returning from Kazakhstan in adapting to the new environment, in partnership with the Polish

Community Association,

Support in organising the 25th Sienkiewicz-Named Schools Rally in Puławy,

Help with the purchase of the manuscript of Henryk Sienkiewicz’s ‘The Deluge’ for the Henryk Sienkiewicz Museum in Wola

Okrzejska.

Grupa Azoty Police

Has built strong partnerships with the Szczecin-based West Pomeranian University of Technology and University of Szczecin,

as well as the Police School Complex.

Is also visited by large numbers of university and other students as well as scientists interested in the chemical industry. The

company organises guided bus tours around its facilities. Visiting professionals are also shown selected business units.

Grupa Azoty S.A.
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Supports the Tarnów Branch of the Polish Tourist Association, the Society of the Friends of Mościce, and the Tytus

Chałubiński PCK Blood Donors Club at Grupa Azoty S.A.

Supports the Volunteer Water Rescue Service in Tarnów.

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Provided funds to purchase a rescue and firefighting vehicle for the County Headquarters of the State Fire Service in

Kędzierzyn-Koźle in 2016.

Has been a long-term supporter of the ‘Your Friend Numbers 998–112’ social information campaign run by the PARAM

centre in Opole to improve public safety by raising risk awareness, educating and training people in risk prevention,

emergency response and effective communication with rescue services.

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Blood donation campaigns are run at Grupa Azoty S.A. companies on a regular basis. Grupa Azoty Puławy periodically holds

blood donation events for its employees, with approximately 11 litres of blood donated in 2016.

OTHER

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn employees participate in annual charity events held to help children in need. In 2017, the company

hosted its first Christmas Fair for employees, with over 500 staff making donations in the events accompanying the Fair. The

raised money went to the local branch of the Polish Red Cross, while sweets were given to charity organisations supporting

children.

144



O U R  C O N T R I B U T I O N  T O  T H E  S O C I A L  A N D  E C O N O M I C  D E V E L O P M E N T  O F

L O C A L  C O M M U N I T I E S

We employ locally

The Grupa Azoty Group’s most valuable asset is its employees. The expertise and dedication of close to  10,000 people

comprising the workforce of our four leading companies are the key drivers of our business success. As one of our top

priorities, we  strive to  continuously improve working conditions and workplace safety, and to  raise employee satisfaction.

We are proud to support our employees’ volunteering efforts.

Grupa Azoty S.A. does not exist in isolation from its home city. We create jobs and
provide many opportunities for development. We hope that in the coming years our
relations will be as close and successful as ever before.

Dialogue Session

[103-2] [203-2]
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As at December 31st 2017, the Group employed a  total of 14,434 people, with 67% of them working for the four leading

companies, i.e. Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, Grupa Azoty Police, Grupa Azoty Puławy, and Grupa Azoty S.A. (a slight increase on

2016, when the Grupa Azoty Group had a  14,173-strong workforce, of whom 67% were employed by  the four largest

companies). Our employee turnover remains low. 90% of staff at Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn, Grupa Azoty Police, Grupa Azoty

Puławy, and Grupa Azoty S.A. are hired under open-ended employment contracts. Our workforce numbers are continuously

growing as the Group has opted not to hire contingency workers any more. Most our employees are men (74% both in 2016

and 2017) and persons aged 30 to  55 (55% of the four leading companies’ total workforce in 2016 and 2017). However, the

majority of our laboratory staff and professionals are women. The HR-related projects that we  are going to  focus on in the

coming periods include building a  strong and consistent corporate culture across the Group, developing programmes

to support employees’ competence and innovation drive, managing age diversity in the workplace, and developing mentoring

programmes.

 

 2016 2017 

 F M F M 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

Open-ended contract 436 993 428 993 

Fixed-term contract 40 99 50 106 

Total 476 1,092 478 1,099

Grupa Azoty Police

Open-ended contract 468 1,724 478 1,743 

Fixed-term contract 41 163 58 223 

Suma 509 1,887 536 1,966

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Open-ended contract 728 2,381 728  2 457 

Fixed-term contract 68 239 91 222 

Suma 796 2,620 819 2,679

Grupa Azoty S.A.

Open-ended contract 596 1 326 589 1,342 

Fixed-term contract 42 124 52 166 

Suma 638 1,450 641 1,507

TOTAL 
2,419 7,049 2,474 7,251

9,468 9,725 

 

 

 2016 2017 

 F M F M 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Part-time 3 1 1 2 

Learn more about our staff

Total number of employees by gender and type of employment contract
(headcount)

Total number of employees by gender and working time arrangement
(headcount)

[102-8] [405-1] [102-41] [401-1] [401-2]
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 2016 2017 

 F M F M 

Full-time 473 1,091 477 1,097 

Total 476 1,092 478 1,099

Grupa Azoty Police

Part-time 3 2 2 0 

Part-time 506 1,885 534 1,966 

Total 509 1,887 536 1,966

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Part-time 1 4 1 0 

Full-time 795 2,616 818 2,679 

Total 796 2,620 819 2,679

Grupa Azoty S.A.

Part-time 1 3 1 2 

Full-time 637 1,447 640 1,505 

Total 638 1,450 641 1,507

Total 
2,419 7,049 2,474 7,251

9,468 9,725 

 

Position 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 
Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

F M F M F M F M F M F M F M K M 

Operators 41 651 39 655 13 1 041 10 1 113 23 1 020 22 1 029 50 677 52 717 

Other blue-

collar jobs 
25 109 23 110 52 374 67 383 112 828 118 878 60 316 55 312 

Management 41 67 46 70 24 81 26 82 54 118 58 115 40 76 40 80 

Laboratory

staff 
116 10 112 11 168 7 173 6 179 1 178 2 197 8 197 8 

Foreman 8 83 7 80 17 130 17 129 19 233 19 234 11 107 11 112 

Senior staff 87 32 91 38 5 2 4 2 118 49 119 49 144 70 149 93 

Professionals 149 122 151 120 221 225 230 233 275 321 292 328 132 162 133 157 

Senior

management 
9 15 9 15 9 22 9 18 16 46 13 44 4 28 4 28 

Management

Board

members 

0 3 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 6 0 0 

Number of directors, officers, and staff by gender, age group, and other diversity
indicators

[405-1]
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Position 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 
Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa Azoty S.A. 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

F M F M F M F M F M F M F M K M 

Total 
476 1,092 478 1,099 509 1,887 536 1,966 796 2,620 819 2,679 638 1,450 641 1,507 

1,568 1,577 2,396 2,502 3,416 3,498 2,088 2,148 

 

Position 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty Puławy Grupa A

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

F M F M F M F M F M F M F M 

Operators 2,63% 41,8% 2,3% 41,5% 0,5% 43% 0,4% 44,5% 0,7% 29,8% 0,6% 29,4% 2,4% 32,4% 

Other blue-

collar jobs 
1,60% 7,0% 1,5% 7,0% 2,2% 15,6% 2,7% 15,3% 3,3% 24,2% 3,4% 25,1% 2,9% 15,1% 

Management 2,63% 4,3% 2,9% 4,4% 1% 3,4% 1,0% 3,3% 1,6% 3,4% 1,6% 3,3% 1,9% 3,6% 

Laboratory

staff 
7,44% 0,6% 7,1% 0,7% 7% 0,3% 6,9% 0,2% 5,2% 0% 5,1% 0,1% 9,4% 0,4% 

Foremna 0,51% 5,3% 0,4% 5,1% 0,7% 5,4% 0,7% 5,1% 0,5% 6,8% 0,5% 6,7% 0,5% 5,1% 

Senior staff 5,58% 2,0% 5,8% 2,4% 0,2% 0,1% 0,2% 0,1% 3,4% 1,4% 3,4% 1,4% 6,9% 3,3% 

Professionals 9,56% 7,2% 9,6% 7,6% 9,2% 9,4% 9,2% 9,3% 8,0% 9,4% 8,3% 9,4% 6,3% 7,7% 

Management

Board

members 

0,6% 1,0% 0,6% 0,9% 0,4% 0,9% 0,3% 0,7% 0,5% 1,3% 0,4% 1,2% 0,2% 1,3% 

 

Percentage of employees by gender and type of position

Management Board:
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Position 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn Grupa Azoty Police Grupa Azoty

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 

<30 
30-

50 
50+ <30 

30-

50 
50+ <30 

30-

50 
50+ <30 

30-

50 
50+ <30 

30-

50 
50+ 

Operators 3% 24% 17% 3% 24% 17% 7% 21% 16% 8% 23% 14% 5% 20% 6% 

Other blue-

collar jobs 
0% 4% 4% 0% 5% 3% 2% 8% 8% 2% 8% 8% 3% 14% 11% 

Management 0% 4% 3% 0% 4% 3% 0% 3% 2% 0% 3% 2% 0% 3% 2% 

Laboratory

staff 
1% 4% 3% 1% 4% 3% 0% 4% 3% 1% 4% 3% 1% 3% 2% 

Foreman 0% 3% 3% 0% 3% 3% 0% 3% 3% 0% 3% 2% 0% 4% 3% 

Senior staff 1% 4% 2% 2% 5% 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2% 2% 

Professionals 1% 10% 7% 0% 10% 6% 2% 10% 7% 1% 10% 7% 1% 11% 6% 

Management

Board

members 

0% 1% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 1% 0% 0% 1% 1% 

Management 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

TOTAL 6% 55% 38% 6% 56% 38% 10% 50% 40% 12% 51% 36% 9% 58% 33% 

 

Percentage of employees by age and type of position

Management Board:
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Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements 2016 2017 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 1,568 1,577 

Grupa Azoty Police 2,396 2,502 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 3,416 3,498 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 2,088 2,148 

TOTAL 9,468 9,725 

 

 

Year 2016 2017 

Gender K M K M 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn

<30 33 33% 68 67% 37 37% 64 63% 

30-50 249 29% 621 71% 252 29% 629 71% 

50+ 194 32% 403 68% 189 32% 406 68% 

Grupa Azoty

Police

<30 34 14% 217 86% 49 16% 263 84% 

30-50 273 23% 918 77% 288 23% 990 77% 

50+ 202 21% 752 79% 199 22% 713 78% 

Grupa Azoty

Puławy

<30 51 16% 273 84% 55 17% 271 83% 

30-50 405 20% 1 570 80% 426 21% 1 575 79% 

50+ 340 30% 777 70% 338 29% 833 71% 

All employees of the four leading Group companies are covered by collective
bargaining agreements.

Workforce by gender and age (headcount)

[102-41]

[401-1]
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Year 2016 2017 

Gender K M K M 

Grupa Azoty S.A.

<30 37 23% 123 77% 48 22% 169 78% 

30-50 370 32% 802 68% 387 32% 841 68% 

50+ 231 31% 525 69% 206 29% 497 71% 

TOTAL 2,419 26% 7,049 74% 2,474 25% 7,251 75% 

 

 

Year 2016 2017 

Gender K M K M 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn

<30 8 24% 18 26% 14 38% 13 20% 

30-50 7 3% 32 5% 11 4% 35 6% 

50+ 1 1% 3 1% 2 1% 2 0% 

Total 16 3% 53 5% 27 6% 50 5% 

Grupa Azoty

Police

<30 22 65% 69 32% 28 57% 91 35% 

30-50 15 5% 81 9% 27 9% 104 11% 

50+ 1 0% 6 1% 0 0% 6 1% 

Total 38 7% 156 8% 55 10% 201 10% 

Grupa Azoty

Puławy

<30 16 31% 60 22% 20 36% 52 19% 

30-50 25 6% 83 5% 37 9% 66 4% 

50+ 5 1% 11 1% 3 1% 6 1% 

Total 46 6% 154 6% 60 7% 124 5% 

Grupa Azoty S.A.

<30 9 24% 27 22% 13 27% 50 30% 

30-50 12 3% 40 5% 17 4% 60 7% 

50+ 0 0% 7 1% 0 0% 6 1% 

Total 21 3% 74 5% 30 4% 116 7% 

TOTAL 121 5% 437 6% 169 7% 487 7% 

 

 

Year 2016 2017 

Gender F M F M 

Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn

<30 33 33% 68 67% 37 37% 64 63% 

30-50 249 29% 621 71% 252 29% 629 71% 

50+ 194 32% 403 68% 189 32% 406 68% 

New hires by gender and age

Total number of terminations and employee turnover by gender and age
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Year 2016 2017 

Gender F M F M 

Grupa Azoty

Police

<30 34 14% 217 86% 49 16% 263 84% 

30-50 273 23% 918 77% 288 23% 990 77% 

50+ 202 21% 752 79% 199 22% 713 78% 

Grupa Azoty

Puławy

<30 51 16% 273 84% 55 17% 271 83% 

30-50 405 20% 1 571 80% 426 21% 1 576 79% 

50+ 340 30% 776 70% 338 29% 832 71% 

Grupa Azoty S.A.

<30 37 23% 123 77% 48 22% 169 78% 

30-50 370 32% 802 68% 387 32% 841 68% 

50+ 231 31% 525 69% 206 29% 497 71% 

TOTAL 2,419 26% 7,049 74% 2,474 25% 7,251 75% 

 

Part of our commitment to  supporting employees is a  wide range of employee benefits offered by  Grupa Azoty Group

companies under their occupational welfare scheme.

Employee benefits include:

Under the occupational welfare scheme, the Grupa Azoty Group employees* are also entitled to:

*Excluding Grupy Azoty Puławy employees. At Grupa Azoty Puławy, special focus is placed on providing support to  retired personnel –

we stay in touch with approximately 2,000 such persons, each year presenting them with Christmas vouchers, inviting them to Senior Dance

Parties, providing support to  finance holidays, including sanatorium treatment, co-financing their cinema or swimming pool tickets, or

advancing housing loans to them.

Full-time employee benefits unavailable to part-time employees or those
employed under fixed-term contracts

healthcare,

corrective eyeglasses,

protective wear and workwear,

health and life insurance,

retirement benefits,

financial incentive scheme dedicated to retiring personnel,

social fund,

length-of-service award, annual bonus,

training and courses,

maternity/parenting/paternity leaves.

participation in the Occupational Pension Scheme,

participation in health-promoting programmes and rehabilitation procedures,

participation in the financial incentive scheme dedicated to retiring personnel,

participation in the free-of-charge ‘Work-Life Balance’ counselling project, as part of which employees can receive free-of-

charge psychological advice,

university tuition allowance,

holiday allowance.

[401-2]
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We support employees’ volunteering projects, appreciating their potential for building social capital and enhancing employee

motivation and dedication. Volunteering together is a  great way to  break the daily routine at work and can be a  source of

tremendous satisfaction and great pride from putting one’s ideas into practice and, first and foremost, from helping others.

The best volunteering ideas are rewarded by Group companies, e.g. in 2017, Grupa Azoty Puławy selected and endorsed ten

projects submitted by  employees in a  dedicated competition, with the key selection criterion being the amount of work

contributed by employees.

 

Volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy held a pottery workshop for the parents of children in the care of the ‘Step by Step’ Charity

Foundation of Puławy, which is dedicated to providing therapy to children with autism, Asperger syndrome, and intellectual

disabilities. While the parents were learning how to  make pottery, their children were playing games and doing other fun

activities organised by the volunteers.

The project is aimed at furnishing a  multimedia theatre hall at Primary School No. 11 in Puławy. The volunteers have been

involved in tidying and cleaning the hall, filling holes in and painting the walls, buying and installing mirrors and shelves, and

installing a screen.

Urban gaming is a  great, dynamic way for children to  explore their neighbourhoods. In this case, the game was organised

by  volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy in the Czartoryski Park in Puławy. The game’s plot was based on the history of the

Czartoryski family. The event was attended by approximately 30 adults and 60 children – pupils of various Puławy schools who

had been participating in classes held at the Puławy Youth Cultural Centre.

Volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy furnished a classroom for conducting physical, biological and chemical experiments with

children aged 3–6 at Kindergarten No. 18 in Puławy. During the workshops, the children, attended by volunteers, built their own

miniature erupting volcanoes, caused rain in a glass, observed water moving from one vessel to another, made a lava lamp, and

brewed a colourful storm in a glass.

Volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy set up a  place for having bonfires, including a  hearth, and equipped it with a  foldable

gridiron and foldable benches and tables for outdoor use.

Learn about the Grupa Azoty group employee volunteering projects

 At the Grupa Azoty Group, we can see on an everyday basis that apart from
having top professional competence „chemia do pomagania”.

By giving you receive, by receiving you give

Multimedia theatre hall

‘Treasure Hunt’ urban game 

Little Explorers’ Lab

Place for a bonfire at the Homeless Shelter in Puławy
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We offer competitive salaries and a generous employee benefit package. We are honoured to be trusted by our staff and happy

to see their low turnover. Ensuring equal and equitable treatment of all our employees is among our key guiding principles set

out in the Grupa Azoty Group’s Code of Ethical Conduct.

We are proud to have been recognised for our HR policy by third parties, including by the NSZZ Solidarność Trade Union, which

awarded us the ‘Employee-Friendly Company’ prize, presented by President of Poland.

Know-how, experience, commitment, and teamwork skills drive our performance and lead to achievements appreciated by the

market and investors. That is why at the Grupa Azoty Group we  attach great weight to  the development of our personnel,

providing them with in-house training opportunities and supporting their continuing education efforts at universities. New

On June 3rd, at the Puławy Special Educational Centre, volunteers from the company held an integrative, sports-themed

Children’s Day, with a preceding pottery workshop for those in the Centre’s care.

The volunteering project involved converting a  building referred to  as the gatehouse at High School No. 1. Volunteers from

Grupa Azoty Puławy decided to renovate the building for the purposes of the High School students’ TV CZART online television

project.

Volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy renovated the premises of the former Aircraft Model Building Studio in Puławy and

organised an aircraft model building workshop for children and teenagers, including a competition during which the attendees

were able to fly their handmade models.

Volunteers of Grupa Azoty Puławy constructed a  playground for the youngest pre-schoolers from the kindergarten in Stary

Pożóg.

The project involved construction of enclosures and sheds for large pets as well as reinforcing the enclosure fencing with

robust elements.

We are all children

Refurbishment of the gatehouse building for ‘TV-CZART’ project

Reactivation of an aircraft model building studio in Puławy

Pre-schoolers’ Small Haven in Stary Pożóg

New sheds in the Puławy Animal Shelter

Employee benefits offered by the Grupa Azoty Group include:
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employees are properly onboarded, the management is regularly trained to  improve their various managerial skills, and

professionals from different fields continue to  develop their expertise and soft skills alike. Implementation of most new

organisational and process solutions is accompanied by dedicated training. The Group also funds all training required by law

and pays all fees related to occupational licensing exams.

Steady employment is Grupa Azoty S.A.’s advantage as an employer.

Employee survey results

The employee training process is covered by  the Integrated Quality, Environment and Safety Management System. All

employee groups undergo training. Many courses are provided at the request of employees, who are free to  choose their

More about our employee training programmes

Key employee training programmes at the Grupa Azoty Group leading companies:

Grupa Azoty S.A.

OHS training

ISO training

Position-specific training

University tuition allowance

English language course for employees, attended by approximately 70–80 students

In 2017, a training project was launched as part of our succession planning efforts, dedicated to staff designated to replace

retiring personnel

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn

The Foreman Academy Project aimed at improving team building and effective teamwork skills.

In 2016, the Management Academy training programme was launched to improve the leadership’s managerial skills, in

particular decision-making, work delegation, conflict resolution, and employee motivation competencies

In 2016, a programme was set up whereby employees can receive reimbursement for English language course tuition fees;

employees take an English language proficiency test to determine the course level to assign them to and the learning

objectives to be attained during the course

Grupa Azoty Puławy

Co-financing of language course tuition fees

Co-financing of post-graduate, MBA and PhD programme tuition fees

Opportunities provided to attend open training courses as well as specialist and industry conferences

Opportunities provided to attend closed training courses and take occupational licensing exams

The Grupa Azoty Puławy Professional Skills Development Programme dedicated to blue-collar staff, as part of which

mentoring guidelines were defined, and curricula were developed for each blue-collar position; the programme was

implemented along with a new SAP Qualifications Management module, to which data on all blue-collar employees’

qualifications was migrated

The Competence Improvement Programme dedicated to white-collar staff as part of the Grupa Azoty Puławy Skills

Academy. An in-house training platform was set up under the programme to encourage employees to share knowledge

with one another and allow them to improve their social and managerial competencies such as communication, teamwork

and team management skills.

[103-2] [404-2]
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theme, form of instruction, and date, as long as a course is going to  improve employees’ work-related skills (must be linked

to their current or future responsibilities) and there are sufficient funds in the training budget.

Employees develop their skills in keeping with the approved annual training schedule of Grupa Azoty Zakłady Chemiczne

Police. The schedule represents a training programme for the company’s employees, based on which training and professional

advancement activities are organised.

Programmes to support the continued employability of terminated or retiring personnel

 2016 2017 

 F M F M 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 18.65 14.48 9.24 16.42 

Grupa Azoty Police 18.75 18.20 10.31 15.85 

Grupa Azoty Puławy 19.33 19.71 17.74 20.42 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 9.78 9.29 9.53 7.54

Average 16.63 15.42 11.71 15.06 

Structure level 
Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 

Grupa Azoty

Police 

Grupa Azoty

Puławy 

Grupa Azoty

S.A. 

Year 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Operators 6.54 11.73 12.32 17.52 17.14 19.05 4.27 3.63 

Other blue-collar jobs 18.65 43.18 14.23 9.45 13.01 14.45 9.30 2.96 

Management 39.65 16.31 37.08 21.44 39.74 36.11 21.87 18.38

Laboratory staff 11.71 7.43 9.00 5.78 15.67 19.74 1.48 0.00

Grupa Azoty Police

Improving employees’ professional qualifications through formal education

The ‘Green Forge’ internship programme, designed to introduce flexible options for recruiting top talent for the company

The Smooth Succession Programme, designed to ensure continuous governance of the company, provide development

opportunities to the management, and improve the competencies of outstanding employees

The Multi-Skill Programme aimed at enhancing employees’ skills and expertise and creating flexible options to recruit

qualified personnel

Educational programmes taught under the company’s auspices: Chemical Technology Class – created to increase the

availability of qualified technicians for recruitment by Grupa Azoty S.A. 

2nd edition of a programme in olefin manufacturing processes at the West Pomeranian University of Technology in Szczecin,

run to educate highly-qualified professionals

Average number of training hours per employee by gender

Average number of training hours per employee by type of position

[404-1]
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Structure level 
Grupa Azoty

Kędzierzyn 

Grupa Azoty

Police 

Grupa Azoty

Puławy 

Grupa Azoty

S.A. 

Year 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Foremen 30.83 13.7 30.07 15.34 13.28 19.92 5.75 6.08

Senior staff 21.54 11.84 85.00 104.00 13.21 7.9 17.27 7.51

Professionals 21.21 10.41 23.07 12.55 29.41 24.07 17.63 27.20

Senior management 42 10.25 123.71 25.11 63.55 58.35 22.00 28.25

Management Board members 0 n/a 44.60 n/a 16.93 n/d 1.33 n/a

Average 21.26 15.61 42.12 26.40 29.83 24.95 11.21 10.45

 

Year 2016 2017 

Gender F M F M 

Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Grupa Azoty Police 100% 100% 100% 100% 

Grupa Azoty S.A. 100% 100% 100% 100%

 

*Grupa Azoty Puławy does not carry out periodic performance assessments. Under the bonus policy (bonuses are awarded on a quarterly

basis, with the total amount of the bonus fund contingent on the Company’s financial performance), managers are required to award bonuses

based on employee performance assessment, taking into account the incentivising effect of a bonus. The assessment results are not recorded

(only the amount of the bonus awarded is). In 2017, an agreement was signed to amend the Company Collective Bargaining Agreement. The

amended Collective Bargaining Agreement provides for a review of the employee’s career development by the employee’s superior (based

on a set of criteria) and for differentiating the amount of base salary paid to employees holding the same positions on the basis of the review.

The first such review is to take place in 2018.

Percentage of staff subject to regular performance assessment and career
development reviews by gender*

[404-3]
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Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn has launched the ‘Work-Life Balance’ counselling project, as part of which employees
can receive free-of-charge psychological advice. In addition, one of its objectives is to support those in difficult
life situations.

BEST PRACTICE
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W E L L  R U N  O R G A N I S A T I O N

Ethics at the Grupa Azoty Group

Good management – understood as responsible management of the Group’s tangible and intangible assets based on a cost-

benefit analysis so as to maximise benefits to the Group’s shareholders and other stakeholder groups;

Professionalism – making every effort to ensure that the Group’s management, operational and control system standards are

The Group’s principles of ethics and respect for human rights, as well as the desirable attitudes and standards of conduct, are

defined in the Grupa Azoty Group’s Code of Ethical Conduct, describing measures taken to  foster responsible employee

behaviour and build relations with the Group’s external environment. The values prescribed in the Code are applicable to all

Group companies.

Grupa Azoty Group’s values:

[102-16] [103-2]
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effective and conductive to the delivery of its business strategy; to be professional is to apply the highest standards of care and

make proper use of expertise, skills and business competence;

Cooperation – the Group believes that good cooperation means arranging mutual relations in a  way that would maximise

benefits to  the Group while furthering and respecting the other party’s interests, which requires communication aimed at

achieving a win-win situation and building mutual trust and understanding when pursuing common goals;

Respect – understood as full recognition of another person’s dignity, irrespective of their nationality, race, gender, age, physical

or mental health, religion, political views or sexual orientation;

Transparency – which stands for openly communicating our decisions and reasons behind them, as well as our expectations

and requirements; we are guided by this approach in all areas of our activity, except for those which must remain confidential

for business or legal reasons.

The Code of Ethical Conduct of Grupa Azoty Puławy and Grupa Azoty Police consists of two sections. Section 1 sets out the core

values and principles of business ethics in relations with stakeholders, suppliers and the local community, while Section 2

covers employee matters, such as equal opportunities in employment, promotion, development and in-service training. The

Code also defines the procedure for reporting unethical behaviour through a line manager or the Ethics Officer.

Additionally, the Codes of Ethical Conduct implemented by Grupa Azoty Puławy and Grupa Azoty Police address issues related

to  the management of conflicts of interest and corruption risk, setting forth the basic rules of conduct in day-to-day work.

According to their provisions, all employees are required to:

Ethics Officer

In 2016 and 2017, none of Grupa Azoty S.A., Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn and Grupa Azoty Police reported any breaches of the Code

of Ethical Conduct or human rights, or any cases of discrimination at the workplace. At Grupa Azoty Puławy, one workplace

harassment complaint was received in each of 2016 and 2017. However, the committee set up to investigate the matter did not

confirm the complaints as valid.

avoid situations which may give rise to a conflict of interest or put them in a conflict of interest situation,

carefully consider all situations for potential impact on the impartiality of work-related actions or decisions,

promptly notify their line managers and the Ethics Officer of any situations that give rise or may lead to a conflict of interest.

An Ethics Officer has been appointed both at Grupa Azoty Police and Grupa Azoty Puławy.
At the other companies, relevant appointments are also shortly planned.
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In 2016 and 2017, there were no pending lawsuits regarding breaches of fair competition rules against Grupa Azoty S.A., Grupa

Azoty Puławy, Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn and Grupa Azoty Police.

In 2016, there was one confirmed instance of corruption at Grupa Azoty Puławy. The identified incident involved an attempt

to hand an item of value to an employee of the company. The employee did not accept the bribe and immediately reported the

attempt. The case was being investigated by  the Regional Prosecutor’s Office in Lublin. In 2017, no company reported any

instance of corruption or fraud.

In the second half of 2017, tax proceedings were pending with respect to the operations of Grupa Azoty POLICE’s subsidiary

African Investment Group S.A. in 2013–2015.

Reasons behind the investment in the open-pit phosphate rock mine in Senegal were to make the Grupa Azoty Group resilient

to fluctuations in phosphate prices, while expanding its own reserves of phosphate rock, a basic input in the manufacture of

compound fertilizers. However, the actual reserves of rock extractable from the mine turned out to be significantly lower than

initially estimated. In 2016, the Management Board of Grupa Azoty Police announced that the value of AIG assets had been

overestimated and, consequently, a relevant adjustment would be made to its financial results.

Grupa Azoty Police also filed claims for a refund of the undue purchase price tranches it had paid for 55% of AIG shares, but

later, on December 20th 2017, it concluded a conditional agreement with DGG ECO Sp. z o.o. settling the claims (confirmed

by  an in-court settlement). The agreement was to  result in the parties’ confirming termination of the 2013 agreement under

which Grupa Azoty Police had acquired the majority interest in AIG. Reversal of the effects of the latter agreement was

to  entail, among other things, a  refund of USD 28,850 thousand as the amount already paid for AIG shares. The conditional

agreement was to  have been consummated by  February 28th 2018 provided that the requisite corporate approvals were

granted by that date, and that Grupa Azoty Police received the first tranche of the price refund along with a bank guarantee

securing receipt of the balance. By the envisaged date, the conditional agreement between Grupa Azoty Police and DGG ECO

Sp. z o.o. had not been consummated.

Having regard to  all circumstances of the phosphate rock project in Senegal and the non-consummation of the conditional

settlement with DGG ECO sp. o.o., on March 7th 2018 the Management Board of Grupa Azoty Zakłady Chemiczne Police passed

a resolution to recognise, as at December 31st 2017, an impairment loss for the entire amount of the intangible exploration and

evaluation assets.

On March 29th 2018, AIG filed for bankruptcy. The Management Board of African Investment Group S.A. provided explanations

to  the Senegalese tax authorities (with the participation of the entity managing its accounting and tax matters). The

Management Board denied most of the authorities’ allegations as groundless. However, the Senegalese tax authorities

dismissed its explanationsand, on March 13th 2018, African Investment Group S.A. received a payment demand notice with an

enforceability order issued by the Director for Large Enterprises, for an amount of XOF 10,435,788 thousand (equivalent to PLN

66,268 thousand as at December 31st 2017, translated at the exchange rate quoted for the reporting date). Further information

will be communicated via the Grupa Azoty official channels.

Source: Prepared based on the Grupa Azoty Group’s consolidated financial statements for the 12 months ended December 31st 2017

In 2016 and 2017, at Grupa Azoty Puławy, Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn and Grupa Azoty S.A. no instances of non-compliance related

to marketing communications were reported.

In August 2017, an inspection carried out by  the Provincial Agricultural and Food Quality Inspectorate revealed certain

irregularities in the labelling of fertilizers and plant growth enhancers produced by  Grupa Azoty Police. Information on the

percentage content of ammoniacal nitrogen placed on bags did not specify the total percentage content. In accordance with

the received recommendations, the Packaging Labelling Quality Requirements Sheet was revised – ‘18% (m/m) - total nitrogen

(N) in ammoniacal form’.

Investment in Senegal

Statements on the application of corporate governance principles
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W E L L  R U N  O R G A N I S A T I O N

Operational excellence – supply chain

Managing a  chain of supply of raw materials and products to  and from companies located throughout Poland is for us

a tremendous logistic challenge. Every year, we transport millions of tonnes of fertilizers, chemical products and raw materials.

With advanced logistics solutions, we are able to optimise shipments, which translates into financial and environmental savings.

Rail is the most cost-effective transport, partly provided by our own company Grupa Azoty Koltar. Sea transport is particularly

profitable at Grupa Azoty Police, given its location in the vicinity of Szczecin.

Grupa Azoty S.A. is the first Polish chemical company to have deployed the modern TMS SOOT system improving its transport

processes. The standard SOOT solutions have been extended to  include other functionalities: communication with carriers,

reporting of transport-related incidents, notification of shipments with the use of a  ‘notification link’, and notification of

recipients of a shipment dispatch. Further solutions and upgrades are also in the pipeline.

At our Group, procurement of raw materials and distribution of products in Poland and abroad is the responsibility of the

Corporate Procurement Department working closely with the Corporate Logistics Department, which also together oversee the

processes related to warehouse management, packaging and coordination of transport. They also set strategic objectives for

logistics and manage related risks.
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Having our own warehouse base throughout Poland, we  have also signed agreements with more than 80 distributors who

operate warehouses all over the country. We comply with all storage safety standards for our products in accordance with the

relevant product data sheets.

Since the procurement area was consolidated at the Group level, all key suppliers have been vetted against CSR criteria.

Since 2017, Grupa Azoty Police has operated a new logistics base. Worth PLN 30m, the project has enabled the
company to sell more fertilizers, previously delivered to customers in bulk. Apart from enhancing the company’s
commercial offering to  include packaged fertilizers, including urea, the new logistics infrastructure will also
generate cost benefits by reducing the need for goods awaiting loading to be transported around the premises. It
is estimated to bring annual savings in the region of PLN 550 thousand.

BEST PRACTICE
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O U R  R E P O R T

Report scope and boundary, applicable
standards and guidelines

This report was prepared in the Core version. It presents data for two years (2016–2017), unlike the previous reports,

which covered annual periods.

This report describes the non-financial activities and performance of the four key companies of the Grupa Azoty

Group:

This integrated report contains a summary of the Grupa Azoty Group’s financial and non-financial performance for the two-year

period 2016–2017. In preparing it, we  relied on the latest guidelines of the Global Reporting Initiative (GRI Standards). Its

content and layout are also based on relevant recommendations of the International Integrated Reporting Council (IIRC).

Report scope and boundary, applicable standards and guidelines

Grupa Azoty S.A. of Tarnów (the parent),

Grupa Azoty Zakłady Azotowe Kędzierzyn of Kędzierzyn-Koźle (Grupa Azoty Kędzierzyn; ZAK),

Grupa Azoty Zakłady Azotowe Puławy of Puławy (Grupa Azoty Puławy),

[102-50]
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In addition to  the companies listed above, seven other companies are included in the consolidated financial statements

(subsidiaries of Grupa Azoty S.A.): Grupa Azoty ATT Polymers GmbH (Guben, Germany), Grupa Azoty Polskie Konsorcjum

Chemiczne Sp. z  o.o. (Tarnów), Grupa Azoty Koltar Sp. z  o.o. (Tarnów), Grupa Azoty Kopalnie i  Zakłady Chemiczne Siarki

Siarkopol (Grzybów), Grupa Azoty Folie Sp. z  o.o., Grupa Azoty Compounding Sp. z  o.o. and Navitrans Sp. z  o.o. (Gdynia, an

indirectly controlled subsidiary). The financial data in this report have been taken from the consolidated financial statements of

the Grupa Azoty Group.

In order to  exercise due care, a  third-party expert (Deloitte Advisory Sp. z  o.o.) was engaged to  assist in the

preparation of this report, which was then verified by an independent auditor (........).

Financial data sourced from the financial statements have been audited by independent auditors (by KPMG Audyt Sp. z o.o. in

2016, and by EY Audyt Polska Sp. z o.o. Sp.k. in 2017).

Approximately 70 employees of the four key Group companies were involved in the process of collecting data.

The report scope and boundary, as well as methods of measurement, were not subject to any major changes.

In late February and early March 2018, we carried out an anonymous survey among our employees. Covering 417

employees, the survey was designed to gauge their opinions about key areas of the Grupa Azoty Group’s responsibility towards

its environment. The survey was anonymous and lasted 15 days (from February 27th to  March 13th 2018). Additionally, on

February 27th 2018, a  dialogue session was held in Tarnów. It was attended by  representatives of Grupa Azoty S.A.’s key

external stakeholder groups:

During the meeting, aspects of low, medium and high relevance were identified. The aspects of low relevance, providing no

measurable added value for the organisation and recipients of this report, were disregarded.

This year’s report covers the following non-financial aspects:

Key aspects: 

Products and services

Innovation

Financial performance and indirect economic impacts 

 End-user health and safety 

Occupational health and safety 

Ethics 

Energy and emissions 

Grupa Azoty Zakłady Chemiczne Police of Police (Grupa Azoty Police).

Report drafting process

the municipal authorities,

the county authorities,

public cultural centres,

social institutions,

trading partners,

customers,

farmers.

Significant aspects of GRI reporting for the Grupa Azoty Group
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Key aspects: 

Water, effluents and waste 

Intellectual capital (training and education) 

Compliance 

Important aspects: 

Employment 

Non-discrimination 

Diversity and equal opportunity 

Marketing and labelling 

Biodiversity 

Materials 

Local communities 

Public policy 
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O U R  R E P O R T

GRI content index

GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

FOUNDATION

GRI 101  Reporting principles  

UNIVERSAL STANDARDS 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

GRI 102 102-1 Name of the organization  

GRI 102 102-2 Activities, brands, products, and services  

GRI content index

[102-55]
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

GRI 102 102-3 Location of headquarters  

GRI 102 102-4 Location of operations  

GRI 102 102-5 Ownership and legal form  

GRI 102 102-6 Markets served  

GRI 102 102-7 Scale of the organization  

GRI 102 102-8 Information on employees and other workers  

GRI 102 102-9 Supply chain  

GRI 102 102-10
Significant changes to the organization’s size, structure,

ownership, or supply chain 
 

GRI 102 102-11
Information whether and how the organization applies the

Precautionary Principle or approach 
 

GRI 102 102-12

List of externally-developed economic, environmental and

social charters, principles, 

 or other initiatives to which the organization subscribes, or

which it endorses 

 

GRI 102 102-13 Membership of associations  

STRATEGY 

GRI 102 102-14 Statement from senior decision-maker  

GRI 102 102-15 Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities  

ETHICS AND INTEGRITY 

GRI 102 102-16 Values, principles, standards, and norms of behavior  

GOVERNANCE 

GRI 102 102-18
Governance structure of the organization, including

committees of the highest governance body 
 

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT 

GRI 102 102-40 List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organization  

GRI 102 102-41 Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements  

GRI 102 102-42
The basis for identifying and selecting stakeholders with

whom to engage 
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

GRI 102 102-43

The organization’s approach to stakeholder engagement,

including frequency of engagement 

 by type and by stakeholder group 

 

GRI 102 102-44
Key topics and concerns that have been raised through

stakeholder engagement 
 

REPORTING PRACTICE 

GRI 102 102-45
List of all entities included in the organization’s consolidated

financial statements 
 

GRI 102 102-46 Defining report content and topic Boundaries  

GRI 102 102-47 List of material topics  

GRI 102 102-48

The effect of any restatements of information given in

previous reports, and the reasons for such restatements (eg.

mergers, acquisitions, change of the year / base period, nature

of operations, methods of measurement) 

 

comment: There were no adjustments to the information

published in the previous report. 

 

GRI 102 102-49 Changes in reporting  

GRI 102 102-50 Reporting period  

GRI 102 102-51 

The date of the most recent previous report (if published) 

 

comment: The last integrated report for 2015 was published

on November 9, 2016 

 

GRI 102 102-52 Reporting cycle  

GRI 102 102-53

Contact point for questions regarding the report 

 

comment: In order to obtain additional information about the

report or approach of Grupa Azoty to CSR please contact: 

 

Monika Płońska, monika.plonska@grupaazoty.com 

 

We are interested in your opinion on our report and the scope

of information you would like to find in its another edition. In

this case, as well as in the case of order of a copy of the report,

please write to the following address

monika.plonska@grupaazoty.com 

 

Contact for the media: Spokesperson of Grupa Azoty

rzecznik@grupaazoty.com 

Contact for investors: Investor Relations

Team ir.tarnow@grupaazoty.com 
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

GRI 102 102-54

The claim made by the organization, if it has prepared a report

in accordance with the GRI Standards, either Core or

Comprehensive option 

 

GRI 102 102-55 GRI content index  

GRI 102 102-56
Description of the organization’s policy and current practice

with regard to seeking external assurance for the report 
 

MANAGEMENT APPROACH 

GRI 103 103-1 Explanation of the material topic and its Boundary  

GRI 103 103-2 The management approach and its components  

GRI 103 103-3

Evaluation of the management approach 

 

comment: No changes 

 

TOPIC-SPECIFIC STANDARDS 

ECONOMIC 

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE 

GRI 201 201-1

Direct economic value generated and distributed (including

operating costs, employee wages and benefits, 

payments to providers of capital, payments to government

by country, and 

 community investments) 

 

GRI 201 201-2

Financial implications and other risks and opportunities due

to climate change 

Comment: Partially 

 

GRI 201 201-4 Financial assistance received from government  

INDIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACTS 

GRI 203 203-1 Infrastructure investments and services supported  

GRI 203 203-2 Significant indirect economic impacts  

ANTI-CORRUPTION 

GRI 205 205-3 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken  

ANTI-COMPETITIVE BEHAVIOR 

GRI 206 206-1
Legal actions for anti-competitive behavior, anti-trust, and

monopoly practices 
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

ENVIRONMENTAL 

MATERIALS 

GRI 301 301-1

Materials used by weight or volume 

 

comment: Partially 

 

GRI 301 301-3
Percentage of reclaimed products and their packaging

materials for each product category 
 

ENERGY 

GRI 302 302-1 Energy consumption within the organization  

GRI 302 302-3 Energy intensity  

GRI 302 302-4 Reduction of energy consumption  

WATER 

GRI 303 303-1 Water withdrawal by source  

GRI 303 303-3 Total volume of water recycled and reused by the organization  

BIODIVERSITY 

GRI 304 304-1

Operational sites owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent 

 to, protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value

outside protected areas 

 

GRI 304 304-2
Significant impacts of activities, products, and services on

biodiversity 
 

EMISSIONS 

GRI 305 305-1 Direct GHG emissions  

GRI 305 305-4 GHG emissions intensity  

GRI 305 305-5 Reduction of GHG emissions  

GRI 305 305-7
Nitrogen oxides (NOX), sulfur oxides (SOX), and other

significant air emissions 
 

EFFLUENTS AND WASTE 

GRI 306 306-1 Water discharge by quality and destination  

GRI 306 306-2 Waste by type and disposal method  
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

GRI 307 307-1

Significant fines and non-monetary sanctions for non-

compliance with environmental laws 

 and/or regulations 

 

SOCIAL 

EMPLOYMENT 

GRI 401 401-1 New employee hires and employee turnover  

GRI 401 401-2
Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided

to temporary or part-time employees 
 

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY 

GRI 403 403-1

Percentage of workers whose work, or workplace, is

controlled by the organization, 

 that are represented by formal joint management-worker

health and safety committees 

 

GRI 403 403-2

Types of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, 

 lost days, and absenteeism, and number of work-related

fatalities 

 

TRAINING AND EDUCATION 

GRI 404 404-1 Average hours of training per year per employee  

GRI 404 404-2
Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition

assistance programs 
 

GRI 404 404-3

Percentage of total employees by gender and by employee

category who received 

 a regular performance and career development review 

 

DIVERSITY AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY 

GRI 405 405-1

Percentage of individuals within the organization’s governance

bodies in each of the following diversity categories: gender,

age group, other indicators of diversity 

 

NON-DISCRIMINATION 

GRI 406 406-1 Incidents of discrimination and corrective actions taken  

LOCAL COMMUNITIES 

GRI 413 413-1
Operations with local community engagement, impact

assessments, and development programs 
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GRI Standard 
Number of the

disclosure 
Title of the disclosure Vertification

GRI 413 413-2
Operations with significant actual and potential negative

impacts on local communities 
 

PUBLIC POLICY 

GRI 415 415-1

Total monetary value of financial and in-kind political

contributions made directly and indirectly by the organization

by country and recipient/beneficiary 

 

comment: In the reporting period, in accordance with the

Grupa Azoty’s Donations Policy, no donations have been made

to political parties, politicians and institutions of a similar

nature 

 

CUSTOMER HEALTH AND SAFETY 

GRI 416 416-1
Assessment of the health and safety impacts of product and

service categories 
 

GRI 416 416-2

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations

and/or voluntary codes concerning the health and safety

impacts of products and services 

 

MARKETING AND LABELING 

GRI 417 417-1
Requirements for product and service information and

labeling 
 

GRI 417 417-2

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations

and/or voluntary codes concerning product and service

information and labeling 

 

GRI 417 417-3

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations

and/or voluntary codes concerning marketing

communications 

 

SOCIOECONOMIC COMPLIANCE 

GRI 419 419-1
Non-compliance with laws and regulations in the social and

economic area 
 

 

Own disclosures

ASPECT: PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

A300-1 Extent of impact mitigation of environmental impacts of products and services 

ASPECT: TRANSPORT 

A300-2
Significant environmental impacts of transporting products and other goods and materials for the

organization’s operations, and transporting members of the workforce 
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